Support your local merchanis.

AGENDA
REGULAR SESSION
MAYOR AND COUNCIL
473 S MAIN STREET, SUITE 106
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 20, 2016 at 6:30 P.M.

Note: Council member(s) may attend Council Sessions either in person or by telephone, video, or intemet conferencing.

1,
2.
3.

4,

Call to Order
Roli Call
Pledge of Allegiance

Consent Agenda — All those items listed below may be enacted upen by one mation and approved as consent agenda items. Any item may be
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered as a separate item if a member of Council requests.

a)

b}

e)

Approval of the Minutes:

1) Regular Session - January 6, 2016

Set Next Meeting, Date and Time:

1) Friday, January 22, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. Work Session-CIP

2) Wednesday, January 27, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. Council Hears Planning & Zoning Matters

3) Friday, January 29, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. Work Session-

4) Wednesday, February 3, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. Regular Session

9) Wednesday, February 10, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. Work Session

6) Wednesday, February 17, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. Regular Session

7) Wednesday, February 24, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. Council Hears Planning & Zoning Matters

Possible approval and authorization for the Mayor and/or Vice Mayor in the Mayor's absence, to execute required
documents to facilitate the donation of parcel 404-13-306 from Terry and Aloma Briggs to the Town of Camp
Verde. Property is located in Verde Lakes on Yucca Drive Staff Resource: Ron Long

Possible approval and authorization for the Mayor and/or Vice Mayor in the Mayor's absence, to execute both
and Abandonment of Easement, and a new permanent Access Easement, to be recorded for public roadway
purposes. This property is located off Industrial Drive that the Town purchased to develop and use as the Public
Works yard. Staff Resource: Ron Long.

Possible approval of Focused Future Il Community and Economic Development Strategic Plan. Staff Resource:
Steve Ayers

Special Announcements and presentations:

 Certificate of Appreciation to Mike Hough for his time serving on Board of Adjustments & Appeals
o Certificate of Appreciation to Kathy Davis and Tony Gioia

Call to the Public for ltems not on the Agenda.

Presentation by Verde River Basin Partnership, updating Council on current activities. Resource: Vice-Mayor Bruce
George

Presentation and possible acceptance of the Town of Camp Verde’s FY 15 Audit. Staff Resource: Michael Showers

Presentation followed by discussion of Buxton Company’s proposal to provide retail recruitment and retention
services to the Town of Camp Verde. Staff Resource: Steve Ayers



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

18.

17.

P
Posted by’
Note: P,
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Update by Planning & Zoning Chairperson B. J. Davis regarding the proposed General Plan, to include but not limited
to the calendar of important dates, and 60 day review period.

Presentation and possible discussion of Quarterly Reports as presented by :
¢ Planning & Zoning Commission
e Board of Adjustments & Appeals

Discussion, consideration and possible approval of amendment to the Town’s Salary Plan with the addition of the
Visitor Center Ambassador job description. Staff Resource: Steve Ayers/ Barbara Bridge

Discussion, consideration and possible approval of Resolution 2016-957, a Resolution of the Mayor and Common
Council of the Town of Camp Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona, on a request by Mr. G. Scott Simonton, Manager of
Simonton Ranch 18, LLC, owner of the un-platted Elk Creek Subdivision located in the Simonton Ranch Master
Planned Community, to provide for an extension of time for the Preliminary Plat approval of said Elk Creek
Subdivision. This time extension is based on the original “Development Agreement” between the Town of Camp
Verde and Harvard Investments, (see attached, Exhibit “a’ Development Agreement) as recorded in Book 3663, page
213 of the Yavapai County, Arizona, Recorder, under Section 8:11 as follows:

* Ifthe PAD Is not approved by the Town Council, or is approved subject to conditions or stipulations not
accepted by Developer, Developer shall have no obligation to construct any of the improvements provided
for in the Agreement or the PAD. If market conditions and/or development financing materially change the
feasibility of the PAD Plan, Developer may interrupt development until market conditions and/or
development financing are again favorable, at which time continued development of the Property will be in
accordance with the PAD Plan.

Aside from the above referenced Development Agreement, the Developer has submitted a letter dated December 8,
2015 agreeing to the following:

¢ Update the Drainage Report

* Submit a copy of the recently prepared Traffic Study on Finnie Flat Road.

» Make Corrections to Water and Sewer Plans caused by the construction of a sewer line through Elk Creek to
serve the Verde Valley Medical Center.

* Upon approval of the final plat and prior to recordation, an assurance of completion will be provided.

Call to the Public for items not on the agenda.

Council Informational Reports. These reports are relative to the commitiee meetings that Council members attend. The Commitess are Camp
Verde Schools Education Foundation; Chamber of Commerce, Intergovernmental Association, NACOG Regional Council, Verde Valley Transportation
Planning Organization, Yavapai County Water Advisory Committee, and shopping locally. In addition, individual members may provide brief summaries of
current events. The Council will have no discussion or take action on any of these items, except that they may request that the item be placed on a future
agenda.

Manager/Staff Report Individual members of the Staff may provide brief summaries of current events and activitios. These summaries are strictly for

informing the Council and public of such events and activities. The Council will have no discussion, consideration, or take action on any such item, except
that an individual Council member may request that the item be placed on a future agenda.

Adjournment

g % DatefTime: 0/_/74“/9 /247%

art to A.R.S. §36-431.03.A.2 and A.3, the Council may vole fo 9o info Executive Session for purposes of consultation for fegal advice with the Town Attomey on any matter
& Agenda, or discussion of records exempt by lew from public inspection associated with an agenda item.

T

own of Camp Verde Council Chambers is accessible to the handicapped. Those with special accessibility or accommodation needs, such as large typeface print, may request these
e Office of the Town Clerk.
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DRAFT MINUTES
REGULAR SESSION
MAYOR AND COUNCIL
473 S MAIN STREET, SUITE 106
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 6, 2016 at 6:30 P.M.

Note: Council member(s) may attend Council Sessions either in person or by telephone, video, or internet
conferencing.

1.

Call to Order
Vice Mayor George cailed the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Roli Call

Mayor Charles German was absent. Vice Mayor Bruce George, Counciior Robin Whatley, Councilor Brad
Gordon, Councilor Carol German, Councilor Jackie Baker and Councilor Jessie Jones-Murdock were
present.

Also Present
Town Manager Russ Martin, Marshall Nancy Gardner, Community Development Director Michael F.
Jenkins, Library Director Kathy Hellman, Town Clerk Virginia Jones, and Recording Secretary Lynn Riordan.

Pledge of Allegiance
Vice Mayor George ied the Pledge of Allegiance.

Consent Agenda - All those items listed below may be enacted upon by ene motion and approved as consent agenda items.
Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered as a separate item if a member of Council requests.

a) Approval of the Minutes:
1) Special/Work Session — December 9, 2015
2) Executive Session — December 9, 2015 —Confidential & Sealed
3) Special Session — December 16, 2015
4)  Council Hears Planning & Zoning combined with Regular Session - December 16, 2015
b) Set Next Meeting, Date and Time:
1) Friday, January 8, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. General Plan Work Session - CANCELLED
2) Wednesday, January 13, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. Work Session
3) Wednesday, January 20, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. Regular Session
4) Friday, January 22, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. Work Session
o) Wednesday, January 27, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. Council Hears Planning & Zoning Matters
6) Friday, January 29, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. Work Session
¢} Possible approval and authorization granted to the Mayor for the execution of a Utility Easement
at 130 N Black Bridge Road to be recorded for the benefit of Arizona Public Service. Staff
Resource: Ron Long
d) Possible approval of the 2016 Policy Statement that authorized the Mayor, as the Town’s Chief
Elected Official, to support or oppose legislative bills relative to the protection of groundwater,
State Shared Revenue sources, and land use authority if the bill{s) adversely affect the Town’s
interest and needs an immediate response. Staff Resource: Mayor and Councll
&) Possible approval of Resolution 2016-954, a Resclution of the Mayor and Common Council of
the Town of Camp Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona setting the 2016 Meeting Dates and Times for
regular meetings of the Council and all Commission/Committees. Staff Resource Virginia Jones
f) Possible approval of update to Library's Internet/Computer and Wireless Use Policy to add
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‘Users are prohibited from the use of the library’s Internet or wireless network to demean,
embarrass, harass, threaten, intimidate, impersonate or buily another person’. Staff Resource:
Kathy Hellman

Councilor German requested a correction on the December 16, 2015 Minutes, page 4 ltem 11, on a motion
by Councilor Baker, seconded by Councilor German, the Council unanimously voted to approve the
Consent Agenda, except the Minutes from December 16, 2015. On a motion by Councilor German,
seconded by Councilor Baker, the Council unanimously voted to approve the December 16, 2015 Minutes
with a correction on Page 4, ltem 11, correcting the name to Harkness.

Special Announcements and presentations:
* Certificate of Appreciation to Howard Parrish

Vice Mayor George presented a Certificate of Appreciation to Howard Parrish for 50 years of dedicated
volunteer services to the Town of Camp Verde. Vice Mayor George acknowledged Mr. Parrish's years

of service on the Planning and Zoning Commission, 5 1/2 years on the Town Council, Camp Verde Calvary
since 1958, Colonel's Daughter since 1960, and 10 years establishing the Mail Trail, in addition many other
dedicated services to local organizations and residents.

Cali to the Public for ltems not on the Agenda.

Steve Goetting addressed the Common Council advising the Chamber of Commerce would be meeting
tomorrow (Thursday) at Denny's at 8:30 a.m. The Chamber would be hosting a monthly meeting the first
Thursday of every month. This month the Yavapai College Culinary Program and discussion of Proposition
123 would be on the Agenda.

Public hearing, followed by discussion, consideration and possible approval of a Series 10
(Beer/Wine} Liquor License for Kim Kenneth Kwiathowski- Circle K Stores Inc. located at 752 W.
Finnie Flat Road, Camp Verde, AZ 86322. Staff Resource: Virginia Jones

On a metion by Councilor Baker, seconded by Councilor Gordon, the Coungil unanimously voted to
approve the Application of a Series 10 (Beer/Wine) Liquor License for Kim Kenneth Kwiathowski-Circle K
Stores Inc. located at 752 W. Finnie Flat Road, Camp Verde, AZ 86322,

Staff Comment: Town Manager Russ Martin advised the Council that Mr. Kwiathowski was not present.
The application for the liquor ficense is for the proposed new location of Circle K Stores, Inc., next to the
Bashas Shopping Center at 752 W. Finnie Flats Road.

Public Hearing Open. No Public comments.

Public Hearing Closed.

Council Discussion: As requested by Council, Town Clerk Virginia Jones advised the Council that Notice
had been posted as required by law. No public comment for or against the application had been received.

Discussion, consideration and possible appointment of members to the Board of Adjustment and
Appeals and to the Planning & Zoning Commission. The terms of for three (3) years effective
January 2016 and will expire December 31, 2019. Letter of interest for Planning & Zoning
Commission have been received from Jim Hisrich, B. J. Davis, Stephen Goetting, Teresa Helm and
Buck Buchanan. Letters of interest for Board of Adjustments have been received from Buck
Buchanan, Ben Bassous, and B. J. Davis.

On a motion by Councilor German, seconded by Councilor Baker, the Council unanimeously voted to
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appoint Jim Hisrich, B. J. Davis and Teresa Helm to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a 3 (three)
year term expiring December 31, 2019.

Comments from applicant;

B. J. Davis (current Planning and Zoning Commission Chairman), addressed the Council in support of
his apptication for (re-}Jappointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission, Steve Goetting addressed
the Council in support of his application for appointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission. Teresa
Helm addressed the Council in support of her application for appointment to the Planning and Zoning
Commission. Jim Hisrich and Buck Buchanan were not present,

Questions for Applicant from Council. None

Council Discussion. As requested by Council and the applicants, Town Clerk Virginia Jones advised that
applications and letters of interest (for appointment to Commissions and Boards) are kept on file in the
Clerk’s Office for a period of two years. Councilor German advised that all applications had been
considered, and stated she would like to see Teresa Helm serving on the Commission, as she believed Ms,
Helm would be an asset, with a new perspective and a woman’s view. Councilor Whatley advised that Jim
Hisrich and B. J. Davis have done an excellent job on the Commission over the past few years, and would
iike to see them stay on the Commission fo see the new General Plan completed, stating of their
(re)appointment. Councilor Whatley also stated support of Ms. Helm’s appointment as she also believed
that Ms. Helm would bring a new perspective to the Commission. Councilor Baker stated support for the
(reyappointment of Jim Hisrich and B. J. Davis based upon their excellent service over the past years, and
also stated the appointment of Teresa Helm to the Commission would be a good addition. Vice Mayor
George thanked all applicants and advised that all applications and letters of inferest would remain active
and on file with the Clerk's Office for a period of two years.

On a motion by Councilor German, seconded by Councilor Gordon, the Council unanimously voted to
appoint Buck Buchanan, Ben Bassous, and B. J. Davis to the Board of Adjustments and Appeals fora 3
{three) year term expiring December 31, 2019.

Comments from applicant:

B. J. Davis addressed the Council in support of his application for appointment to the Board of Adjustment
and Appeals. Ben Bassous and Buck Buchanan were not present,

Questions for Applicant from Council. Councilor Baker inquired if having B. J. Davis on both the
Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board of Adjustment and Appeals would create a conflict of
interest. Mr. Davis advised that pursuant to Town Code no conflict of interest exists, however, he would
recuse himself from any matter on the Board of Adjustment and Appeals if any potential conflict of interest
should arise.

Council Discussion. Councilor German stated according to Town Code no conflict exists for Mr. Davis to
serve on hoth the Commission and the Board of Adjustment and Appeals. Councilor Gordon advised

that the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board of Adjustment and Appeals serve two separate
purposes and roles. Council Whatley stated that if a conflict should arise, the Board of Adjustment and
Appeals could proceed with only six members, if it is necessary for Mr. Davis to recuse from any matter.

Call to the Public for items not on the agenda.
None.
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10. Council Informational Reports. These reports are relative to the committee meetings that Council members attend. The

1.

Commiltees are Camp Verde Fire District, Camp Verde Schools Education Foundation; Chamber of Commerce, Intergovemmental
Association, NACOG Regional Council, Verde Valley Transportation Planning Crganization, Yavapai County Water Advisory
Committee, and shopping locally. In addition, individual members may provide brief summaries of current events. The Council will
have no discussion or take action on any of these items, except that they may request that the item be placed on a future agenda.

Councilor German advised that the Yavapai College Committee would be meeting tomorrow (Thursday).
Councilor Jones-Murdock had no report.

Councilor Baker had no report.

Councilor Gordon advised that he attended the water resources meeting on Tuesday. The meeting was
very informative and focused on water conservation.

Councilor Whatley had rio report.

Vice Mayor George stated he also attended the water resources meeting on Tuesday, advising the Linda
Spitzer had provided information on promoting water conservation.

Managerlstaff Report Individual members of the Staff may provide brief summaries of current events and activities. These
summaries are strictly for informing the Council and public of such events and activities. The Council will have no discussfon,
consideration, or take action on any such item, except that an individual Council member may request that the item be placed an a
future agenda.

Town Manager Russ Martin advised that the Legislature will be going into session soon. Updates will be

provided to all Council Members and any matter the any Council Member would like to address or discuss,
please let the Town Cierk know so that it may be placed on the Agenda.

Adjoumment. Mayor German, with no objection from Council, prenounced the meeting adjourned at
7:04 p.m,

Charles German, Mayor

Virginia Jones, Town Clerk

CERTIFICATION

| hereby certify that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate accounting of the actions of the Mayor and
Common Council of the Town of Camp Verde during the Regular Session Mayor and Common Council of the
Town Council of Camp Verde, Arizona, held on January 6, 2016. [ further certify that the meeting was duly
called and held, and that a quorum was present.

Dated this day of , 2016,

Lynn Riordan, Recording Secretary
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Agenda Item Submission Form ~Sectionl _ "~ """
Meeting Date: Jaﬁuary 20, 2016
X Consent Agenda [1 Decision Agenda [} Executive Session Requested
] Presentation Only [ ] Action/Presentation  [_1Special Session
Requesting Department: Administration
Staff Resource/Contact Person: Russ Martin

Agenda Title (be exact): Possible authorization for the Mayor &/or Vice Mayor to execute required documents to
faciiitate the donation of parcel 404-13-306 from Terry and Aloma Briggs to the Town of Camp Verde

List Attached Documents: location map (1 page)

Estimated Presentation Time: N/A

Estimated Discussion Time:

Reviews Completed by: N/A

[_] Department Head: [_] Town Attorney Comments:

Finance Review: [ ]Budgeted [ ] Unbudgeted []N/A

Finance Director Comments/Fund:
Fiscal Impact: apx. $800 Budget Code: 01-999-20-758100 Non-Departmental

Comments: This will cover Title and recording fees

Background Information: Mrs. Terry Briggs has been in contact with staff requesting the Town accept the donation
of parcel 404-13-306 in Verde Lakes Estates, which is owned by Terry and Alaoma Briggs. This lot is located near
the West Clear Creek channel, in a flood plain, and is not suitable for development. The Town owns other lots in this
area, a few are shown on the attached map. Staff has inspected the property and found no issues of illegal dumping
or structures that would be of concern.

A Standard Title policy will be obtained to ensure clear title to the property prior to the transfer deed to the Town.

Recommended Action (Motion): Move to approve and authorize the Mayor &/or Vice Mayor to execute required
documents to facilitate the donation of parcel 404-13-306 from Temry and Aloma Briggs to the Town of Camp Verde

Instructions to Clerk: Provide the approved Minutes of the January 20, 2016, Council Meeting to Yavapai Title and
Obtain the Mayor's/Vice Mayor signature on Escrow documents.
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Meeting Date: January 20, 2016
D Consent Agenda [_] Decision Agenda [ ] Executive Session Requested

[] Presentation Only [ Action/Presentation [ Pre-Session Agenda
Requesting Department: Public Works
Staff Resource/Contact Person: Ron Long

Agenda Title (be exact): Possible approval and autharization granted to the Mayor, or Vice Mayor in the Mayor's
absence, to execute both an Abandonment of Easement, and a new permanent Access Easement, to be recorded

for public roadway purposes.

List Attached Documents: Abandonment of Easement (4 pages)
Access Easement (3 pages)

Estimated Presentation Time: N/A

Estimated Discussion Time: N/A

Reviews Completed by:
[] Department Head: [X] Town Attorney Comments: Approved
] Finance Department N/A

Fiscal Impact: None

Budget Code: __20-480-20-758100 Amount Remaining: 50.00

Comments: Recording fees - estimated at less than $30.00

Background Information: In 2011, the Town purchased land located off Industrial Dr., to develop and use as the
Public Works yard. As a condition of purchase, the seller granted the Town an access easement across the seller's
adjoining property from Industrial Dr. The granted easement is for ingress/egress only and does not include any utility

easements,

As the Yard is being developed, an entrance at Peterson Dr. has been constructed, improvements have been made
to the Gaddis Wash crossing at Industrial Dr., and the seller is donating an additional .36 acres to the Town. As a
result, a public ingress/egress easement, is now aligned fully within Town Property; making the 2011, easement
unnecessary. By abandoning the 2011 easement, it removes public access from the seller’s property and releases
the Town from further responsibility of maintenance. The new Easement allows for the same/equal access for
adjoining, privately-owned properties and is fully within Town owned iand.

Recommended Action (Motion): Move to approve and grant authorization to the Mayor, or Vice Mayor in the
Mayor's absence, to execute both an Abandonment of Easement, and a new permanent Access Easement, located
on Town property, to be recorded for public roadway purposes.

Instructions to the Clerk: Obtain Mayors/Vice-Mayor's signature. Please record the Abandonment of Easement 1t
and the Access Easement 2nd



WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE
473 S. Main Street
Camp Verde, Arizona 86322

CAPTION HEADING: ABANDONMENT OF EASEMENT

DO NOT REMOVE

THIS IS PART OF THE OFFICIAL DOCUMENT

Recording Cover Sheet



ABANDONMENT OF EASEMENT

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That BETA VENTURES, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company, as Grantor, granted to the TOWN OF
CAMP VERDE, An Arizona municipal corporation, as Grantee, a permanent easement for the right of
access over and across that certain real property as recorded with Yavapai County Recorder’s Office,
Book 4815 Page 940, depicted as “Beta Venture’s LLC Portion.

The Town of Camp Verde, a municipal corporation, does hereby release the granted easement for
ingress and egress as described in Exhibit A.1 attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference
(the “Abandoned Easement”). In accordance with the Abandonment of Easement, the property
described hereby reverts to the Grantor as of January 7, 2016, and hereafter Grantor shall be solely
responsible for all costs associated with improvement and maintenance of the Abandoned Easement

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE

By:

Bruce George, Vice Mayor Date

STATE OF ARIZONA )

) ss
County of Yavapai )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, Bruce George, Vice Mayor this day of

2016, by, Town of Camp Verde

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:




EXHIBIT A.1
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

An Easement, for ingress and egress purposes, described by metes and bounds, being situated in a
portion of the North Half of Section 25, Township 14 North, Range 4 East of the Gila and Salt River
Meridian, Town of Camp Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona, being more particularly described as
follows:

COMMENCING at a found concrete nail and washer stamped “RLS 27238” monumenting the
Center of said Section 25, from which a found aluminum capped iron bar stamped “LS 12218"
monumenting the East Quarter corner of said Section 25 bears South 89°52'06” East, a measured
geodetic bearing and basis of bearings for this description (record South 89°28'00” East per
Results of Survey plat recorded at Book 8 of Land Surveys, Page 71, records of said Yavapai
County, herein referenced as record source “R1”, herein referenced as record source “R1"), a
distance of 2,648.76 feet (record 2,648.76 feet per "R1");

THENCE North 01°46°50” East (record North 02°11'50" East per “R1"), along the North-South mid-
Section line of said Section 25, a distance of 636.90 feet (record 637.00 feet per “R1” and “"R2") to
a found 2" iron bar (affixed plastic cap stamped “FOUND PT RLS 37401") monumenting the
Southwesternmost corner of that certain parcel of land described as Tax Parcel No. 403-22-025C in
Exhibit "A” at Book 3539 of Official Records, Page 522, records of said Yavapai County herein
referenced as record source “R2")

THENCE North 01°47'15” East, along said North-South mid-Section line and along the West line of
said parcel, a distance of 379.71 feet to a found %" iron bar (affixed plastic cap stamped “FOUND
PT RLS 37401") monumenting an angle point on said West line of said parcel;

THENCE North 01°43'24" East, along said North-South mid-Section line and along said West line
of said parcel of land described as Tax Parcel No. 403-22-025C ("R2"), a distance of 294.76 feet to
a found marked stone monumenting the 1/16% corner of said Section 25;

THENCE North 89°52'41” West, a distance of 135.35 feet to a found %" iron bar (affixed plastic
cap stamped “FOUND PT RLS 37401");

THENCE North 90°00'00” West, a distance of 21.42 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THENCE North 90°00°00” West, a distance of 45.58 feet to the beginning of a circular curve to the
right, concave Southerly, the radius point of which bears South 45°35'19” East, a distance of

230.06 feet;

THENCE Northeasterly, Easterly and Southeasterly, along the arc of said curve, through a central
angie of 76°28°02", an arc length of 307.04 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing
North 82°38'42” East and a chord length of 284.75 feet, to the end of said curve;

THENCE South 59°07'17” East, a distance of 71.27 feet to the beginning of a circular, tangent
curve to the left, concave Northerly, the radius point of which bears North 30°52°43” East, a
distance of 176.75 feet;

THENCE Southeasterly, along the arc of said curve, through a central angle of 05°59'22”, an arc
length of 18.48 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing South 62°06'58” East and a
chord length of 18.47 feet to the end of said curve;

THENCE South 67°40°41” West, a distance of 38.67 feet;
1



THENCE North 59°07°17” West, a distance of 66.54 feet to the beginning of a circular, tangent
curve to the left, concave Southerly, the radius point of which bears South 30°52'43” West, a
distance of 200.06 feet;

THENCE Northwesterly, Westerly and Southwesterly, along the arc of said curve, through a central
angle of 67°17'35”, an arc length of 234.97 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing
South 87°13°56” West and a chord length of 221.69 feet to the end of said curve, being the TRUE
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 0.24 acres or 10,484.35 square feet more or less

Beta Ventures Access Easement 060111.doc



When Recorded Return to:
TOWN OF CAMP VERDE
473 South Main Street
Camp Verde, Arizona 86322

ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT

The TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA, a municipal corporation (“Grantor”), does hereby designate a
permanent easement (the “Easement”), more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A.1, for the
right of ingress and egress for public roadway purposes over and through a parcel of land situated in a
portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 25, Township 14 North, Range 4 East of the Gila and Salt
River Meridian, Town of Camp Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona, as recoded in Book 4815 Page 940-6-7.

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE-GRANTOR

By:

Bruce George, Vice Mayor Date

STATE OF ARIZONA )

) ss
County of Yavapai )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, this day of ,

2016, by Charles German, Mayor, Town of Camp Verde

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:
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Town of Camp Verde

AgenE;IieLn Submission Form - Section I B 7 _ ":]

Meeting Date: January 20, 2016

Consent Agenda (] Decision Agenda [[] Executive Session Requested
U Presentation Onfy ~ [] Action/Presentation

Requesting Department: Economic Development

Staff Resource/Contact Person: Steve Ayers

Agenda Title: Possible approval of the Focused Future Il Plan.

List Attached Documents: Focused Future If Strategic Economic and Community Development Draft Plan.
Estimated Presentation Time: N/A

Estimated Discussion Time: N/A

Reviews Completed by:

Department Head:___Steve Ayers (] Town Attorney Comments: N/A

] Finance Department N/A

Fiscal Impact: None

Budget Code: _ N/A Amount Remaining:

Comments:
Background Information:

Recommended Action (Motion):

Instructions to the Clerk: N/A



B A FOCUSED FUTURE 11

$trategic Plan fer Economic Development

REVISED WORKING PAPER #4

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN

CAMP VERDE FOCUSED FUTURE ||
PARTNERS FOR STRATEGIC ACTIO N, INC.

In partnership with Applied Economics and Es! Corporation
November 2015
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Preamble

Camp Verde has a sustained partnership with its energy provider, APS, to assist with community
development efforts. As part of this partnership, APS has worked with the community several times
through its Focused Future program. A Focused Future was developed by APS to provide local
communities technical assistance in developing a grassroots community and economic development
strategic plan. The latest Focused Future effort initiated n [ate 2014 bringing together citizens,
landowners, agencies, policy makers, and other stakeholders to develop the Camp Verde Focused
Future Strategic Plan for Communhity and Economic Development. Led by an active, broad-based citizen
and stakeholder committee called the Action Team, a year-long process to devise a community and
economic development strategy was successfully completed, The Action Team’s purpose is to work
closely with APS and their consultants in completing the project. Over the course of the planning

process, the Action Team met eight times.

Page | 2

The Focused Future Il process answers three basic questions:

1. What are the opportunities to successfully strengthen and expand Camp Verde’s economy?
2. What are the appropriate strategic initiatives for economic development?
3. How should Camp Verde’s partners collaborate to be successful in implementing these

initiatives?

The tewn of Camp Verde Is the local sponsor, along with APS, for the Focused Future iI process.

Engagement
While the broad-based Action Team was responsible for the construction of this plan, the process

included several opportunities to receive feedback from and engage with community residents and
stakeholders.

In early 2015, the Action Team initiated the engagement effort by identifying two toplcal areas to
further investigate through facilitated focus groups. In January, a focus group was facilitated to better
define, understand, and consider Issues affecting and opportunities for youth and young families in
Camp Verde. While deficiencies in the community were identified, specific attention was given to what
needs to be done to keep and attract more young people to Camp Verde. In February, a focus group
was facilitated to help better define, understand, and consider the current business climate in Camp
Verde. The Action Team used feadback received from the focus groups to identify potential strategies
most relevant for the community’s sustainability and growth.

In April and May, the Action Team solicited feedback on the draft policy framework. Participants
provided feedback via an online instrument. After further definition of the framework by the Action
Team, a collaborative engagement effort in conjunction with the town’s General Plan Update was
facilitated at the town’s annual Cornfest (July 18, 2015). While Cornfest provided an opportunity for the
Action Team to speak one-on-one with interested residents and business interests, the engagement
effort was extended with a display of the draft focus area goals and strategles at the library with
feedback solicited through August 14, 2015.

Coordinated Effort
The timing of the Focused Future Il effort was Intentional: as the required update of the town’s general
plan was approaching, the council elected to move forward with Focused Future so that the work of the
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Action Team could inform the update of the economic development element. While the product of the
Focused Future U effort is a stand-alone community and economic development plan, its poiicy
framework was used to inform and update policy within the economic development element.

Plan Layout
This plan has four key components.

Economic Snapshot
Compiled at the project’s onset, this section includes data the Action Team used to better understand

the community’s economic context. Considered a “snapshot in time,” the reader should understand
that more recent data may be available.

Strategic Direction
This section sets the stage for the plan, providing the reader a primer oh economic development and

outlining the community’s guiding principles and economic development vision.

Community and Economic Development Strategy
The operating feature of the plan, this section outlines the goals, strategies, and baseline performance

indicators for each of the four focus areas.

Implementation
This section outlines recommendations for success and how the plan will be monltored and updated,

and outlines the roles and responsibilities of regional partners whose contribirtions are collectively
needed in order to rezlize success.
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Economic Snapshot

Camp Verde’s Strategic Position
Camp Verde Is located in the

geographic center of Arizona,

Strategically positioned along Interstate

17 (1-17), Camp Verde is an hour south

of Flagstaff (57 miles), and an hourand s
a half north of Phoenix {90 miles).

Page i 4

Economic Context

The economic context includes aspects measuring economic performance: population, lzbor force,
income, economy, construction, assessed value, and quality of life. Indexing local data relative to
statewide trends suggests that the town Is lagging the state in terms of economic recovery,

Population
Population growth is the most basic measure of activity levels in a community. Details about

demographic trends help explain how population may impact other facets of the economic climate.
Camp Verde’s population grew by only about 1.2 percent between 2007 and 2013 and most recently has
experienced a slight decline in population. Statewide population grew only 5 percent from 2007 to 2013,
most of which occurred prior to 2009.

In terms of demographics, the town'’s share of population under 18 in 2013 was significantly lower than
the state at about 19 percent versus 25 percent; in contrast, the share of population over 64 was nearly
twice the state average.

REYISED WORKING PAPER 34 ! Com nunit; and Ecor:omic Development Strategir. Plan
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Camp Verde Population Growth
Source: Arizona Department of Administration
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School enroliment also tells an interesting story, Increasing through 2009, dropping significantly in 2010
and 2011, and then rebounding to pre-recession levels in 2012 and 2013. Most of this growth occurred
at the elementary level, which may be an Indicator of Increases in younger working-age residents,

Labor Force and Unemployment
Labor force trends are a good overall indicator of the level of economic opportunity. The labor force in

Camp Verde grew through 2008, but has decreased steadily since that time. Since population has not
deciined, this may be an Indicator of shifting demographics. Labor force participation in the town has

also declined rapidly, from 63 percent of the population over age 18 In 2008 to 48 percent in 2013. In
comparison, labor force participation at the state level is 61 percent,

Similar to the state, Camp Verde’s unemployment rate increased significantly during the recession. The
state went from a low of 3.7 percent unemployment in 2007 to a high of 10.4 percent in 2010, while
Camp Verde went from 4.9 to 12.4 percent during that time period. Since then, employment rates have
improved.
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Camp Verde Labor Force and Unemployment Trends
Source: Arlzona Department of Administration
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Educational attainment is also a factor closely linked to unemployment rates. The share of high school
graduates in 2013 was similar to the state at 86 percent, but the share of college graduates was weil
below the state average, at 14 percent versus 27 percent.

Median Income
The most valid available measure of income at the local level is per capita income. Per capita Income

levels in the county increased 4.9 percent from 2007 to 2013 compared to a 5.6 percent increase
statewide. However, per capita income In Yavapal County in 2013 was still only 85 percent of the state
average. Some of this can be explained by the fact that the county has a larger-than-average retiree
population which is not fiving off current income and which Is not reflected the same way in the per
capita income figures.

Median household income In Yavapai County increased by only 2.9 percent during the 2007 to 2013
period. Household income In Yavapal County was about 94 percent of the state average in 2013. Income

data Is not available at the city level.

The poverty rate in Camp Verde increased dramatically during the Great Recession, rising from 17

percent In 2009 to 30 percent in 2012, |n 2009, the count

but by 2012 It was over 70 percent above the state average.
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Yavapai County Income Comparison
Source: Woods & Paoie Econornics; U.5. Census Bureau, American Cornmunity Survey
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Economy

Understanding the makeup of the region’s economic base sheds light on its ability to weather recessicns
and its response to the recovery. Yavapal County has seen a steady decrease in the number of business
establishments, with about 1,170 fewer establishments in 2013 than in 2007, Although data is only
available for Camp Verde through 2011, the town appears to follow a similar pattern. Industry
employment declined over the same time period in both the county and Camp Verde, although the
county has shown modest growth since 2011, Camp Verde represents about only 5 percent of county
employment. Overall, the county has a higher share of education/health services, hospitality, and
government employment than the state as a whole, However, the share of employment in finance and
professional services is well below average. The proportion of workers employed In export industries—
those that bring in wealth from outside the area—is ahout 14 percent in Yavapai County versus roughly

23 percent for the state.
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2013 Distribution of Employment by Industry
Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages
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Taxable Sales
Taxable sales are a key indicator of local economic conditions, particularly in an economy not heavily

driven by resource or man ufacturing industries. Sales tax collections started to decline in Camp Verde in
2008 and continued this trend through 2012, A large portion of the dediine locally came from
construction sales tax as construction activity ground to a hait. Retail sales also dropped off
significantly, although restaurants and bars fared better than other retall establishments. in August
2012, the local sales tax rate Increased from 2 to 3 percent, resulting in increased collections in 2013. In
recent years, however, Camp Verde has realized modest recovery in the local economy with sales tax

collections bouncing back to pre-recession levels.

Sales Tax Trends
Sources: Town of Camp Verde; ADOA-EPS
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Construction
Construction activity is often a leading economic indicator and was a critical factor in Arizona’s

recession. Construction activity in Camp Verde declined precipitously from 2007 to 2011, similar to

many communities in Arizona. Since then, both residential and commercial activity in Camp Verde has Page | 9
been variable but trending upward. At the state level, construction activity began to pick up in the

fourth quarter of 2011, following several years of minimal activity. Construction statewide has

continued to increase gradually since that time, dominated by residential activity.

A signature development project has been the 2015 groundbreaking for Verde Valley Medical Center’s
Camp Verde campus. Located at the northwest comer of SR 260 and Finnie Flat Road, the 26,000-
square-foot-facility will provide extended-hours primary care, imaging and laboratory facilities, and
physical therapy and rehabilitation services, including a pool for aqua therapy.

Construction Activity
Source: Town of Camp Verde
2011%; Incomplete Data 2015; Year-to-Date (November 17, 2015)
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Assessed Value
Assessed value generally fluctuates much less than construction activity, although this has been less true

during the recent recession. Total assessed vaiue in Camp Verde rose steadily through 2009 and then
dropped 41 percent over the next four years during the recession; 2013-year value is still 20 percent
below 2007 levels. Statewide assessed value is 27 percent below 2007 levels. Unlike many communities,
residential and commercial values fell by nearly equal amounts in percentage terms and were
comparable in magnitude to declines at the state level.

Residential value in the town in 2013 represented about 58 percent of the total assessed value, a ratio
that has held fairly steady since 2007, Per capita residential valuation peaked in 2009, but has fallen by
41 percent since that time compared to a 40 percent drop at the state level, Commercialf/industrial
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assessed value per employee has also fallen from its peak in 2610 and Is down about 40 percent for both
the state and the town,

ARlthough there is no impact on revenues, since the town has no property tax, assessed value trends are
indicative of general real estate market conditions, although assessed value generaily lags market value.

Page | 10

Assessed Value
Source: Arlzona Department of Revenue, Abstract of the Assessment Roll
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Quality of Life
Quality of life is an important measure of the community’s overall health. In this section, we look at

education and crime as well as cost of living.

In terms of education, dropout rates in Camp Verde are relatively low at only 1.9 percent, compared to a
state average of 3.5 percent in 2015. Class sizes are also smaller than state averages. AIMS scores for
8™-grade students are below state averages in both reading and math, but the differences were less in
2014 than in previous years. In 2014, 66 percent of students met or exceeded standards in reading
compared to 70 percent statewide; in math, 57 percent met or exceeded, compared to 59 percent
statewide.
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Education Quality: AIMS Passing Rates
Source: Arizona Department of Education
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In terms of crime, Camp Verde is substantially safer than many of the state’s urban areas. The rate of
violent crime per 100,000 population in 2013 was about half the state average, while the rate of
property crime is about 29 percert Selow the state average.

Other measures of quality of life include housing costs and commute times. As of 2013, the median
value of existing homes in Camp Verde was just slightly above the state average. Camp Verde has an
above-average share of owner-occupied housing, which tends to make a commuy nity more stable,
Commute times in Camp Verde are slightly longer than state averages, but the volume of trafficis far
less than in urban areas.

Strategic Direction

The community and economic development plan is intended to be an action-oriented strategy to
strengthen Camp Verde’s economy. Hs strategic nature focuses on actions that can be initiated or
accomplished over the next five years. 1t Is not intended to address every issue or tackle every problem
facing the community. The objective is to identify those actions that are realistic and can provide results
that build upon the community’s assets and opportunities.

The pian also recognizes the need for strong partnerships between government (municipal, tribal, and
educational} agencies, citizens, service organizations, and the business community. The plan respects
the existing roles and responsibilities of the varipus organizations but encourages collaboration in
achieving many of the strategic initiatives. Effective implementation of this plan will require
cooperation and collaboration over time to realize sustained success.
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Economic Development Primer
The purpose of the Camp Verde community and economic development plan is to serve as a guide to
local decision making, provide a road map for the region’s economic future, and serve as a benchmark

for monitoring progress over time.

Economic development efforts work to increase the standard of living for residents. Discussions about Page | 12
economic development typically focus on business growth through business retention, expansion, and

attractlon or expansion of the tax base. However, economic development is directly related to the area’s

overall quality of life and ensuring that the iocal economy is sustainable over time.

There are two types of economic actlvity:

= Basic economic activities bring new dollars into the community. These activities include tourism-
serving businesses and manufacturing. These types of activities typically create spin-off jobs for
every Job directly created.

® Non-basic activities re-circulute money that is already In the area through activities such as dry
cleaners or car washes. These activities help to keep dollars in the community and cash registers
ringing.

Both types of economic activity are critical to local economies. In order for the local and regional
economy to grow and expand, there must be new dollars coming into the area and enough business in
the community for new dollars to circulate within and not immediately leave the local economy. The
longer dollars can circulate within a local economy through non-basic activities, more wealth is created,
The term “economic leakage” describes when capital or income exits the economy rather than
remaining within the community for @ multiplying effect. The following graphic illustrates this concept,

How Your Local Economy Works

Youn
camE Ly

Somez Pafthers fer Strotegic Anilan, e
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Guiding Principles

Guiding principles reflect the community’s core values. The Action Team articulated that development
efforts would be balanced and sustainable so as not to compromise the reasons why people live and do
business in Camp Verde. These principles are intended to guide decision-making processes and define

the manner in which Camp Verde will grow and davelop.

1. Provide opportunities for citizens from a wide range of economic levels and age groups to live,
work, and thrive in the community.

2. Develop, grow, and prosper in a manner that always reflects and respects the capacity of natural
resources.

3. Foster sustainable development, encourage small businesses and entrepreneurs, and balance
future growth with cultural/historic preservation.

4. leverage existing soclal capital and foster an ethic of community investment.

5. Capitalize on opportunities to collaborate with partners and strategically align regional
investments.

6. Integrate fand use, circulation, and economic development planning.

7. Implement development decisions in a predictable, fair, and cost-effective manner that
preserves the health, safety, and welfare of residents and visitors.

8. Seek opportunities that complement existing and potential competitive advantages.

8. Define and communicate the true costs associated with development projects, including the
impacts of non-contiguous and resource-demanding development.

10. Use arts and culture to foster a creative economy and to further define @ sense of place.

Community and Economic Development Vision

A vision is an articufation of an ideal and unique future, A vision inspires, motivates, and transforms
desire into action. Camp Verde's Prosperity Is generated largely through the natural resources and
unique assets that surround and traverse our community. Our prosperity is connected to the health of
the Verde River and surrounding landscape; therefore, we balance community and economic
development with the need to preserve such assets for cy rrent and future generations.

We successfully preserve our rich cultural history, Western agrarian heritage, and naturol
resources while fostering a strategically designed, resilient economy that supports a quality of
life that encbles our families to thrive.

Community and Economic Development Strategy
The community and economic development strategic plan is outlined through focus areas. Each focus
area outlines goals, strategies, and indicators. Goals and strategies are not prioritized in this document.

Goals are desired ends or conditions that, if pursued over time, will ultimately result in the attainment
of the community vision.

Strategies are the specific activities that help to achieve the goal.

Indicators are quantifiable measures that can be used to track progress over time. For purposes of this
plan, selected indicators presented are intended to serve as a baseline measure for future performance.

REVISED WORKING PAPEF, #4 | Community and Economic Development Strategic Plan
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Focus Area: Tourism and Recreation

Camp Verde is home to a range of natural and cultural amenities, including Fort Verde State Historic
Park, the Verde River, and Montezuma Castle Natlonal Monument. The community is known for its
recreational amenities and outdoor activities, and has numerous enterprises that drive visitor activity in
the region. Combined with the rich history and community love for festivals and gatherings, a
hospltaiity and tourism-focused economic development strategy complements Camp Verde's assets. Page | 14

Goals
1. Establish Camp Verde as a destination, increasing visitor and retail traffic to grow the tax base.

2. Develop collaborative recreational, tourism, and agritourist/ecotourism programs that highlight
community assets.
3. Expand recreational and entertainment amenities.

Strategies
a. Define and implement a new five-year asset-based branding, marketing, and self-promation
program for Camp Verde.

i.  Devise a range of marketing platforms and partnerships {e.g., tour stops, press
coverage, online/mobile presence, biliboards in key markets, etc.)
li.  Develop a portfolio of tour and vacation package options {e.g., archaeological,
riparian/birding/ecotourism, Western heritage and history, etc.)
i, Communicate to residents the annual economic impact of tourism.
b. Hold quarterly tourism caucus meetings where hospitality-related entities discuss upcoming
events and strategize ways to collaborate.
c. Implement a community amenity wayfinding package and improve signage along key corridors
{i.e., 1-17, SR 260).
d. Establish a Camp Verde visltor center along 117 to promote tourism and hospitality activities,
e. Establish an outdoor, multifunctional venue (e.g., concerts, sports and games, festivals,
community events, local vendors, etc.) by leveraging existing assets or investing in new
amenities and better utilize existing indoor facilities.
f. Continue to develep a comprehensive multi-use trail network with strategic partners, including
marking all trails/traitheads and updating trail network map.
g Complete and implement the Verde River Recreation Master Plan to help enlighten the future of
potential recreational properties (i.e., Rocking River Ranch and Shield Ranch}.

Indicators
The Camp Verde area has several tourist attractions that draw visitors from around the state and

beyond, including Montezuma Castle National Monument and Fort Verde State Historic Park. Qver the
years, the number of visitors at these two facilities has seen a steady decline,

Throughout the nine-year timeframe from 2006 to 2014, the average number of visitors to Montezuma
Castle was 533,810 people. The peak year for attendance was 2008, after which began a steady decline
until the year 2014, which saw a 5 percent Increase in attendance from 2013, with nearly 408,000

visitors.
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Montezuma Castle National Monument Visitation
Saurce: Natlonal Park Service, Annual Park Visitation

https://firma.nps.gov/Stats
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Attendance at the Fort Verde State Historic Park experienced a similar trend. Based on the availabllity of
data, the peak year for attendance was fiscal year 2001 with 21,450 visitors. The next year that
attendance information is avaliable is fiscal year 2007, which shows a 21 percent decline with 16,950
visitors, followed by another 35 percent decline in fiscal year 2012. It Isn't until fiscal year 2014 that
attendance begins to increase, with a littfe over 12,000 visiting during fiscal year 2015. This decline is
due in part to a reduction to a five-day week {beginning on May 5, 2010) as part of cost-cutting
measures related to the Great Recession. Visitation has grown since the re-astablishment of seven-gay
operations {as of February 3, 2015). When examining the most recent attendance history, the average
attendance from fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 2015 is 11,168,

Fort Verde State Historic Park Visitation
Source: Fort Verde State Historic Park
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rant/bar sales, and

lodging receipts. Tax collections have experienced a large fluctuation overthe six-yvear time horizon,
From fiscal year 2009 through fiscal year 2011, tax collections were on the decline. However, beginning

in fiscal year 2012, the town saw gains in lodging and restaurant bar tax collections.
tax collections in all categories Increased, with an overall galn of 41 percent. by ring

By fiscal year 2013,
that timeframe, the

greatest galn occurred in lodging receipts at 49 percent followed by retail sales tax collections at 44

percent.
Camp Verde Tax Collections {FY 2009-2015)
Source: Town of Camp Verde
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Camp Verde Tax Collections (FY 2009-2015)
____ Source: Town of Camp Varde
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$319.393  $307,9%1  $301,925 $309,159 437,452 $473,070  $520,320

8% - 8%

When examining the per capita tax collections in Camp Verde, the greatest gain was experienced in

fiscal year 2013, going from $100 per caplta to $141 per capita.
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Per Capita Tax Collections {(FY 2009-2014)

Source: Town of Camp Verde
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Focus Area: Infrastructure aind Flacemaking Development

Camp Verde is located in the center of Arizona with two high-capacity transportation corridors bisecting
the town: I-17 and SR 260. The community is currently served by several utifities including APS, private
water companies, and a fire district.

Goals
1. Provide adequate infrastructure to support and grow business, tourism, and development.
2. Enhance sense of place (e.g., through character areas).
3. Create a walkable and multimodal circulation network, improving connectivity and livability
within the community.
4. Improve access to and awareness of amenities downtown.

Strategies

a. Extend utilitles and related infrastructure to “West 260” to support future industrial and
commercial growth.
Improve broadband speed/capacity.
Protect, develop, and expand light industrial land uses (i.e., in coordination with Yavapal
County’s sector strategy).

d. Establish gateway monuments and leverage deslgn opportunities with planned "West 260"
roundabouts.

e. Facilitate and implement a downtown circulation plan (e.g., event traffic, bike, pedestrian, etc.)

f. Establish a beautification program to improve the community’s overall aesthetics (e.g.,
streetscape).

8- Support continued “complete street” design.

h. Contlnue to implement historic preservation initiatives and the telling of Camp Verde’s story.

indicator

The mean travel time to work has not experienced a significant change from the year 2000 to 2013.
According to the Census, in 2000 the mean commute time was 28 minutes, compared ta 27 minutes
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today. The majority of workers (74 percent) commute by car, truck, or van. However, during this time
horizon the percentage of people commuting by car, truck, or van declined from 77 percent to 74
percent, while the percentage of people working from home increased from 4 percent to 10 percent.

Camp Verde Commute by Mode and Mean Trave! Time
_Source: U.S, Census Bureau (2000), American Community Survey (2013)
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27 min.

Focus Area: Business Development, Support, Attraction, and Retention

Major employers in the community include government entities, schools, and tribal enterprises. There
are also a number of small businesses and entrepreneurial ventures, and a desire exists to strengthen
the business climate so that more residents can live, work, and thrive in Camp Verde.

Goals
1. Support and grow local enterprises to maximize economic opportunities.

2. Increase the number of living-wage jobs in Camp Verde.

Strategies
a. Work with local businesses and development Interests to identify processes that can be
streamlined/optimized.
.. Improve the synchronicity and collaberation of town departments.
ii.  Combine the town’s community development and economic development departments,
fii. Develop a business guide and “start-up checklist” to assist new business establishment.
Iv.  Clarify and publish community development policies and procedures via the town’s
website,
v.  Identify key business sector targets and define an efficlent permitting process to assist
in attraction,
vi.  Develop a menu of business-locating Incentives to assist in business recruitment,
retention, and expansion,
vii.  Increase the town's capacity to find creative development proposal soiutions.
viil.  Create and maintain an inventory of available land/sites to assist in business locating,
b. Identify secondary/complementary businesses that complement and support flagship empioyers
and target opportunities for recruitment.
€. Establish a business advocacy organization to support and promote retention of small
businesses.
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. Host regular business roundtables to discuss challenges and identify collaborative
opportunities,

ii.  Hold an annual economic summit with key stakeholders (e.g., Yavapai-Apache Nation,
Town, Yavapai College, Camp Verde Unified School District, etc.) to evaluate current
economic health and strategize regional positioning.

iii.  Identify applicable business assistance needs and associated programming and
strengthen existing resource opportunities and assistance,
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Indicators
The median household income for Camp Verde residents is $38,871. More than 40 percent of residents

earn less than $30,000 a year.

Household Income Distribution
Source; U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey {2009-2013}
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There are 454 business establishments in Camp Verde that employ 3,736 people. Retail trade has the
greatest number of establishments at 85 with 24 percent, or 886 jobs. However, government employs
the greatest number of people with 26 percent, or 967 jobs. Other notable sectors include educational
services with 320 jobs, health care with 298 jobs, and construction with 281 jobs.
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Camp Verde Establishments and Employment by Sector
Source: AGS 2015, ZoomProspector o
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Focus Area: Workforce Development and Education
Camp Verde is served by multiple public and private schools. The community is aiso served by Yavapai
College and its six regional campuses and centers.

Goals
1. Develop and retain a competitive, workforce-ready population,
2. Establish a community ethic of lifelong education and training.
3. Strengthen collaborative connections between schools, businesses, and the community.

Strategies
a. Support opportunities for registered apprenticeship programs.
b. Support a continuous network of educational pathways (from elementary to secondary to post-
secondary to continuing educational opportunities).
i.  Continue to identify post-secondary, certificate, and vocational educational programs
that complement competitive advantages (i.e., hospitality, recreational sciences,
agricultural and range sciences, ecology).
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ii.  Expand and foster awareness of and enroliment in dual credit programs.
li.  Provide access to and communicate availability of soft skill training (e.g.,
communication, workforce attire, networking, etc.),
. Expand Internship, externship, and mentorship programs.
¢. Establfish a volunteer corps (service club) where youth members are matched with service
projects identified throughout the tommunity,
d. Develop a youth-focused entrepreneurial guiid/program.
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Indicators
The Camp Verde School District includes Camp Verde High Schoo! and the Verde Valley Technology

Magnet School. The graduation rates are for the Camp Verde School District and show a steady increase
in rates beginning in 2011.

Camp Verde School District Four-Year Graduation Rates
(2008-2013)

Source: Arizona Department of Education
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The four-year graduation rates vary from year to year and are a reflection of the number of students
who graduate in four years with a regular high school diploma divided by the number of students who
form the adjusted cohort for the graduating class. Beginning in 2010, Camp Verde School District out-
performs the overall graduation rates for Yavapai County and the State of Arizona,
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Four-Year Graduation Rate {2008-2013)
Source: Arizona Department of Education
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Implementation
Framework for Success

The Camp Verde Focused Future it: Community and Economic Development Strategic Pian is intended to
heip expand the regional economy and improve residents’ standard of living. The following guidance
helps to frame how success can be realized,

Coordinated Approach
Entities, organizations, and agencies Involved in economic development must work together to achieve

mutually agreed-upon goals to ensure a sustainable effort. Implementing the shared vision, goals, and
strategles as articulated within this plan is the first step toward cohesive and coordinated efforts.

Regional Collaboration
A comprehensive understanding of the region and a commitment to collaborating with entities

throughout the region is critical. Regional partners include the towns of Clarkdale and Jerome and the
cities of Cottonwood and Sedona, Yavapai County, Yavapai-Apache Nation, federal agencies such as the
National Forest Service and National Park Service, and regional entitfes, including the Northern Arizona
Councli of Governments (NACOG) and the Sustainable Economic Development Initiative {SEDV) of
Northern Arizona. The greater Camp Verde community should not consider themselves alone in
grawing a thriving economy; regional collaboration and synergistic efforts benefit all contributing

partners.

Long-Term Commitment
Economic development is not a simple checkiist; overnight achievements should not be expected.

Successful economic development Programs require long-term investments (e.g., infrastructure and
resource management} as weli as continued political commitment to forwarding objectives and

measuring progress.

Plan Evaluation and Update

The Camp Verde Focused Future Ii: Community and Econemic Development Strategic Plan serves as a
guide for regfonal community and econoemic development efforts. However, it is critical to monitor how
the plan is put into action. The town, In collaboration with its partners, Is responsible for monitoring

how the plan’s itnplementation is progressing.

Adoption
The town of Camp Verde shall adopt or accept this plan. in coordination with the town'’s general plan

update, policy direction provided herein is anticipated to become or serve as the framewaork for the
update of the economic development element.
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Communication
The Focused Future process Is grassroots in nature, fueled by the contributions of volunteers and input

from the community. Communication about the plan and its progress is critical. Upon adoption or
acceptance, the plan’s goals and strategles, as well as the town and Its partners’ short-term action plans,

should be widely communicated and progress reported.
Page | 23

Plan Distribution and Presentations

Because of the collaborative nature of this plan and the various agencies and ailies needed for its
success, the town shall announce its adoption or acceptance of this plan and distribute this framework
to regional entities and partners. It's important that the community’s economic vision is understood
and that regional efforts contribute to its realization.

Formation of a Business Advocacy Group

A key strategy outlined within this plan is the development of a business advocacy group. Camp Verde
has previously had a chamber of commerce, serving small businesses and assisting in business retention
activities, and an effort is ongolng to re-astablish a presence. While the town and other partners have
attempted to address the gap in business support activities, strong business climates are served through
an organization comprised of and for small business. Filling this business advocacy void is essential in
formaiizing and strengthening the voice of Camp Verde's business community,

Keeping Score

Whiie many of the outlined strategies will comprise the work program of the town’s economic
development director, other agencies and organizations will serve as jeaders for executing other
strategies. While the town shoulders accounta bility for this plan, its success will rest on the
contributions of the entire community; entities as outlined in Roles and Responsibilities will assist in
coordination, implementation, reporting, and other ways to contribute toward realization of this plan’s
vision.

Devising a strategy whereby the town and fts partners report and track progress should be an
immediate pricrity. Measuring community Indicators against the plan’s baseline reported herein (see;
Indicators) is one mechanism for evaluating progress; authoring a report an strategy achievements is
another mechanism for tracking effort.

The following implementation recommendations are offered:

@  Employ the Focused Future If Action Team {or simllar entity) to serve as steward to this plan,
meeting biannually to review and track progress,

* Create an annual progress report, authored in the first quarter of the year, to assist in budget
and capital improvements planning.

®  Submit annual progress reports to the community, partners {see Roles and Responsibilities), and
the program sponsor, APS.

Plan Updates
As the plan Is implemented and changes occur in the local and regional economy, the plan should also

evolve. In keeping with the collaborative nature of the Focused Future program, the town and its
partners should cooperatively review and identify potential changes or edits to the plan. Any
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recommended changes would be presented te elected officials and considered in the same manner in

which the plan was originally adopted or accepted.

Roles and Responsibilities
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CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION

This certificate is awarded to

Mike Hough

In recognition of his valuable service to the Town for his time
serving on the Board of Adjustments and Appeals

L W%w

Vice Mayor Bruce George




This certificate is aworded to

KATHY DAVIS

In recognition of his valuable service to the Town
for helping with the General Plan Update process.

v /-20-20/4

Vice Mayor Bruce George




CE_RTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION

This certificate is owarded to

TONY GIOIA

In recognition of his valuable service to the Town
for helping with the General Plan Update process.
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Vice Mavyor Bruce George
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Meeting Date: January 20, 2016

[J Consent Agenda ~ [X] Decision Agenda ] Executive Session Requested

[ Presentation Only Action/Presentation  [_]Special Session

Reguesting Department: Finance Staff Resource/Contact Person: Mike Showers

Agenda Title {be exact): Presentation and possible acceptance of the Town of Camp Verde’s FY15 Audit.

List Attached Documents: 1) Town of Camp Verde Comprehensive Annual Financial Report - June 30, 2015
2) Town of Camp Verde Report on Internal Controls — June 30, 2015

Estimated Presentation Time: 10 minutes

Estimated Discussion Time: 5 minutes

Reviews Completed by:

X Department Head: [0 Town Attorney Comments:

Finance Review: [ ] Budgeted [] Unbudgeted [<] N/A

Finance Director Comments/Fund:
Fiscal Impact: N/A

Comments: None

Background Information: The annual financial review meets all required components for the Town's annual filing
requirements. There are no significant findings in the audit and we have again received an unmodified {or “clean”)
opinion. This is the third year in a row the Town has completed a full CAFR. The last two year's CAFR received the
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from GFOA (Government Finance Cfficers Association). We
hope to be awarded that honor again this year. Scott Graff from Colby & Powell, our auditing firm, will present the
audit to Council.

Recommended Action (Motion): Acceptance of the Town of Camp Verde Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
for June 30, 2015 and the Town of Camp Verde Report on Internal Control for June 30, 2015.

Instructions to the Clerk: N/A
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards
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1535 W. Harvard Avenue, Suite 101 - Gilbert, Arizona 85233
Tel: (480) 635-3200 - Fax: {480) 635-3201

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council
Town of Camp Verde, Arizona

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Town of Camp Verde, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Camp Verde, Arizona’s, basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2015,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Camp Verde’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Town of Camp Verde's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
cxist that were not identified. Given thesc limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compiliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Camp Verde’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

@%M

December 22, 2015
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Town of Camp Verde

Gateway to the Verde Valley
¢ 473 S. Main Street ¢ Camp Verde, Arizona 86322 ¢
¢ Telephone: 928.554.0000 ¢ Fax: 928.554.0002 ¢
¢ Www.campverde.az.gov

December 22, 2015
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Town Council and Citizens of the Town of Camp Verde:

We are pleased to submit the Town of Camp Verde Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The Town annually publishes audited financial statements
after the close of each fiscal year which includes a complete set of financial statements presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) which are audited by a firm of
licensed certified public accountants in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS).

Town management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
Town management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both
to protect the Town’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information
for the preparation of the Town’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of
internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town’s comprehensive framework of internal
controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements will be free of material misstatement. To the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects and is designed to fairly represent the
financial position of the operations of the various funds of the Town.

Colby & Powell, PLC, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified (“clean’) opinion on
the Town of Camp Verde’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The
independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Town operates. Part of this
perspective i1s Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) which can be found immediately
following the independent auditor’s report, provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of
the basic financial statements of the Town. The MD&A should be reviewed in conjunction with this
letter of transmittal.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The Town of Camp Verde, Arizona, incorporated in 1986, is located in the Verde River Valley of
Yavapai County and is recognized as the 2012 Centennial Center of Arizona. The Town’s land size is
42.6 square miles and serves a population of approximately 11,000 people. Camp Verde is located on
I-17, in-between Flagstaff and Phoenix and enjoys a mild climate at an elevation of 3,147 feet.

The Town operates under the council-manager form of government. The Town Council, which has
policy-making and legislative authority, consists of a mayor and a six-member council. The Council is
responsible for, among other things, passing ordinances and resolutions and adopting the annual
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budget. The members of the Town Council also appoint the membership of various Town committees
and hire the Town Manager, Town Attorney and Magistrate. The Town Manager is responsible for
carrying out the policies, ordinances and resolutions of the Council and for overseeing the day-to-day
operations of the Town. The Town Council is elected on a nonpartisan “at large” basis. Council
members are elected to four-year staggered terms with three council members elected every two years.
The Mayor is also elected for a two-year term.

The Town provides a full range of services including: police, animal control, magistrate court, planning
and zoning, building code enforcement, the construction and maintenance of streets and other
infrastructure, wastewater, recreational activities, cultural events and a public library. The Town also
operates and maintains a community swimming pool as well as community parks and sports fields. It
is important to note that the Camp Verde Fire Department is not a part of the Town nor under the
Town’s control but does work closely with the Town.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Town’s financial planning and control. All
departments construct their programs and services based on the needs of the community and, no less
importantly, the priorities of the Town Council. The Town Manger reviews departmental budget
requests and may recommend changes to a department’s budget priorities and/or projects. The Town
Manger then presents a proposed, balanced budget to the Town Council for review. The proposed
budget is presented to the Town Council in May of each year. The proposed budget becomes the focal
point of the community conversation with respect to the allocation of financial resources. At the
conclusion of the process, the proposed budget, including any additions or deletions thereto, becomes
the tentative budget which is presented for adoption by the Town Council in early June. A public
hearing is scheduled on the tentative budget generally during the first business meeting in July.
Subsequent to the close of that hearing, the Town’s final budget is adopted by the Council.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

Local Economy:

In its early years, the Town’s economy was based primarily upon agriculture and tourism. In later
years, the Town experienced an increase in manufacturing activities as well as retail trade. Currently,
the majority of the Town’s revenue base is comprised of tax revenues generated both from local sales
taxes and State shared tax revenues which include allocations of state income tax, sales tax, fuel tax
and motor vehicle-in-lieu tax.

Local sales tax revenues have grown 65% over the 4-year period starting in FY12. While a large
portion of that growth comes from increases to the tax rate (2% to 3.65% over the 4 years) it also
reflects increased spending in our area and presumably a comfortableness with current economic
conditions.

Tax revenues from the State have grown an average of 8% over the last 4 years and are projected to
grow another 12% in FY16 which combined with the local tax revenue outlook, give Camp Verde a
stable economic base.

Camp Verde is located at the center of Arizona and within 1 hour of 4 dramatically different climates
and cities, Phoenix to the South, Flagstaff to the North, Prescott to the West and Payson to East. This
puts our Town in a great location to take advantage of travel and tourism within our area.
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From 2004 to 2008, the Town saw a 9% population increase over the 4 year period. However, from
2008 to 2013 that increase drops to 1%. Current population growth within the Town has flat-lined,
thought the expectation for our area (YYavapai County) is moderate growth over the next several years.
The dramatic slow-down in population growth was highlighted by the construction industry in Camp
Verde which slowed considerably. Tax revenues from construction dropped 23% from FY13 to FY14.
Construction has seen a turn-around though in recent years, increasing 12% from FY14 to FY15 and
another 39% through the first quarter of FY16 with many projects already moving forward in our
Community Development department.

Long-Term Financial Planning:

Town Council is working hard to further develop and enhance long-term planning processes. The
Town is in the final stages of accepting their new General Plan and has developed for the first time, a
strategic plan that will help focus the utilization of Town resources towards long-term goals. The
Strategic Plan also becomes a driving factor behind the development of our 5-year Capital
Improvement Plan as well. Camp Verde is dedicated to enhancing the quality of life for its citizens and
providing municipal services in a fiscally responsible manner. To this end, Camp Verde has strived to
remain financially strong and has an Unassigned General Fund balance of roughly $1.9 million, which
amounts to 25% of FY16 budgeted outflows in the General Fund.

Major Initiatives:
This last fiscal year has seen the beginning of a number of large projects in our Town.
1) Construction began on a new 26,000 square foot Verde Valley Medical Center.
2) The Town began construction on a new two-story, 17,000 square foot library.
3) Preparations for the expansion of Highway 260 by Arizona Department of Transportation are
nearly complete and the project is set to move forward in 2016.
4) The expansion of sewer lines along Highway 260 is another project that is moving forward in
conjunction with the Highway expansion project mentioned above, which will enable the
economic development of that area.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the dedicated support and
cooperation of the Town Manager and Town employees from all departments. Credit must also be
given to the Mayor and members of the Town Council for their desire and determination to maintain
the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the Town of Camp Verde’s finances.
Finally, a special thank you to the auditors of Colby & Powell for their insight, professionalism and
efficiency.

Respectfully submitted,

/,,// . L /

Russell A. Martin Michael E. Showers
Town Manager Finance Director
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CoLBY &
Cg{) PowEgLL, PLC

1535 W. Harvard Avenue, Suite 101 - Gilbert, Arizona 85233
Tel: (480) 635-3200 - Fax: (480) 635-3201

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Town Council
Town of Camp Verde, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Camp Verde, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Camp Verde, Arizona,
as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2015, the Town
adopted new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos.
68 and 71. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 - 16, Budgetary Comparison Schedules on
pages 62-65, Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability — Cost-
Sharing Pension Plans on page 67, Schedule of Changes in the Town’s Net Pension Liability
(Asset) and Related Ratios — Agent Pension Plans on page 68, Schedule of Town Pension
Contributions on page 69, and Schedule of Agent OPEB Plans’ Funding Progress on page 71 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Camp Verde, Arizona’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary
comparison schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison
schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
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information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 22, 2015, on our consideration of the Town of Camp Verde, Arizona’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Camp Verde, Arizona’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Reporting Required by Arizona Revised Statutes

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the
Town failed to use highway user revenue fund monies received by the Town pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2 and any other dedicated state transportation
revenues received by the Town solely for the authorized transportation purposes, insofar as they
relate to accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining
knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other
matters may have come to our attention regarding the Town’s noncompliance with the use of
highway user revenue fund monies and other dedicated state transportation revenues, insofar as
they relate to accounting matters.

[ty A Tt/

December 22, 2015
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As management of the Town of Camp Verde, Arizona (Town), we offer readers of the Town’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Please read it in conjunction with the Town’s basic
financial statements, which begin on page 17.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Governmental total assets increased by just over $3.7 million, which is directly attributable
to increases in restricted cash from bond monies received for the construction of a new
library.

o Net position from governmental activities (excluding the adjustments for GASB 68 net
pension liability) increased by $1.3 million to $16.47 million, representing an 8 percent
increase over fiscal year 2013-14. After adjusting for net pension liability, net position is
virtually unchanged at $11 million.

e Net position for business-type activities fell by $647,242 and can be directly attributed to
depreciation expense of $746,528.

e General revenues from governmental activities accounted for just under $6.1 million of
revenues, or 73 percent of all revenues from governmental activities. State shared
revenues and local sales tax revenues make up 95% of the general revenues and together
show an increase of $450,229 from fiscal year 2013-14.

e Expenses from governmental activities were up from fiscal year 2013-14 by nearly $1.24
million, most of which ($842,174) comes from budgeted increases in general government
and public safety.

¢ Among major governmental funds, the General Fund had $6.8 million in revenues, which
primarily consisted of taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and
forfeitures, and intergovernmental revenues. The total expenditures in the General Fund
were just under $6.24 million increasing the general fund balance, after allowing for net
transfers out of $497,796, by $67,862. HURF Fund revenues of $862,803 were only slightly
higher ($36,390) than last fiscal year, but a decrease from last year's combined
expenditures and net transfers out of $59,279 increased the HURF fund balance by
$112,474. The Parks fund was virtually unchanged.

e The Library fund became a major fund this year due to the Town securing funding through
revenue bonds ($3.5 million) for the construction of a new Town Library.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic
financial statements. The Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s finances, in a manner similar
to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result
in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused compensated absences).

In the government-wide financial statements, the Town’s activities are presented in the
following categories:

e Governmental activities — The Town’s basic services are included here, such as general
government, public safety, public works and streets, health and welfare, culture and
recreation, and economic and community development. Sales taxes, intergovernmental,
licenses and permits, charges for services, and fines and forfeits revenue finance most of
these activities.

e Business-type activities — The Town’s only business-type activity is the wastewater
enterprise fund. Town took over the Camp Verde Sanitary District wastewater operations
on July 1, 2013. Those operations are included here and include fee-for-service billing of
residential and commercial accounts as well as all expenses for operating and maintaining
the sewer system.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating the Town’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.



= = |

P — -

© TOWNOFCAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
~ MANAGEMENT'S DJrSCJdSSJrQNANaANALYSIS_‘('M'B'&#)——ﬁ
“FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

,r’\cs

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

P

By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains fifteen (15) individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances starting on page 21 for the General,
HURF, Library and Parks Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the
other eleven (11) governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements in the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules
which can be found on pages 74-92.

Proprietary funds. The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund; an enterprise fund for
wastewater activities. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The basic proprietary
fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-25 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the Town. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town’s own
programs. The Town maintains two separate fiduciary funds. Information on these funds can
be found in the Other Financial Statements section of this report on page 92.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic
financial statements on pages 28-61.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town’s budget
process. The Town adopts an annual budget for all governmental funds. A budgetary
comparison schedule has been provided for the General, HURF, Library and Parks Funds as
required supplementary information which can be found on pages 62-65. The Town also
reports certain required supplementary information concerning the Town’s pension plans.
Required supplementary information schedules concerning these plans can be found on pages
67 —71.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds
are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.



= TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA - ==

“FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE’SO 2015 - -

W ———
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the Town, total assets exceeded total liabilities by $29.45 million as of June 30,
2015 which is a 3% drop from last year. The following table presents a summary of the Town’s
net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Assets
Current assets $ 8,683,721 $ 5,226,680 $ 846,128 $ 892,220 $ 9,529,849 $ 6,118,900
Capital assets, net 14,159,186 13,858,202 18,069,267 18,613,499 32,228,453 32,471,701
Other non-current assets 110,897 126,903 - - 110,897 126,903
Total assets 22,953,804 19,211,785 18,915,395 19,505,719 41,869,199 38,717,504
Liabilities
Current and other liabilities 1,633,935 1,062,788 74,918 57,786 1,708,853 1,120,574
Long-term liabilities 11,304,980 7,340,231 482,963 401,948 11,787,943 7,742,179
Total liabilities 12,938,915 8,403,019 557,881 459,734 13,496,796 8,862,753
Deferred Inflows/(Outflows) of Resources
Def'd net outflows related to pensions (1,070,604) (422,232) (72,710) (31,482) (1,143,314) (453,714)
Def'd inflows related to debt defeasance 65,164 - - - 65,164 -
Total net position $  (1,005,440) $ (422,232) $ (72,710) $ (31,482) $ (1,078,150) $ (453,714)
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 11,390,529 10,488,341 18,069,267 18,613,499 29,459,796 29,101,840
Restricted 5,567,076 2,270,348 - - 5,667,076 2,270,348
Unrestricted (5,937,276) (1,527,691) 360,957 463,968 (5,576,319) (1,063,723)
Total net position $ 11,020,329 $ 11,230,998 $ 18,430,224 $ 19,077,467 $ 29,450,553 $ 30,308,465

Governmental Activities. The Town’s net position from governmental activities fell $210,669
dollars from the restated fiscal year 2013-14 balance. The following are current year
transactions that had a significant impact on the Town’s net position:

e The Town received revenue bond funding in the amount of $4,904,000 ($1,372,950
amount of which was used to payoff the Town’'s GADA loan). This shows up as a
significant increase in both long-term liabilities and current assets.

e Due to the implementation of GASB 68, there is a prior period adjustment for net
pension liability of $4.36 million and a current year adjustment of $1,089,624.

o Net capital purchases of $803,294 was comprised mostly of Construction in Progress for
several projects including the new Town library and drainage improvements.

Business-Type Activities. The Town’s net position from business-type activities fell $647,242
from fiscal year 2013-14. The following are current year transactions that had a significant
impact on the Town’s net position:

o Depreciation in the amount of 746,528.
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Statement of Activities
The following table presents a summary of the changes in net position for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
F F F F F
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 735,666 $ 738,650 $ 1,029,111 $ 1,036,287 $ 1,764,777 $ 1,774,937

Operating grants and 1,084,065 1,103,424 1,084,065 1,103,424
contributions
Capital grants and 438,025 182,421 438,025 182,421

contributions
General revenues: - R

Town sales taxes 2,863,839 2,597,901 2,863,839 2,597,901
Franchise taxes 266,973 267,059 266,973 267,059
State shared revenue 2,942,726 2,758,435 2,942,726 2,758,435
Investment earnings 15,456 27,714 909 1,621 16,365 29,335
Miscellaneous 7,086 13,090 7,086 13,090
Special ltems: 19,707,171 - 19,707,171
Total revenues 8,353,836 7,688,694 1,030,020 20,745,079 9,383,856 28,433,773
Expenses
General government 2,776,465 2,383,176 2,776,465 2,383,176
Public safety 3,050,800 2,601,915 3,050,800 2,601,915
Public works and streets 1,156,551 1,006,300 1,156,551 1,006,300
Health and welfare 123,700 131,233 123,700 131,233
Culture and recreation 724,730 684,280 724,730 684,280
Economic and community 507,702 411,023 507,702 411,023
development
Interest on long-term debt 224,557 107,141 224,557 107,141
Wastewater 1,677,262 1,667,612 1,677,262 1,667,612
Total expenses 8,564,505 7,325,068 1,677,262 1,667,612 10,241,767 8,992,680
Increase/ (decrease) in (210,669) 363,626 (647,242) 19,077,467 (857,911) 19,441,093
net position
Net position (restated),
beginning 11,230,998 10,867,372 19,077,466 - 30,308,464 10,867,372
Net position, ending $11,020,329 $11,230,998 $18,430,224 $19,077,467 $29,450,553 $30,308,465

Governmental Activities. Total governmental revenues increased $665,142 (8%) from last
year to $8.35 million. While this reflects increased sales tax activity it is also attributable to an
increase in the Town sales tax rate in March 2015 which accounted for $138,560 (52%) of the
total $265,938 increase (See revenue schedule below). Grants and contributions were up
$236,245 (18%) over last year's numbers and state shared revenues (which includes state
income and sales taxes as well as vehicle license tax) also increased this last year by $184,291
(7%).
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Annual Local Tax Revenues
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Expenses increased most notably in the areas of general government ($393,289) and public
safety ($448,885). A significant amount of these two increases is an adjustment for the current
year net pension liability of $347,208 for the two combined; $441,252 over all functional areas.
Public safety also received and spent a $120,000 equipment grant through DOHS and had
increased salaries of nearly $135,000 due mostly to 2 new positions.

Governmental Governmental
Fiscal Year 2015 Expenses Fiscal Year 2014 Expenses
3%

B General government 1%
B Public safety

B Public works and streets
B Health and welfare

B Culture and recreation

B Economic and community

© Interest on long-term debt
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Business-Type Activities. The Town’s only business-type activity is its wastewater
department. This enterprise fund is funded almost exclusively through fee-for-service
revenues. From fiscal year 2013-14 to 2014-15, fee-for-service revenues were virtually
unchanged, falling only $7,176 (.7%). It is important to note that a $19.7 million revenue item
from last fiscal year came from the transfer of operations of the Camp Verde Sanitary District to
the Town of Camp Verde. While the Town received all assets, including infrastructure, the
corresponding debt remains with the sanitary district and is paid through property taxes
assessed on entities within the sanitary district completely unrelated to wastewater operational
revenues. These property tax payments are maintained separately in an agency fund for bi-
annual debt payments.

Total expenses increased slightly by $9,650. The entire amount of the decrease in net position
of $647,242 can be found in the depreciation expense for the year of $746,528.

Functional Net Governmental Activities

The following table presents the cost of the major Town functional activities. The table also
shows each function’s net cost (total cost less charges for services generated by the activities
and intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs). The net cost shows the financial
burden that was placed on the State’s and Town’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Year Ended June 30, 2015 Year Ended June 30, 2014
Total Net Total Net
Expenses (Exp) / Rev Expenses (Exp) / Rev

Governmental activities

General government $ 2,776,465 $ (2,751,231) $ 2,383,176 $ (2,332,003)

Public safety $ 3,050,800 (2,371,977) 2,601,915 $ (2,076,083)

Public works and streets $ 1,156,551 (95,026) 1,006,300 $ (37,284)

Health and welfare $ 123,700 (123,700) 131,233 $ (131,233)

Culture and recreation $ 724,730 (500,347) 684,280 $ (409,109)

Economic and community $ 507,702 (239,911) 411,023 $ (207,720)
development

Interest on long-term debt $ 224,557 (224,557) 107,141 (107,141)
Net $ 8,564,505 $ (6,306,749) $ 7,325,068 $ (5,300,573)

Business-Type Activities

Wastewater $ 1,677,262 $ (648,151) $ 1,667,612 $ (631,325)
Net $ 1,677,262 $ (648,151) $ 1,667,612 $ (631,325)
Total $ 10,241,767 $ (6,954,900) $ 8,992,680 $ (5,931,898)

Of the total $8.56 million governmental expenses, $2.26 million (26%) were covered by 1) those
who directly benefitted from the services and 2) grants and contributions. The remaining $6.3
million was subsidized mostly by state and local taxes of $6 million. The wastewater services
division (Business-type activities) total expenses of $1.67 million, less depreciation, was
covered with fee-for-service revenues.

-11 -
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the Town’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance
may serve as a useful measure of the Town'’s net resources available for spending at the end of
the fiscal year.

As of the end of the Town’s fiscal year, its governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of just under $7.8 million, a $3.26 million increase from the prior year. Approximately
16 percent of the ending fund balance ($1.24 million) constitutes unassigned fund balance,
which is virtually identical to the prior year. Unassigned fund balance is the amount available
for spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved,
committed or assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been assigned, committed or restricted for long term receivables ($632,000), HURF
($1,404,240), library building construction ($3,464,008), capital improvements ($405,029) and
various other special programs ($644,835).

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the total fund balance of the General Fund was $2.57 million which is slightly higher than
last year's $2.5 million. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare fund balance to fund expenditures. For fiscal year 2014-15, fund balance in the
General Fund is 41% of total General Fund expenditures.

The fund balance in the Library Fund is uncharacteristically high ($3.2 million) due to the receipt
of revenue bond monies in fiscal year 2014-15 that were only partially expended this year.
These funds will be fully expended in the coming fiscal year, 2015-16, for the construction of
the new library.

The HURF fund balance increased $112,474 from last year due to a mild increase in revenues
(4%) and decrease in expenses (14%) most notably from capital outlays which decreased
$100,759.

Proprietary funds. The proprietary fund financial statements are prepared on the same
accounting basis and measurement as the government-wide financial statements, but provide
additional detail of the Town’s enterprise fund.

Wastewater revenues and expenses were virtually the same as last year as mentioned

previously in the government-wide analysis. Net position in the enterprise fund decreased
$647,242 (3%) all directly attributable to depreciation.

-12 -
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Schedules showing the budget amounts compared to the Town’s actual financial activity for the
General, HURF, Library and Parks Funds are provided in this report as required supplementary
information. Budgetary highlights for the General Fund are as follows:

¢ All functional areas are under the total expense budget for the year.

e General Fund expenditures in total were under budget by 4%.

General Fund Expenses: Budget to Actual
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1500000

1000000 H Budget

500000 D n = Actual
0 c

General Public Safety  Public Works Culture & Community
Government & Streets Recreation  Development

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2015, the Town had invested $18.5 million in governmental capital assets and
$23.4 million in business-type assets (both before depreciation) including land, buildings,
facilities, vehicles, computers, equipment, and infrastructure assets. Total depreciation
expense for the year in governmental and business-type activities was $559,995 and $746,528
respectively. More information on debt and long-term liabilities can be found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements under Note 5 — Capital Assets.

The following schedule presents capital asset balances and accumulated depreciation for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

Govemmental Activitie s Business-Type Activities Total
T 2015 T 2014 T 2015 T 2014 T 2015 T 2014
Land $ 5868719 $ 5868719 $ 1275828 $ 1275828 $ 7144547 $ 7144547
Construction in progress 1,549,184 871,704 102,264 101,522 1,651,448 973,226
Buildings and improvements 3,857,920 3,833,184 553,417 406,260 4411337 4,239 444
Infrastructure 3,377,961 3,377,961 21182275 21182275 24 560,236 24 560,236
Machinery and equipment 2,912,901 2811823 325,849 303,756 3,238,750 3,115,579
Improvements other than buildings 953,431 953,431 - 953,431 953,431
Accumulated depreciation (4,360,930) (3,858,620) (5,370,366) (4,656,142) (9,731,296) (8,514,762)
Total $ 14,159,186 $ 13,858,202 $ 18,069 267 $ 18,613,499 $ 32228453 $ 32471701

-13-
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CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Key factors for Capital assets during the current fiscal year include the following:
e The Town added $677,480 in construction in progress expenses. The largest
investments was in the new library building for $344,988.
e The increase in machinery and equipment comes from grant expenditures for $117,622
of new communication equipment in the marshal’s office.

DEBT AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

As of June 30, 2015, the Town had just under $12.6 million in long-term debt and long-term
liabilities, $12.1 million for governmental activities and $500,000 for business-type activities. Of
the $12.1 million governmental liabilities amount, $6.2 million is in bond and capital lease debt
of which $323,030 is due within one year. Principle payments for bond and capital lease debt
for the year were $1.7 million. The Town does not have any business-type activity debt.
Compensated absences increased $56,632 (14%) for governmental activities and $6,726 (27%)
for business-type activities. The largest impact on long-term liabilities is the adjustment for
GASB 68 net pension liability of $5,450,696 and $482,963 for governmental and business-type
activities respectively. The net pension liability for governmental activities is 45% of the total
balance and 94% of the business-type balance. The following table presents a summary of the
Town’s outstanding long-term debt and compensated absences for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2014 and 2013. More information on debt and long-term liabilities can be found in the
Notes to the Financial Statements under Note 7 — Long-Term Liabilities.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2015 " 2014 " 2015 " 2014 " 2015 " 2014
2014 Revenue bonds $ 4,904,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 4,904,000 $ -
2011 Revenue bonds 798,227 871,084 - - 798,227 871,084
2005 Revenue bonds - 1,410,000 - - - 1,410,000
2005 Revenue bond premium - 72,406 - - - 72,406
Capital leases 471,967 625,669 - - 471,967 625,669
Net pension liability 5,450,696 4,361,072 482,963 401,948 5,933,659 4,763,020
Compensated absences 447,334 390,702 31,819 25,093 479,153 415,795
Total $ 12,072,224 $ 7,730,933 $ 514,782 $ 427,041 $ 12,587,006 $ 8,157,974

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The Town of Camp Verde's revenue base is funded primarily by town sales tax and shared
revenues from the State of Arizona. These revenue sources comprise approximately 70% on
average of the Town's revenues. The local economy has stabilized and recently has increased
somewhat from the previous years and our primary revenue sources have as well. This has
allowed the Town to move forward with several capital improvement projects and this year we
began construction on a new library facility as well as preparing for infrastructure needs in the

-14 -



e = = ———
= =

‘__’ ——— TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA .gj
,_MANAGEMEN:I' SDFSGUSSL@NANDANALYS%(‘M‘B&#O——i
- FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE-30, 2015 -

,,)-—’_\Qs

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET (CONTINUED)

future specifically along Highway 260. Another large construction project started in 2015 will be
a new 26,000 square foot medical center on 29 acres of land. Both projects have spurred-on
construction tax revenues in late fiscal year 2014-15. We will continue in fiscal year 2015-16
with the completion of these as well as several other small capital projects. It is also expected to
be an even stronger construction year in 2016 with several new industrial warehouses as well
as a couple of new retail buildings along Finnie Flat Road. Because of these construction
related “one-time” revenues, our town council and staff will continue to monitor activity
throughout the year to ensure the budget continues to guide prudent spending.

Staff continues to tighten projected spending in the budget preparation but has continued to
consistently under-spend even their budgeted expenses each year. Departments continued to
save across all areas of their budgets. We continue to make progress on expensive,
longstanding capital projects within the budget. The Town is expecting to see additional
revenue generation from current growth and must be able to sustain that revenue if we are to
make faster or more comprehensive progress on long awaited capital improvements beyond
the library. In the coming years we will continue a plan to only spend what we take in and hope
to maintain our reserves through a conservative projection of revenues as well as continued
conservative spending by departments. It is important to note that during the time since 2007,
22 positions were vacated to maintain an adequate reserve while accomplishing some
outstanding capital projects. In the past few years we were able to replace most of these
previously lost positions to a point just short of where we were back in 2007 but continue to
expand our service levels and project accomplishments in areas that hopefully will generate
new revenue and serve the community even better.

Management continues to believe that the conservative approach taken over the past few years
has led to the success of the Town in maintaining its service delivery system in a way that
necessitates the use of only a moderate amount of the financial resources of the Town. As a
better economy continues to be realized, it is hoped that the new revenues will allow for even
more capital projects to become reality. An increase local sales tax late in fiscal year 2014-15
has led to a new revenue source that will fund projects in the Capital Improvement Plan that
have been put off for years as well as allow for the addition of others that had yet to even be
considered due to the limited capital resources available in the past.

As a result of the thoughtful leadership of the town council and the professional judgment of the
Town's management team, we continue to be poised to manage the financial affairs of the
Town of Camp Verde with a high degree of vigilance, discipline and transparency. We are
confident that we have and can continue to address and manage the challenges we face and
look forward to finding ways to maintain the positive return of healthier revenues that will allow
for continued high quality community services and capital construction and investment. Many
planned construction projects are now in the works with more to come over the next year as
well as years to come.

-15-
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CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the Town’s finances and to demonstrate the Town’s
accountability for the resources it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, contact the Town Finance Department at:

Town of Camp Verde
Finance Department

395 South Main Street
Camp Verde, Arizona 86322.

-16 -



TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,545,530 $ 738,406 5,283,936
Cash - restricted 3,405,537 - 3,405,537
Accounts receivable - net 224,407 106,307 330,714
Due from other governments 508,247 1,415 509,662
Loan receivable 110,897 - 110,897
Capital assets, not being depreciated 7,417,903 1,378,092 8,795,995
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 6,741,283 16,691,175 23,432,458
Total assets 22,953,804 18,915,395 41,869,199
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,816,598 157,165 1,973,763
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 430,966 43,099 474,065
Accrued expenses 162,781 - 162,781
Interest payable 117,739 - 117,739
Unavailable loan revenue 70,002 - 70,002
Court bonds payable 6,041 - 6,041
Claims payable 79,162 - 79,162
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within 1 year 767,244 31,819 799,063
Due in more than 1 year 11,304,980 482,963 11,787,943
Total liabilities 12,938,915 557,881 13,496,796
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 745,994 84,455 830,449
Deferred inflows related to debt defeasance 65,164 - 65,164
Total deferred inflows of resources 811,158 84,455 895,613
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 11,390,529 18,069,267 29,459,796
Restricted for:
Highways and streets 1,404,240 - 1,404,240
Housing redevelopment 147,625 - 147,625
Special programs 4,015,211 - 4,015,211
Unrestricted (deficit) (5,937,276) 360,957 (5,576,319)
Total net position $ 11,020,329 $ 18,430,224 29,450,553

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Program Revenue

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Charges Operating Capital Primary Government
for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions / Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government:
Governmental activities
General government $ 2,776,465 $ 25234 $ - $ - $ (2,751,231) % - $  (2,751,231)
Public safety 3,050,800 457,097 89,545 132,181 (2,371,977) - (2,371,977)
Public works and streets 1,156,551 16,214 845,963 199,348 (95,026) - (95,026)
Health and welfare 123,700 - - - (123,700) - (123,700)
Culture and recreation 724,730 42,332 132,873 49,178 (500,347) - (500,347)
Economic and community development 507,702 194,789 15,684 57,318 (239,911) - (239,911)
Interest of long-term debt 224,557 - - - (224,557) - (224,557)
Total governmental activities 8,564,505 735,666 1,084,065 438,025 (6,306,749) - (6,306,749)
Business-type activities

Wastewater 1,677,262 1,029,111 - - - (648,151) (648,151)
Total business-type activities 1,677,262 1,029,111 - - - (648,151) (648,151)
Total primary government $ 10,241,767 $1,764,777 $1,084,065 $ 438,025 $ (6,306,749) $ (648,151) $  (6,954,900)

General revenue:

Taxes:

Sales Taxes 2,863,839 - 2,863,839
Franchise tax 266,973 - 266,973
State shared revenue 2,942 726 - 2,942,726
Investment income 15,456 909 16,365
Miscellaneous 7,086 - 7,086
Total general revenue 6,096,080 909 6,096,989
Change in net position (210,669) (647,242) (857,911)
Net position, July 1, 2014, restated 11,230,998 19,077,466 30,308,464
Net position, June 30, 2015 $ 11,020,329 $ 18,430,224 $ 29,450,553

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2015

Library Non-Major Total
General HURF Building Parks Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,900,554 $ 1,331,154 $ 248,027 $ 6,794 $ 1,059,001 $ 4,545,530
Cash - restricted 91,311 - 3,314,226 - - 3,405,537
Accounts receivable, net 224,407 - - - - 224,407
Due from other governments 255,549 80,111 - - 172,587 508,247
Loans receivable - - - - 110,897 110,897
Due from other funds 673,323 - - - - 673,323
Total assets $ 3,145,144 $ 1,411,265 $ 3,562,253 $ 6,794 $ 1,342,485 $ 9,467,941
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 219,918 $ 7,025 $ 98,245 $ - $ 105,778 $ 430,966
Accrued expenses 162,781 - - - - 162,781
Court bonds payable 6,041 - - - - 6,041
Claims payable 79,162 - - - - 79,162
Due to other funds - - - 632,000 41,323 673,323
Total liabilities 467,902 7,025 98,245 632,000 147,101 1,352,273
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue 102,476 - 219,695 322,171
Total deferred inflows of resources 102,476 - - - 219,695 322,171
FUND BALANCES
Restricted - 1,404,240 3,464,008 - 587,931 5,456,179
Committed 662,091 - - - - 662,091
Assigned - - - - 431,842 431,842
Unassigned 1,912,675 - - (625,206) (44,084) 1,243,385
Total fund balances 2,574,766 1,404,240 3,464,008 (625,206) 975,689 7,793,497
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 3,145,144 $ 1,411,265 $ 3,562,253 $ 6,794 $ 1,342,485 $ 9,467,941

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2015

Fund balances--total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore, are
not reported in the funds.

Capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Some receivables are not available to pay for
current-period expenditures and therefore, are
unavailable in the funds.

Reimburseable grant expenditures
Loan receivable
Fines receivable

Some liabilities, including notes payable and

net pension liabilities are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore, are not
reported in the funds

Compensated absences

Net pension liability

Revenue bonds payable

Lease purchase

Capital leases

Interest payable

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to pensions and amortized bond premiums are applicable

to future reporting periods and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.
Pension related deferred outflows
Pension related deferred inflows
Amortized bond premiums

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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18,520,117

(4,360,931)

38,796
110,897

102,476

(447,334)
(5,450,696)
(5,702,227)

(464,912)

(7,055)

(117,739)

1,816,598
(745,994)

(65,164)

$ 7,793,497

14,159,186

252,169

(12,189,963)

1,005,440

$ 11,020,329




TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Library Non-Major Total
General HURF Building Parks Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund
Revenue
Taxes $ 3,130,812 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 3,130,812
Intergovernmental 3,198,440 845,963 - - 502,950 4,547,353
Fines and forfeitures 199,003 - - - 35,139 234,142
Licenses and permits 174,518 - - - - 174,518
Charges for services 86,718 - - - - 86,718
Contributions - - 10,382 - 60,162 70,544
Investment income 8,758 3,240 1,650 - 1,808 15,456
Other revenue 5,756 13,600 1,788 - 15,684 36,828
Total revenue 6,804,005 862,803 13,820 - 615,743 8,296,371
Expenditures
Current
General government 2,426,763 - - - 203,621 2,630,384
Public safety 2,500,015 - - - 113,123 2,613,138
Public works and streets 246,107 541,516 - - 27,478 815,101
Health and welfare 5,000 - - - 118,700 123,700
Culture and recreation 596,192 - - - 38,091 634,283
Economic and community development 425,631 - - - 39,443 465,074
Capital outlay 33,751 7,390 365,637 - 454 201 860,979
Debt service -
Principal 4,042 - - - 322,907 326,949
Interest 846 - - - 77,466 78,312
Total expenditures 6,238,347 548,906 365,637 - 1,395,030 8,547,920
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures 565,658 313,897 (351,817) - (779,287) (251,549)
Other financing sources
Proceeds of refunding bonds - - 3,507,248 - 1,396,752 4,904,000
Payments to refunding bond trustee - - - - (1,396,752) (1,396,752)
Transfers (out) (497,796) (201,423) 46,483 (12,000) 664,736 -
Total other financing sources (497,796) (201,423) 3,553,731 (12,000) 664,736 3,507,248
Net change in fund balances 67,862 112,474 3,201,914 (12,000) (114,551) 3,255,699
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 2,506,904 1,291,766 262,094 (613,206) 1,090,240 4,537,798
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ 2,574,766 $ 1,404,240 $ 3,464,008 $ (625206) $ 975,689 $ 7,793,497

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds $ 3,255,699

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital outlay 860,979
Depreciation expense (559,995)
300,984
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the funds. 57,465

Town pension contributions are reported as expenditures in
the governmental funds when made. However, they are
reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement
of Net Position because the reported net pension liability is
measured a year before the Town's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes
in deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.
Town pension contributions 472,518
PSPRS health insurance transfer (136,901)
Pension expense (776,869)
(441,252)
Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Bond acquisition (4,904,000)
Principal repaid 326,949
Bond defeasance 1,310,000
(3,267,051)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Interest expense (67,123)
Amortization of bond premium 7,241
Change in compensated absences (56,632)

(116,514)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ (210,669)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Wastewater
Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - net
Due from other governments
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated, net

738,406
106,307
1,415
1,378,092
16,691,175

Total assets

18,915,395

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions

157,165

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

43,099

31,819
482,963

Total liabilities

557,881

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions

84,455

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

18,069,267
360,957

Total net position

18,430,224

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2015

Wastewater
Fund
Operating revenues

Sewer charges $ 1,026,844

Miscellaneous 2,267
Total operating revenues 1,029,111

Operating expenses

Personnel 497,690

Materials and supplies 77,209

Professional services 40,660

Utilities 107,989

Insurance 6,900

Other 39,531

Repairs and maintenance 135,755

Bad debt 25,000

Depreciation 746,528
Total operating expenses 1,677,262
Operating income (loss) (648,151)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest income 909
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 909
Increase (decrease) in net position (647,242)

Total net position, beginning of year, restated 19,077,466
Total net position, end of year $ 18,430,224

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Wastewater
Fund

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and providers of
goods and services
Payments to employees

1,058,043

(357,851)
(490,964)

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

209,228

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets

(202,297)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

(202,297)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received

909

Net cash provided (used) by
investing activities

909

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

7,840

730,566

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

738,406

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015
(Continued)

Wastewater
Fund
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) (648,151)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating
activities:
Depreciation 746,528
Bad debts 25,000
Pension expense 74,395
Employer pension contributions (34,608)
(Increase) decrease:
Accounts receivable 28,425
Due from other governments 507
Increase (decrease):
Accounts payable 10,406
Accrued expenses 6,726
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 209,228

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
June 30, 2015

Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 741,497
Total assets 741,497
LIABILITIES
Deposits held for others 741,497
Total liabilities $ 741,497

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of Camp Verde, Arizona (Town) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied
to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The more significant of the Town’s accounting policies are described below.
A. Reporting Entity

The Town is a municipal entity governed by an elected Mayor and six-member council. The
accompanying financial statements present the Town and its component units, entities for which the
Town is considered to be financially accountable. The financial reporting entity consists of a
primary government and its component units. The Town is a primary government that has a
separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or
local governments. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance,
part of the Town’s operations. Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are
legally separate from the Town. The Town has no component units.

B. Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial
statements. The government-wide statements focus on the Town as a whole, while the fund financial
statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be
analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the usefulness of the
information.

Government-wide statements—provide information about the primary government (the Town). The
statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These statements report
the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. They also
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

A statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the Town’s governmental activities and each segment of its business-type
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The Town does not allocate indirect
expenses to programs or functions. Program revenues include charges to customers for goods or
services, operating grants, capital grants and contributions. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including internally dedicated resources and all taxes, are reported as general
revenues.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements to minimize the double counting of internal activities. Charges for interfund services
provided and used are not eliminated if the prices approximate their external exchange values.

Fund financial statements—provide information about the Town’s funds. Separate statements are
presented for the governmental and proprietary fund categories. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental and proprietary funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the Town, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The HURF Fund accounts for specific revenue received from the State of Arizona Highway
Revenue Fund which is legally restricted to expenditures for street purposes.

The Library Building Fund accounts for specific revenue received from contributions and debt
proceeds from a revenue bond to be spent on the construction of the Town’s new library.

The Parks Fund accounts for all grants and contributions of financial resources related to the
maintenance of the Town’s parks.

The Town reports the following major enterprise fund:

The Wastewater Fund accounts for the costs to operate, construct, and finance the Town’s
wastewater treatment system.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in a custodial capacity for the
following purposes:

e Employee assistance.
e Camp Verde Sanitary District property tax collection and debt service remittance.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
C. Basis of Accounting

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related
cash flows take place. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements the provider imposed have been met.

Governmental funds in the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The Town considers all revenues reported
in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60 days after year-end.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they are due and payable. General capital asset acquisitions
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuances of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital lease agreements are reported as other financing sources.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Cash and Investments

The Town considers cash on hand, demand deposits, cash and investments held by the State
Treasurer, and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months from the date of
acquisition to be cash equivalents.

Cash and investments are generally pooled except for funds required to be held by fiscal agents or
restricted under provisions of bond indentures. Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the
Town to invest public monies in the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool, interest-
bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and repurchase agreements in eligible depositories;
bonds or other obligations of the U.S. government that are guaranteed as to principal and interest by
the U.S. government; and bonds of the State of Arizona or any of its counties, cities, towns, school
districts, and special districts as specified by statute. The State Board of Deposit provides oversight
for the State Treasurer’s pool, and the Local Government Investment Pool Advisory Committee
provides consultation and advice to the Treasurer. The fair value of a participant’s position in the
pool approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
E. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are estimated by the Town. The amount recorded
at June 30, 2015 in the general fund for uncollectible municipal court fines and forfeitures is
$506,000. The amount recorded at June 30, 2015 in the wastewater fund for uncollectible
wastewater receivables is $55,000.

F. Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported at actual cost. Donated assets are reported at estimated fair value at the
time received.

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital
asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the
government-wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows:

Estimated
Capitalization Depreciation Useful Life
Threshold Method (years)
Land $5,000 N/A -
Construction in progress 5,000 N/A -
Buildings 5,000 Straight-line 25-30
Improvements 5,000 Straight-line 18-75
Infrastructure 5,000 Straight-line 15
Furntiture, machinery, and
equipment 5,000 Straight-line 5-10
Vehicles 5,000 Straight-line 5-10
G. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
periods) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
government has only one type of item which arises only under a modified accrual basis of
accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue,
is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The amounts are deferred and recognized
as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
H. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences consist of vacation leave, compensatory time, and a calculated amount of
sick leave earned by employees based on services already rendered.

Employees may accumulate up to 320 hours of vacation depending on years of service, but any
vacation hours in excess of the maximum amount that are unused each January 1 are forfeited. Upon
termination of employment, all unused and unforfeited vacation benefits are paid to employees.

Employees may accumulate up to 480 hours of sick leave hours. Any sick leave hours in excess of
the maximum must be converted at a rate of 50% to vacation time or cash value each December 15.
Upon termination of employment, unused sick leave benefits are paid to employees at rates of 10 to
50 percent depending upon years of service.

The current and long-term liabilities for accrued vacation leave, compensatory time, and sick leave
are reported in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported
in the governmental funds’ financial statements only if they have matured, for example, as a result
of employee resignations and retirements by fiscal year end. Resources from the General Fund are
generally used to liquidate the governmental funds liabilities for compensated absences.

l. Fund Balance Reporting

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 requires fund balances
to be properly reported within one of the fund balance categories listed below:

1. Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact such as
fund balance associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable
(unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned),

2. Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by constitution provisions or enabling legislation, or external resource providers,

3. Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the Town’s Town Council,

4. Assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the Town for specific purposes but do not
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, and

5. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the Town’s governmental funds
and includes all spendable amounts not contained in other classifications.

The Town’s policy for committed fund balances is through formal Town resolutions passed through

the elected town council. The process of rescinding a committed fund balance requires the same
process.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The Town’s policy for assigned fund balances is through motions passed by the elected town
council. Assigned fund balances do not require a formal resolution.

When expenditures incur for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available, the Town’s policy is to apply the expenditure first to
restricted, and then to unrestricted in the following order of committed, assigned, and then
unassigned.

J. Investment Income

Investment income is composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of
applicable investments.

K. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.

L. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for
pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of
the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard
to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period
equity, and creating additional transparency. The provisions of this Statement are effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014. The Town implemented this
standard during this fiscal period. See the subsequent notes for further details.

In November 2013, the GASB issued Statement 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. The objective of
this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated
with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or nonemployer
contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s
beginning net pension liability. The provisions of this Statement are required to be applied
simultaneously with the provisions of Statement 68. The Town implemented this standard during
this fiscal period. See the subsequent notes for further details.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
M. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the pension plans’
fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

NOTE 2 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the Town to invest public monies in the State
Treasurer’s investment pool; U.S. Treasury obligations; specified state and local government bonds;
and interest-earning investments such as savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and repurchase
agreements in eligible depositories. The statutes require collateral for demand deposits, certificates
of deposit, and repurchase agreements at 101 percent of all deposits not covered by federal
depository insurance.

Deposits—At June 30, 2015, the carrying amount of the Town’s total cash in bank was $5,072,294,
and the bank balance was $5,289,463. Of the bank balance, $1,247,258 was covered by federal
depository insurance and the remaining balance was covered by collateral held by the pledging
financial institution in the Town’s name.

Deposits and investments at June 30, 2015 consist of the following:

Deposits
Cash on hand $ 1,510
Cash in bank 5,072,294
Investments
State treasurer's investment pool 1,268,766
U.S. Securities 2,346,903
Total deposits and investments 8,689,473
Less Cash - Restricted (3,405,537)
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 5,283,936

Cash — restricted consists of cash set aside to meet debt service requirements totaling $91,311 and
refunding bond proceeds restricted for library capital improvements totaling $3,314,226.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 2 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS- Continued

At June 30, 2015, the Town had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less Concentration of
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 Credit Risk %
U.S. Treasuries $ 9,195 $ 9,195 $ - 0.39
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits
Beal Bank USA 384,000 384,000 - 16.36
U.S. Agencies
Federal Farm Credit Bank 248,800 - 248,800 10.60
Federal Farm Credit Bank 249,243 - 249,243 10.62
Federal Home Loan Bank 224,955 - 224,955 9.59
Federal Home Loan Bank 180,286 - 180,286 7.68
Federal Home Loan Bank 299,889 - 299,889 12.78
Federal Natl Mtg Assn. 350,035 - 350,035 14.91
Federal Natl Mtg Corp. 400,500 - 400,500 17.07
$ 2,346,903 $ 393,195 $ 1,953,708 100.00

Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the Town manages its exposure to

declines in fair values by limiting the maturities of its investment portfolio according to the needs of
the Town. Investments are structured so that they mature concurrent with anticipated cash
requirements for ongoing operations of the Town.

Credit Risk. The Town’s investment policy allows for investments in obligations guaranteed by the
full faith and credit of the United States of America, government sponsored enterprises, government
bonds with minimum credit ratings of Aa or AA, commercial paper with a minimum short term
rating of P1 or Al, negotiable certificates of deposit, corporate bonds carrying a minimum credit
rating of A, and the Local Government Investment Pool. The Towns investment in U.S. Agencies
and Money Market Funds were rated no lower than AAA by Standard & Poor’s. The State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool is overseen according to Arizona State Statute by the State Board of
Deposit. The fair value of a participant’s position in the pool approximates the value of that
participant’s pool shares. The shares are not identified with specific investments and are not subject
to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Town’s investment policy does not allow for an investment in

any one issuer that is in excess of five percent of the Town’s total investments. Securities issued by
the United States of America or its agencies are exempt from this provision.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As of June 30, 2015, the Town’s receivables for individual major governmental funds and non-
major governmental funds in the aggregate, consisted of $632,518 in municipal court fines and
$97,889 in other miscellaneous receivables. In anticipation of uncollectible amounts, the Town has
an allowance for doubtful accounts of $506,000.

In connection with receivables, governmental funds reported deferred revenue for amounts not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also
defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.
At the end of the current fiscal year, unavailable revenue consisted of fines receivable of $172,478,
loans receivable of $110,897, and unexpended grant funds of $38,796.

As of June 30, 2015, the Town’s receivables for individual major proprietary funds consisted of
wastewater fees billed to customers totaling $161,307. In anticipation of uncollectible amounts, the
Town has an allowance for doubtful accounts of $55,000.

NOTE 4 — DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2015 consisted of the following:

State collected sales tax 3 86,552
Yavapai County 55,546
State of Arizona 197,152
State shared revenues:
State sales tax 138,659
Vehicle licensing tax 30,338
_$ 508,247
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 01, 2014 Increase Decreases June 30, 2015
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 5,868,719 $ - $ - $ 5,868,719
Construction in progress 871,704 677,480 - 1,549,184
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 6,740,423 677,480 - 7,417,903
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,833,184 24,736 - 3,857,920
Infrastructure 3,377,961 - - 3,377,961
Machinery and equipment 2,811,823 158,763 (57,685) 2,912,901
Improvements other than buildings 953,431 - - 953,431
Total 10,976,399 183,499 (57,685) 11,102,213
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (935,190) (92,923) - (1,028,113)
Infrastructure (839,754) (168,898) - (1,008,652)
Machinery and equipment (1,674,452) (268,787) 57,685 (1,885,554)
Improvements other than buildings (409,224) (29,387) - (438,611)
Total (3,858,620) (559,995) 57,685 (4,360,930)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 7,117,779 (376,496) - 6,741,283
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 13,858,202  $ 300,984 % - $ 14,159,186

-37-



TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015
NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Balance Balance
July 01, 2014 Increase Decreases June 30, 2015
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1275828 % - - $ 1,275,828
Construction in progress 101,522 4,380 (3,638) 102,264
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 1,377,350 4,380 (3,638) 1,378,092
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 406,260 147,157 - 553,417
Infrastructure systems 21,182,275 - - 21,182,275
Vehicles and equipment 303,755 58,017 (35,923) 325,849
Total 21,892,290 205,174 (35,923) 22,061,541
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (32,024) (29,547) - (61,571)
Infrastructure (4,424,374) (682,828) - (5,107,202)
Vehicles and equipment (199,743) (34,153) 32,303 (201,593)
Total (4,656,141) (746,528) 32,303 (5,370,366)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 17,236,149 (541,354) (3,620) 16,691,175
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 18,613,499 $  (536,974) (7,258)  $ 18,069,267

Depreciation expense was charged to each function as follows:

Governmental activities:
Public works and streets
Public safety
Culture and recreation
General government
Economic and community development

Total governmental activities depreciation expense

Business-type activities:
Wastewater fund
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Town has outstanding loans due from homeowners related to funding through a Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG). Income from CDBG loans is considered program income of
the grant. The governmental funds reports unavailable revenue as “deferred inflows of resources™ in
connection with the receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate
liabilities of the current period. However, the government-wide financial statements recognized the
revenue when the receivable was recognized. Therefore, the unavailable revenue represents a
reconciling item between the government-wide and fund financial statements. At June 30, 2015,
$110,897 of the loan receivable recorded in the Housing Fund represents funds that were
unavailable.

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following schedule details the Town’s long-term liability and obligation activity for the year
ended June 30, 2015.

Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 1 year
Governmental activities:
Compensated absences $ 390,702 $ 460,147 $ 403,515 $ 447,334 $ 444,214
Capital leases payable 625,669 - 153,702 471,967 154,325
Net pension liability 4,361,072 1,089,624 - 5,450,696 -
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds 2,353,490 4,904,000 1,555,263 5,702,227 168,705
Governmental activities
long-term liabilities $ 7,730,933 $ 6,453,771 $ 2,112,480 $ 12,072,224 $ 767,244
Business-type activites:
Compensated absences $ 25,093 $ 33,273 $ 26,547 $ 31,819 $ 31,819
Net pension liability 401,948 81,015 - 482,963 -
Business-type activities
long-term liabilities $ 427,041 $ 114,288 $ 26,547 $ 514,782 $ 31,819

Bonds Payable:

In May 2011, the Town issued bonds totaling $1,005,000 to finance the purchase of land for use by
the Public Works Department. The principal and interest on the bonds are payable from excise tax
revenues and state shared revenues.

In October 2014, the Town issued bonds totaling $4,904,000 to provide for an advance refunding of
the 2005 revenue bond debt service payments for $1,372,950 with the remaining funds for the
building of a new library. The principal and interest on the bonds are payable from excise tax
revenues and state shared revenues.
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - Continued

Outstanding

Original Maturity Interest Principal
Description Amount Ranges Rates June 30, 2015
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 $ 1,005,000 2008-2024 3.91% $ 798,227
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 4,904,000 2016-2031 2.84% 4,904,000
Totals $ 5,909,000 $ 5,702,227

Current Year Defeasance

On October 7, 2014, the Town issued $4,904,000 in Revenue Refunding Bonds with an average
interest rate of 2.84 percent. This issuance was used to refund $1,310,000 of Series 2005 Revenue
Bonds with an average interest rate of 5 percent. The refunding portion of the 2014 Revenue
Refunding Bonds totaling $1,372,950 was used to fund an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to
refund the bonds in full as of August 1, 2015. The refunding issuance resulted in a deferred outflow
of $65,164. This difference will be allocated to expense through the fiscal year 2025 using the
straight-line amortization method. The Town completed the refunding to provide for a better
interest rate and to decrease its total debt service payments over the next 10 years by extending the
repayment terms an additional six years. Due to the extended payment terms, the Town will pay a
total of $47,592 in additional debt service payments over the life of the Refunding Bond and will
incurred an economic loss (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service
payments) of $(55,259).

The Town has placed the proceeds of the new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future
debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for
the advance refunded (defeased) bonds are not included in the Town’s financial statements. The
refunded debt outstanding as of June 30, 2015 totaled $1,310,000.

The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the Town’s bonds payable
at June 30, 2015.

Governmental Activities

Year
Ending 2011 Bond Payable 2014 Bond Payable
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2016 $ 75705 $ 2971 $ 93,000 $ 167,742

2017 78,666 26,713 320,000 132,088
2018 81,741 23,577 329,000 122,873
2019 84,938 20,318 337,000 113,415
2020 88,259 16,932 346,000 103,717
2021-2025 388,918 31,141 1,900,000 362,016
2026-2030 - - 1,297,000 134,205
2031 - - 282,000 4,004
Total $ 798,227 $ 121,652 $4,904,000 $1,140,060
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - Continued

Capital leases — The Town has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition
of equipment. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and,
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the
inception date. The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Equipment $ 866,238
Less: accumulated depreciation (305,054)
Carrying value $ 561,184

The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the Town’s capital leases
payable at June 30, 2015.

Year Ending Governmental
June 30 Activities

2016 $ 161,558
2017 161,391
2018 161,391
2019 1,842

Total minimum lease payments 486,182

Less amount representing interest (14,215)

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 471,967

NOTE 8 - PLEDGED REVENUES

The Town has pledged, as security for a lease-purchase agreement entered into by the Camp Verde
Sanitary District, a portion of the Town’s sales tax. The lease-purchase agreement, executed by the
Sanitary District in FY2007, was amended during FY2010. Per the amendment, the agreement is in
the amount of $2.04 million to provide financing for construction of a new wastewater treatment
plant, outfall, and collector sewer lines, and is payable through 2032. The Town has committed to
appropriate $135,000 each year from sales tax revenues and state shared revenues, to cover the
principal and interest requirements on the Sanitary District’s debt.

The Camp Verde Sanitary District has pledged, as the sole security for the lease-purchase
agreement, the annual appropriations from the Town. Total principal and interest remaining on the
District’s debt is $1.6 million. For the current year, principal and interest paid by the Sanitary
District totaled $118,700. Total sales tax and state shared revenues recognized by the Town totaled
$5.3 million.

-4] -



TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 9 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

Interfund borrowings - During March 2008, the Town Council approved an agreement to loan
$832,000 to the Parks Fund from General Fund monies. According to the agreement, quarterly
payments of $50,000 are to be made if funds are available until the full amount borrowed has been
repaid. However, no payments were made during FY2015 and remaining amount owed from the
Parks fund to the General fund is $632,000. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Federal
Grants Fund borrowed $41,323 from the General Fund monies for the purpose of paying
reimbursable grant expenditures that will be repaid in the short term.

Interfund transfers — During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Town transferred funds to cover
shared expenses and interfund borrowings. Transfers made between funds during the year are as

follows:
Transfers from

General HURF Parks
Transfers to Fund Fund Fund Total
Library Fund $ 46,483  $ - $ - $ 46,483
Non-Major Governmental Funds 451,313 201,423 12,000 664,736
Total $ 497,796 $ 201,423 $ 12,000 $ 711,219

NOTE 10 — INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Individual funds with deficiencies in fund balance/net position at June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Non-major special revenue funds
Federal Grants Fund $ (42,369)

The deficiency in the Federal Grants Fund of the Non-major special revenue funds will be eliminated
through reimbursements from Federal granting agencies.
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NOTE 11 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION COMPONENTS

The Town’s restrictions on net position in the government-wide statement of net position are as
follows:

Governmental
Activities
Restricted Net Position:

Highway User Revenues $ 1,404,240
Housing redevelopment:

Loans Receivable 110,897

Other 36,728
Court Special Revenue:

Court Enhancement 188,782

Fill the Gap 19,406

Local JCEF 40,650
Nonfederal grants

Anti-racketeering 10,325

Walton family 41,471
Federal grants

LSTA 1,715
9-1-1 2,143
Library Building 3,464,008
Impact Fees:

General government 68,970

Parks and Recreation 103,767

Police Services 59,463
Donations:

Animal Shelter 25

Camp Verde Marshal's Office 100

K-9 2,607

Library 4,412

Parks and Recreation 3,952

Safety fund 2,933

Economic development 55

Volunteers in Police Services 427

Total Restricted Net Position $ 5,567,076
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June 30, 2015
NOTE 11 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION COMPONENTS

The components of governmental fund balances are as follows:

Ending Fund balances, June 30, 2015

Restricted for:
Highways and streets
Housing redevelopment
Court special revenue
Court enhancement
Fill the gap
Local JCEF
Nonfederal grants
Anti-racketeering
Walton family
Federal grants
LSTA
9-1-1
Library building
Impact fees
General government
Parks and recreation
Police services
Donations
Animal shelter
Camp Verde Marshal's office
K-9
Library
Parks and recreation
Safety fund
Economic development
Volunteers in police service
Total restricted
Committed for:
Long-term receivable
Legal defense
Total committed
Assigned for:
Capital improvements
Senior center
Schools and school programs
Total assigned
Unassigned:
Ending Fund Balances

Library Non-Major Total Govtl
General HURF Building Parks Govt'l Funds Funds
$ - $1,404,240 $ - $ - $ - $1,404,240
- - - - 36,728 36,728
- - - - 188,782 188,782
- - - - 19,406 19,406
- - - - 40,650 40,650
- - - - 10,325 10,325
- - - - 41,471 41,471
- - - - 1,715 1,715
- - - - 2,143 2,143
- - 3,464,008 - - 3,464,008
- - - - 68,970 68,970
- - - - 103,767 103,767
- - - - 59,463 59,463
- - - - 25 25
- - - - 100 100
- - - - 2,607 2,607
- - - - 4,412 4,412
- - - - 3,952 3,952
- - - - 2,933 2,933
- - - - 55 55
- - - - 427 427
- 1,404,240 3,464,008 - 587,931 5,456,179
632,000 - - - 632,000
30,091 - - - 30,091
662,091 - - - - 662,091
- - - 405,029 405,029
- - - 4,197 4,197
- - - 22,616 22,616
- - - - 431,842 431,842
1,912,675 - - (625,206) (44,084) 1,243,385
$2,574,766  $1,404,240 $3,464,008 $ (625,206) $ 975,689  $7,793,497
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NOTE 12 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Federal and State grants and loans — The Town has received a number of grants from both the
Federal and State governments. Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are
subject to audit and adjustment; however, the Town expects no material disallowance of
expenditures.

Lawsuits — At times the Town is a defendant in various lawsuits, although the outcome of these
lawsuits is not always determinable, in the opinion of the Town’s legal counsel, any resolution of
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Town.

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town carries
commercial insurance for all such risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and employees’
health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 14 — CLAIMS PAYABLE

In fiscal year 2011, the Town entered into an agreement with a local business entity to settle a
dispute over the use of the business entity’s property. The balance at June 30, 2015 and 2014
was $79,162. There were no changes to the claim or payments on the claim during the year
ended June 30, 2015.

NOTE 15 - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

Net position as of July 1, 2014, has been restated as for the implementation of GASB Statement
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB Statement No.
71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date.

Governmental Business-type Wastewater
Activities Activities Fund

Net position as previously reported at June 30,
2014 $ 15,169,838 $ 19,447,933 $ 19,447,933
Prior period adjustments-implementation of
GASB 68:

Net pension liability (measurement date as

of June 30, 2013) (4,361,072) (401,948) (401,948)

Deferred outflows-Town contributions made

during fiscal year 2014 422,233 31,481 31,481
Total prior period adjustment (3,938,839) (370,467) (370,467)
Net position, as restated, July 1, 2014 $ 11,230,999 $ 19,077,466 $ 19,077,466
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NOTE 16 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Town contributes to the pension plans described below. The plans are component units of
the State of Arizona.

At June 30, 2015, the Town reported the following aggregate amounts related to pensions for all
plans to which it contributes:

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Activities Total

Net pension liabilities $ 5,450,696 $ 482,963 $ 5,933,659
Deferred outflows of resources 1,816,598 157,165 1,973,763
Deferred inflows of resources 745,994 84,455 830,449
Pension expense 776,869 74,395 851,264

The Town reported $552,812 of pension expenditures in the governmental funds related to all
pension plans to which it contributes.

A. Arizona State Retirement System

Plan Description — Town employees not covered by the other pension plans described below
participate in the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). The ASRS administers a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit health insurance premium benefit (OPEB) plan, and a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit long-term disability (OPEB) plan. The Arizona State Retirement
System Board governs the ASRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5,
Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes its
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report is available on its Web
site at www.azasrs.gov.
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NOTE 16 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — Continued
Benefits Provided — The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement, long-

term disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefits terms. Retirement benefits
are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit as follows:

ASRS Retirement
Initial membership date:
Before On or after
July 1, 2011 July 1, 2011

Years of service and age required to receive Sum of years and

benefit age equals 80 30 years age 55
10 years age 62 25 years age 60
5 years age 50* 10 years age 62
any years age 65 5 years age 50*

any years age 65

Highest 36 months
of last 120 months

Highest 60 months

Final average salary is based on of last 120 months

Benefit percent per year of service 2.1%t0 2.3% 2.1%t0 2.3%

Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are subject to
automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earning. Members with a
membership date on or after September 13, 2013, are not eligible for cost-of-living adjustments.
Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’s death. For retired members, the survivor benefit is
determined by the retirement benefit option chosen. For all other members, the beneficiary is
entitled to the member’s account balance that includes the member’s contributions and employer’s
contributions, plus interest earned.

Contributions — In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine active
member and employer contribution requirements. The combined active member and employer
contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2015,
active ASRS members were required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of
11.6 percent (11.48 percent for retirement and 0.12 percent for long-term disability) of the
members’ annual covered payroll, and the Town was required by statute to contribute at the
actuarially determined rate of 11.6 percent (10.89 percent for retirement, 0.59 percent for health
insurance premium benefit, and 0.12 percent for long-term disability) of the active members’ annual
covered payroll. The Town’s contributions to the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2015,
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NOTE 16 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

were $291,063. The Town’s contributions for the current and two preceding years for OPEB, all of
which were equal to the required contributions, were as follows:

ASRS Health Benefit Long-term
Supplement Fund Disability Fund

Year ended June 30,

2015 $ 16,051 $ 3,210
2014 14,750 5,900
2013 12,217 5,091

During fiscal year 2015, the Town paid for ASRS pension and OPEB contributions as follows:
91.59 percent from the General Fund and 8.41 percent from the Wastewater Fund.

Pension Liability — At June 30, 2015, the Town reported a liability of $4,061,925 for its
proportionate share of the ASRS’ net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of
June 30, 2014. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined
using update procedures to roll forward the total pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2013, to the measurement date of June 30, 2014. The Town’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on the Town’s actual contributions to the plan relative to the total of all
participating employers’ contributions for the year ended June 30, 2014. The Town’s proportion
measured as of June 30, 2014, was .006760 percent, which was an increase of .000545 from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2013.
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources — For the year ended June 30,
2015, the Town recognized pension expense for ASRS of $625,696. At June 30, 2015, the Town
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
ASRS of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 206,439 $ -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments

- 710,305

Changes in proportion and differences
between Town contributions and proportionate
share of contributions 824,321 -
Town contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

291,063 -
Total $ 1,321,823 $ 710,305

The $1,321,823 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions resulting from
Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to ASRS pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2016 $ 270,580
2017 270,580
2018 (43,129)
2019 (177,576)
2020 -
Thereafter -
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Actuarial Assumptions — The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension
liability are as follows:

ASRS

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2013
Actuarial roll forward date June 30, 2014
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Investment rate of return 8%
Projected salary increases 3-6.75%
Inflation 3%
Permanent benefit increase Included
Mortality rates 1994 GAM Scale BB

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2012.

The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS pension plan investments was determined to be 8.79
percent using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

ASRS
Long-term

Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
Equity 63% 7.03%
Fixed income 25% 3.20%
Real estate 8% 4.75%
Commodities 4% 4.50%

Total 100%

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the ASRS total pension liability was 8 percent,
which is less than the long-term expected rate of return of 8.79 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers
will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on the ASRS Board’s funding policy,
which establishes the contractually required rate under Arizona statute. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the ASRS Net Pension Liability to Changes
in the Discount Rate — The following table presents the Town’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 8 percent, as well as what the Town’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1 percentage point lower (7 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (9 percent) than the current
rate:

ASRS Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1%0) (8%) (9%)
Town's proportionate share of the net pension $ 5,134,065 $ 4,061,925 $ 3,480,235
liability

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued ASRS financial report.

B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System

Plan Descriptions — Town police employees participate in the Public Safety Personnel Retirement
System (PSPRS). The PSPRS administers an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
and an agent multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance premium benefit (OPEB) plan
(agent plans). A seven-member board known as the Board of Trustees and the participating local
boards govern the PSPRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4.

The PSPRS issue publicly available financial reports that include their financial statements and
required supplementary information. The reports are available on the PSPRS Web site at
WWW.PSPrs.com.

Benefits Provided — The PSPRS provide retirement, health insurance premium supplement,
disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefits terms.
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Retirement, disability, and survivor benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly
compensation, and service credit as follows:

Initial membership date:

Before On or after
January 1, 2012 January 1, 2012
Retirement and Disability
Years of service and age required to
receive benefit 20 years any age 25 years and age 52.5
15 years age 62

Highest 36 months of last Highest 60 months of last
Final average salary is based on 20 years 20 years

Benefit percent
Normal Retirement 2.5% per year of credited

1 0,
50% less 2.0% for each service, not to exceed 80%

year of credited service less
than 20 years OR plus 2.0%
to 2.5% for each year of
credited services over 20
years, not to exceed 80%
Accidental Disability Retirement 50% or normal retirement, whichever is greater

Catastrophic Disability Retirement 90% for the first 60 months then reduced to either 62.5%
or normal retirement, whichever is greater
Ordinary Disability Retirement Normal retirement calculated with actual years of credited
service or 20 years of credited service, whichever is
greater, multiplied by years of credited service (not to
exceed 20 years) divided by 20

Survivor Benefit
Retired Members 80% of retired member's pension benefit
Active Members 80% if accidental disability retirement benefit or 100% of
average monthly compensation if death was result of
injuries received on the job

Retirement and survivor benefits are subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on
excess investment earning. PSPRS also provides temporary disability benefits of 50 percent of the
member’s compensation for up to 12 months.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms — At June 30, 2015, the following employees were covered
by the agent pension plans’ benefit terms:

PSPRS

PSPRS Police
Inactive employees or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 7
Inactive employees entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits 2
Active employees 18
Total 27

Contributions and Annual OPEB Cost — State statutes establish the pension contribution
requirements for active PSPRS employees. In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial
valuations determine employer contribution requirements for PSPRS pension and health insurance
premium benefits. The combined active member and employer contribution rates are expected to
finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance
any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions rates for the year ended June 30, 2015, are indicated
below. Rates are a percentage of active members’ annual covered payroll.

PSPRS
PSPRS Police
Active Members - Pension 11.05%
Town
Pension 20.70%
Health insurance premium benefit 1.09%
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For the agent plans, the Town’s contributions to the pension plan and annual OPEB cost and
contributions for the health insurance premium benefit for the year ended June 30, 2015, were:

Pension PSPRS Police

Contributions Made $ 310,086

Health Insurance Premium

Benefit
Annual OPEB cost 8,409
Contributions made 8,409

During fiscal year 2015, the Town paid for 100 percent of PSPRS pension and OPEB contributions
from the General Fund.

Net Pension Liability (Asset) — At June 30, 2015, the Town reported the following net pension
liability:

Net Pension Liability
(Asset)
PSPRS Police $ 1,871,734

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total
pension liabilities as of June 30, 2014, reflect the following changes of benefit terms and actuarial
assumptions:

« In February 2014, the Arizona Supreme Court affirmed a Superior Court ruling that a 2011
law that changed the mechanism for funding permanent benefit increases was
unconstitutional. As a result, the plans changed benefit terms to reflect the prior mechanism
for funding permanent benefit increases and revised actuarial assumptions to explicitly value
future permanent benefit increases.

« The wage growth actuarial assumption was decreased from 4.5 percent to 4.0 percent.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 16 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Pension Actuarial Assumptions — The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total
pension liability are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2014
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Discount rate 7.85%
Projected salary increases 4.0%-8.0%
Inflation 4.0%
Permanent benefit increase Included

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2011.

The long-term expected rate of return on PSPRS pension plan investments was determined to be
7.85 percent using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-term Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
Short term investments 2% 3.25%
Absolute return 4% 6.75%
Risk parity 4% 6.04%
Fixed Income 7% 4.75%
Real assets 8% 5.96%
GTAA 10% 5.73%
Private Equity 11% 9.50%
Real estate 11% 6.50%
Credit opportunities 13% 8.00%
Non-U.S. equity 14% 8.63%
U.S. equity 16% 7.60%

Total 100%
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 16 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Pension Discount Rates — The following discount rates were used to measure the total pension
liabilities:

PSPRS Police

Discount rates 7.85%

The projection of cash flows used to determine the PSPRS discount rates assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be
made at rates equal to the difference between the actuarially determined contribution rate and the
member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

PSPRS Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Liability Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension Liability
(Asset) (a) Position (b) (Asset) (a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2014 $ 4,109,780 $ 2,727,314 $ 1,382,466
Changes for the year

Service Cost 135,654 - 135,654

Interest on the total pension

liability 317,555 - 317,555

Changes of benefit terms 69,633 - 69,633

Differences between expected and
actual experience in the
measurement of the pension

liability 41,958 - 41,958
Changes of assumptions or other
inputs 443,060 - 443,060
Contributions-employer - 170,919 (170,919)
Contributions-employee - 79,176 (79,176)
Net investment income - 357,316 (357,316)
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions (264,648) (264,648) -
Other changes - (88,819) 88,819
Net changes 743,212 253,944 489,268
Balances at June 30, 2015 $ 4,852,992 $ 2,981,258 $ 1,871,734
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 16 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Sensitivity of the Town’s Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The
following table presents the Town’s net pension liabilities calculated using the discount rates noted
above, as well as what the Town’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

PSPRS
1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
PSPRS Police
Rate 6.85% 7.85% 8.85%
Net pension liability $ 2,497,821 $ 1,871,734 $ 1,353,684

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued PSPRS financial reports.

Pension Expense — For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Town recognized the following pension
expense:

Pension Expense

PSPRS Police $ 225,568

Pension Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources — At June 30, 2015, the Town reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

PSPRS Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and

actual experience $ 36,148 $ -
Changes of assumptions or other
inputs 381,714 -

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension plan
investments - 120,144
Town contributions subsequent to
the measurement date
234,078 -

Total $ 651,940 $ 120,144
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 16 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

PSPRS Police
Year ended June 30,
2016 $ 37,120
2017 37,120
2018 37,120
2019 37,120
2020 67,156
Thereafter 82,083

Agent Plan OPEB Actuarial Assumptions — The health insurance premium benefit contribution
requirements for the year ended June 30, 2015, were established by the June 30, 2013, actuarial
valuations, and those actuarial valuations were based on the following actuarial methods and
assumptions.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the reported amounts’ value and assumptions about the
probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the plans’ funded status and the
annual required contributions are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made. The required schedule of funding progress for the health
insurance premium benefit presented as required supplementary information provides multiyear
trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of the plans’ asSets are increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 16 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Projections of benefits are based on (1) the plans as understood by the Town and plans’ members
and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date, and (2) the pattern of sharing benefit
costs between the Town and plans’ members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term
perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used to establish the fiscal year 2015 contribution requirements are as follows:

PSPRS - OPEB Contribution Requirements
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2013
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method
Level percent closed for

unfunded actuarial accrued
liability, open for excess
Remaining amortization period
23 years for unfunded
actuarial accrued liability,
20 years for excess
Asset valuation method 7-year smoothed market
value; 20% corridor
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.85%
Projected salary increases 4.5%-8.5%
Wage growth 4.5%

Agent Plan OPEB Trend Information — Annual OPEB cost information for the health insurance
premium benefit for the current and two preceding years:

Percentage of Annual

Year ended June 30, Annual OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Net OPEB Obligation
PSPRS Police
2015 $ 8,409 100% Unavailable
2014 10,822 100% (18,018)
2013 11,580 0% 72,549
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NOTE 16 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued
Agent Plan OPEB Funded Status — The health insurance premium benefit plans’ funded status as

of the most recent valuation date, June 30, 2014, along with the actuarial assumptions and methods
used in those valuations follow.

PSPRS Police

Actuarial value of assets (a) $ 163,233
Actuarial accrued liability (b) $ 145,215
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability

(funding excess) (b) - (2) $ (18,018)
Funded ratio (a)/(b) 112.41%
Annual covered payroll (c) $ 873,954
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability

(funding excess) as a percentage of

covered payroll (b) - (a) / (c) 0.00%

The actuarial methods and assumptions for the most recent valuation date are as follows:

PSPRS - OPEB Funded Status

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2014
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percent closed for

unfunded actuarial accrued
liability, open for excess

Remaining amortization period 22 years for unfunded
actuarial accrued liability,
20 years for excess

Asset valuation method 7-year smoothed market
value; 20% corridor
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.85%
Projected salary increases 4%-8%
Wage growth 4%
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual — General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue
Taxes $ 3,467,900 $ 3,467,900 $ 3,130,812 $ (337,088)
Intergovernmental 3,154,600 3,154,600 3,198,440 43,840
Fines and forfeitures 272,750 272,750 199,003 (73,747)
Licenses and permits 217,400 217,400 174,518 (42,882)
Charges for services 114,450 114,450 86,718 (27,732)
Investment income 20,000 20,000 8,758 (11,242)
Other revenue 5,000 5,000 5,756 756
Total revenue 7,252,100 7,252,100 6,804,005 (448,095)
Expenditures
Marshal 2,571,185 2,580,658 2,512,091 68,567
Maintenance 554,150 562,150 552,023 10,127
Magistrate 379,920 379,920 364,344 15,576
Community development 462,625 462,625 427,959 34,666
Library 378,145 378,145 367,313 10,832
Risk management 346,105 346,105 301,036 45,069
Information technology 141,490 141,490 213,107 (71,617)
Parks and recreation 252,725 252,725 228,878 23,847
Town clerk 227,735 227,735 221,346 6,389
Town manager 194,055 205,930 189,702 16,228
Finance 226,570 226,570 219,032 7,538
Economic development 156,735 162,557 159,887 2,670
Non-departmental 262,080 226,910 106,188 120,722
Public works and streets 118,340 118,340 116,075 2,265
Storm water management 129,200 129,200 126,566 2,634
Mayor and council 45,925 45,925 76,896 (30,971)
Human resources 25,760 25,760 55,904 (30,144)
Total expenditures 6,472,745 6,472,745 6,238,347 234,398
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures 779,355 779,355 565,658 (213,697)
Other financing sources
Transfers in (out) (1,136,425) (1,135,173) (497,796) 637,377
Total other financing
sources (1,136,425) (1,135,173) (497,796) 637,377
Net change in fund balances (357,070) (355,818) 67,862 423,680
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 2,506,904 2,506,904 2,506,904 -
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ 2,149,834 $ 2,151,086 $ 2,574,766 $ 423,680

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - HURF Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenue
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
Highways and streets
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfers in (out)

Total other financing
sources

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, July 1, 2014

Fund balances, June 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

$ 809,000 $ 809,000 845,963 36,963
5,000 5,000 3,240 (1,760)

2,100 2,100 13,600 11,500
816,100 816,100 862,803 46,703
613,465 613,465 541,516 71,949
25,000 25,000 7,390 17,610
638,465 638,465 548,906 89,559
177,635 177,635 313,897 136,262
(492,590) (492,590) (201,423) 291,167
(492,590) (492,590) (201,423) 291,167
(314,955) (314,955) 112,474 427,429
1,291,766 1,291,766 1,291,766 -

$ 976811 $ 976811 $ 1,404,240 $ 427,429

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual — Library Building Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue
Contributions $ 370,000 % 370,000 $ 10,382 $ (359,618)
Investment income 2,418 2,418 1,650 (768)
Other revenue - - 1,788 1,788
Total revenue 372,418 372,418 13,820 (358,598)
Expenditures
Capital outlay 4,260,000 4,260,000 365,637 3,894,363
Total expenditures 4,260,000 4,260,000 365,637 3,894,363
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (3,887,582) (3,887,582) (351,817) 3,535,765
Other financing sources
Proceeds from refunding bonds 3,490,000 3,490,000 3,507,248 17,248
Transfers in(out) 83,350 83,350 46,483 (36,867)
Total other financing
sources 3,573,350 3,573,350 3,553,731 (19,619)
Net change in fund balances (314,232) (314,232) 3,201,914 3,516,146
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 262,094 262,094 262,094 -
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ (52,138) $ (52,138) $ 3,464,008 $ 3,516,146

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual — Parks Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Other financing sources
Transfers in (out) $ (12,0000 $ (12,0000 $ (12,0000 $ -
Total other financing
sources (12,000) (12,000) (12,000) -
Net change in fund balances (12,000) (12,000) (12,000) -
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 (613,206) (613,206) (613,206) -
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ (625,206) $ (625,206) $ (625,206) $ -

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) require the Town to prepare and adopt a balanced budget
annually for each governmental fund. The Town Council must approve such operating budgets
on or before the third Monday in July to allow sufficient time for the legal announcements and
hearings required for the adoption of the property tax levy on the third Monday in August. A.R.S.
prohibits expenditures or liabilities in excess of the amounts budgeted.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level. In certain instances,
transfers of appropriations between departments or from the contingency account to a department
may be made upon the Town Councils’ approval. However, the Town Manager may approve
budget reallocations within functional departments without the Town Council’s approval.

NOTE 2 — BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Town’s budget is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate

Share of the Net Pension Liability
Cost-Sharing Pension Plans

June 30, 2015

Arizona State Retirement System

Town's proportion of the net pension liability

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability
Town's covered-employee payroll

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability

Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)

2015 2014 through
(2014) 2006

0.027452% Information
$ 4,061,925 not available
$ 2,479,630

163.81%

69.49%

See accompanying notes to plan schedules.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Changes in the Town’s
Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios

Agent Pension Plans

June 30, 2015
PSPRS

Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience in the
measurement of the pension liability
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Administrative expense
Other changes

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Town's net pension liability (asset) - ending (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension

liability

Covered-employee payroll

Town's net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll

Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)

2015
(2014)

2014 through
2006

$ 135,654
317,555
69,633
41,958

443,060

(264,648)

743,212
4,109,780

$ 4,852,992

$ 170,919
79,176
357,316

(264,648)

(88,819)

253,944
2,727,314

5 2,081,058

$ 1,871,734

61.43%

$ 873,953

214.17%

See accompanying notes to plan schedules.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Town Pension Contributions
June 30, 2015

Arizona State Retirement System

Statutorily required contribution

Town's contributions in relation to the statutorily required
contribution

Town's contribution deficiency (excess)

Town's covered-employee payroll

Town's contributions as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll

PSPRS

Actuarially determined contribution

Town's contributions in relation to the actuarially determined
contribution

Town's contribution deficiency (excess)

Town's covered-employee payroll

Town's contributions as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll

Reporting Fiscal Year

2013 through
2015 2014 2006

$ 291,063 $ 264,780 Information
not available
(291,063) (264,780)

$ - $ -

$ 2,675,211 $ 2,474,579

10.88% 10.70%

Reporting Fiscal Year

2013 through
2015 2014 2006

$ 234,078 $ 188,934 Information
not available
(234,078) (188,934)

$ - $ -

$ 1,130,812 $ 873,953

20.70% 21.62%

See accompanying notes to plan schedules.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to Pension Plan Schedules
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - ACTUARIALLY DETERMINED CONTRIBUTION RATES

Actuarial determined contribution rates for PSPRS are calculated as of June 30 two years prior to
the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are made. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used to establish the contribution requirements are as follows:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percent closed for unfunded actuarial accrued liability, open for excess
Remaining amortization period as
of the 2013 actuarial valuation

23 years for unfunded actuarial accrued liability, 20 years for excess

Asset valuation method 7-year smoothed market value; 20% corridor
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return In 2013 actuarial valuation, the investment rate of return was decreased from 8.0% to
7.85%
Projected salary increases In 2013 actuarial valuation, projected salary increases were decreased from 5.0% -
9.0% to 4.5% - 8.5%
Wage growth In 2013 actuarial valuation, wage growth was decreased from 5.0% to 4.5%
Retirement age Experience-based table of rates that is specific to the type of eligibility condition.

Last updated for the 2012 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period
July 1, 2006 - June 30, 2011.
Mortality RP-2000 mortality table (adjusted by 105% for both males and females)
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Agent OPEB Plans’ Funding Progress
June 30, 2015

Health Insurance Premium Benefit - PSPRS

Unfunded
Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Funding Annual Percentage of
Actuarial Plan Accrued (Liability) Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability Excess Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ([a-b])/c)
06/30/14 $ 163,233 $ 145215 $ (18,018) 112.4 % $ 873,954 0.0%
06/30/13 - 72,549 72,549 0.0 706,486 10.27
06/30/12 - 113,920 113,920 0.0 779,063 14.62

See accompanying notes to schedule of agent OPEB plans’ funding progress.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to Schedule of Agent OPEB Plans’ Funding Progress
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - FACTORS THAT AFFECT THE IDENTIFICATION OF TRENDS

Beginning in fiscal year 2014, PSPRS established separate funds for pension benefits and health
insurance premium benefits. Previously, the plan recorded both pension and health insurance
premium contributions in the same Pension Fund. During fiscal year 2014, the plan transferred
prior-year health insurance premium benefit contributions that exceeded benefit payments from
the plan’s Pension Fund to the new Health Insurance Fund.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Combining Balance Sheet — All Non-Major Governmental Funds
By Fund Type
June 30, 2015

Total
Special Capital Debt Non-major
Revenue Improvement Service Governmental
Funds Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 639,069 $ 419,932 $ $ 1,059,001
Due from other governments 172,587 - 172,587
Loans receivable 110,897 - 110,897
Total assets $ 922,553 $ 419,932 $ $ 1,342,485
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 90,875 $ 14,903 $ $ 105,778
Due to other funds 41,323 - 41,323
Total liabilities 132,198 14,903 147,101
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue 219,695 - - 219,695
Total deferred inflows of resources 219,695 - - 219,695
FUND BALANCES
Restricted 587,931 - 587,931
Assigned 26,813 405,029 431,842
Unassigned (44,084) - (44,084)
Total fund balances 570,660 405,029 975,689
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 922,553 $ 419,932 $ $ 1,342,485
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
All Non-Major Governmental Funds

Revenue
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Investment income
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works and streets
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation

Economic and community development

Capital outlay
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Proceeds of refunding bonds
Payments to refunding bond trustee
Transfers (out)

Total other financing
sources

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, July 1, 2014
Fund balances, June 30, 2015

By Fund Type
June 30, 2015
Total
Special Capital Debt Non-Major

Revenue Improvement Service Governmental

Funds Fund Fund Funds
$ 502,950 $ - - $ 502,950
35,139 - - 35,139
60,162 - - 60,162
1,724 - 84 1,808
15,684 - - 15,684
615,659 - 84 615,743
203,621 - - 203,621
113,123 - - 113,123
27,428 50 - 27,478
- - 118,700 118,700
24,297 13,794 - 38,091
39,443 - - 39,443
362,847 91,354 - 454,201
- - 322,907 322,907
- - 77,466 77,466
770,759 105,198 519,073 1,395,030
(155,100) (105,198) (518,989) (779,287)
- - 1,396,752 1,396,752
- - (1,396,752) (1,396,752)
(41,289) 187,036 518,989 664,736
(41,289) 187,036 518,989 664,736
(196,389) 81,838 - (114,551)
767,049 323,191 - 1,090,240
$ 570,660 $ 405,029 - $ 975,689
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NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue funds are used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes (other than major capital projects). The
funds are usually required by statute, ordinance, or federal grant regulation to finance specified
activities of the Town. The Town maintains the following non-major Special Revenue funds.

Housing Fund — accounts for revolving loan funds as well as the revenues and expenditures
related to the HOME Grant.

Court Special Revenue Fund- accounts for Local JCEF, Fill the Gap and Court Enhancement
revenues.

Nonfederal Grants Fund- accounts for all nonfederal grants received by the Town.

Yavapai-Apache Gaming Compact Fund- accounts for the gaming compact revenues received
from the Yavapai-Apache Tribe.

Federal Grants Fund- accounts for the activity related to the Town’s Federal grants with the
exception of the Community Development Block Grant which is accounted for in a separate
CDBG fund.

CDBG Fund- accounts for all CDBG grants received by the Town.
9-1-1 Fund- accounts for 9-1-1 distributions.

Impact Fee Fund- accounts for development impact fees.

Donations Fund- accounts for gifts, donations, bequests and private grants made to the Town.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Combining Balance Sheet Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2015

Court Nonfederal Yavapai-Apache
Housing Special Revenue Grants Gaming Compact
Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 36,728 $ 240,595 $ 86,079 $ 26,813
Due from other governments - 78,245 55,546 -
Loans receivable 110,897 - - -
Total assets $ 147,625 $ 318,840 $ 141,625 $ 26,813
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ 89,829 $ -
Due to other funds - - - -
Total liabilities - - 89,829 -
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue 110,897 70,002 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 110,897 70,002 - -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted 36,728 248,838 51,796 -
Assigned - - - 26,813
Unassigned - - - -
Total fund balances 36,728 248,838 51,796 26,813
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 147,625 $ 318,840 $ 141,625 $ 26,813
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Total

Federal Impact Non-Major
Grants CDBG 9-1-1 Fee Donations Special Revenue
Fund Grants Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ - $ - $ 2,143 $ 232,200 $ 14,511 $ 639,069
38,796 - - - - 172,587

- - - - - 110,897

$ 38,796 $ - $ 2,143 $ 232,200 $ 14,511 $ 922,553
$ 1,046 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 90,875
41,323 - - - - 41,323
42,369 - - - - 132,198
38,796 - - - - 219,695
38,796 - - - - 219,695

1,715 - 2,143 232,200 14,511 587,931

- - - - 26,813
(44,084) - - - - (44,084)
(42,369) - 2,143 232,200 14,511 570,660

$ 38,796 $ - $ 2,143 $ 232,200 $ 14,511 $ 922,553
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2015

Court Nonfederal Yavapai-Apache
Housing Special Revenue Grants Gaming Compact
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenue
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 264,457 $ 16,875
Fines and forfeitures - 35,139 - -
Contributions - - 50,000 -
Investment income 1,418 - - -
Other revenue 15,684 - - -
Total revenue 17,102 35,139 314,457 16,875
Expenditures
Current
General government 51,929 1,668 - 150,024
Public safety - - 68,805 -
Public works and streets - - - -
Culture and recreation - - 8,529 -
Economic and community development - - - -
Capital outlay - - 183,578 -
Total expenditures 51,929 1,668 260,912 150,024
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (34,827) 33,471 53,545 (133,149)
Other financing sources
Transfers (out) - (4,600) - (11,734)
Total other financing
sources - (4,600) - (11,734)
Net change in fund balances (34,827) 28,871 53,545 (144,883)
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 71,555 219,967 (1,749) 171,696
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ 36,728 $ 248,838 $ 51,796 $ 26,813
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Total

Federal Impact Non-Major
Grants CDBG 9-1-1 Fee Donations Special Revenue
Fund Grants Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 215,355 6,263 $ - $ - $ - $ 502,950
- - - - - 35,139
- - - - 10,162 60,162
- - - 306 - 1,724
- - - - - 15,684
215,355 6,263 - 306 10,162 615,659
- - - - - 203,621
36,322 - 360 - 7,636 113,123
27,428 - - - - 27,428
10,570 - - - 5,198 24,297
39,443 - - - - 39,443
173,306 5,963 - - - 362,847
287,069 5,963 360 - 12,834 770,759
(71,714) 300 (360) 306 (2,672) (155,100)
21,828 (300) - (46,483) - (41,289)
21,828 (300) - (46,483) - (41,289)
(49,886) - (360) (46,177) (2,672) (196,389)
7,517 - 2,503 278,377 17,183 767,049
$ (42,369) $ - $ 2,143 $ 232,200 $ 14,511 $ 570,660
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual — Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Housing Fund

Court Special Revenue Fund

Variance - Variance -
Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue
Intergovernmental $ - 3 - 3 - $ -3 - 3 -
Fines and forfeitures - - - 47,728 35,139 (12,589)
Contributions - - - - - -
Investment income 1,600 1,418 (182) - - -
Other revenue 15,600 15,684 84 - - -
Total revenue 17,200 17,102 (98) 47,728 35,139 (12,589)
Expenditures
Current
General government 70,000 51,929 18,071 7,700 1,668 6,032
Public safety - - - - - -
Public works and streets - - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - - -
Economic and community development - - - - - -
Capital outlay - - - - - -
Total expenditures 70,000 51,929 18,071 7,700 1,668 6,032
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (52,800) (34,827) 17,973 40,028 33,471 (6,557)
Other financing sources
Transfers in(out) - - - (100,000) (4,600) (95,400)
Total other financing
sources - - - (100,000) (4,600) (95,400)
Net change in fund balances (52,800) (34,827) 17,973 (59,972) 28,871 (101,957)
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 71,555 71,555 - 219,967 219,967 -
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ 18755 $ 36,728 $ 17,973 $ 159,995 $ 248838 $ (101,957)
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Nonfederal Grants Fund

YAG Compact Fund

Federal Grants Fund

Variance - Variance - Variance -
Positive Positive Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 752,500 $ 264,457 $ (488,043) - $ 16875 $ 16,875 $ 2275030 $ 215355 $ (2,059,675)
50,000 50,000 - - - - - - -
802,500 314,457 (488,043) - 16,875 16,875 2,275,030 215,355 (2,059,675)
405,000 - 405,000 159,962 150,024 9,938 - - -
99,218 68,805 30,413 - - - 40,000 36,322 3,678
100,000 - 100,000 - - - 1,965,700 27,428 1,938,272
- 8,529 (8,529) - - - - 10,570 (10,570)
- - - - - - - 39,443 (39,443)
- 183,578 (183,578) - - - 304,430 173,306 131,124
604,218 260,912 343,306 159,962 150,024 9,938 2,310,130 287,069 2,023,061
198,282 53,545 (144,737) (159,962) (133,149) 26,813 (35,100) (71,714) (36,614)
(200,000) - (200,000) (11,734) (11,734) - 21,832 21,828 (4)
(200,000) - (200,000) (11,734) (11,734) - 21,832 21,828 (4)
(1,718) 53,545 (344,737) (171,696) (144,883) 26,813 (13,268) (49,886) (36,618)
(1,749) (1,749) - 171,696 171,696 - 7,517 7,517 -
$ (3,467) $ 51,796 $ (344,737) - $ 26813 $ 26,813 $ (5,751) $ (42,369) $ (36,618)
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual — Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015
(Continued)

CDBG 9-1-1 Fund
Variance - Variance -
Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue
Intergovernmental $ 264500 $ 6,263 $ (258,237) $ - $ -3 -
Fines and forfeitures - - - - - -
Contributions - - - - - -
Investment income - - - - - -
Other revenue - - - - - -
Total revenue 264,500 6,263 (258,237) - - -
Expenditures
Current
General government - - - - - -
Public safety - - - 2,503 360 2,143
Public works and streets - - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - - -
Economic and community development - - - - - -
Capital outlay 416,500 5,963 410,537 - - -
Total expenditures 416,500 5,963 410,537 2,503 360 2,143
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (152,000) 300 152,300 (2,503) (360) 2,143
Other financing sources
Transfers (out) 151,700 (300) (152,000) - - -
Total other financing
sources 151,700 (300) (152,000) - - -
Net change in fund balances (300) - 300 (2,503) (360) 2,143
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 - - - 2,503 2,503 -
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ (300) $ - $ 300 $ - $ 2,143  $ 2,143

-84 -



TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual — Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015
(Continued)

Impact Fee Fund Donations Fund Totals
Variance - Variance - Variance -
Positive Positive Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - 3 - $ - $ -3 - $ - $ 3292030 $ 502,950 $ (2,789,080)
- - - - - - 47,728 35,139 (12,589)
- - - 33,500 10,162 (23,338) 83,500 60,162 (23,338)
338 306 (32) - - - 1,938 1,724 (214)
- - - - - - 15,600 15,684 84
338 306 (32) 33,500 10,162 (23,338) 3,440,796 615,659 (2,825,137)
- - - - - - 642,662 203,621 439,041
- - - 10,876 7,636 3,240 152,597 113,123 39,474
- - - - - - 2,065,700 27,428 2,038,272
- - - 38,889 5,198 33,691 38,889 24,297 14,592
- - - - - - - 39,443 (39,443)
175,772 - 175,772 - - - 896,702 362,847 533,855
175,772 - 175,772 49,765 12,834 36,931 3,796,550 770,759 3,025,791
(175,434) 306 175,740 (16,265) (2,672) 13,593 (355,754) (155,100) 200,654
(115,130) (46,483) 68,647 - - - (253,332) (41,289) (378,757)
(115,130) (46,483) 68,647 - - - (253,332) (41,289) (378,757)
(290,564) (46,177) 244,387 (16,265) (2,672) 13,593 (609,086) (196,389) (178,103)

278,377 278,377 - 17,183 17,183 - 767,049 767,049 -
$ (12,187) $ 232,200 $ 244,387 $ 918 $ 14511  $ 13,593 $ 157,963  $ 570,660 $ (178,103)
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NON-MAJOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Capital Improvement Fund- accounts for all financial resources of the Town related to
purchasing assets that meet the appropriate threshold for capitalization and take more than one
year to make ready for use by the Town.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual — Non-Major Capital Improvement Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Capital Improvement Fund

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures
Current
Public works and streets $ 10,372 $ 50 $ 10,322
Culture and recreation - 13,794 (13,794)
Capital outlay 1,073,129 91,354 981,775
Total expenditures 1,083,501 105,198 978,303
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (1,083,501) (105,198) 978,303
Other financing sources
Transfers in (out) 758,780 187,036 (571,744)
Total other financing
sources 758,780 187,036 (571,744)
Net change in fund balances (324,721) 81,838 406,559
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 323,191 323,191 -
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ (1,530) $ 405029 $ 406,559
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NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

Debt Service Fund- accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-
term debt principal, interest and related costs.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual — Non-Major Debt Service Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Debt Service Fund

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue
Investment income $ - $ 84 84
Total revenue - 84 84
Expenditures
Current
Health and welfare 118,705 118,700 5
Debt service
Principal 322,220 322,907 (687)
Interest 109,540 77,466 32,074
Total expenditures 550,465 519,073 31,392
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (550,465) (518,989) 31,476
Other financing sources
Proceeds of refunding bonds - 1,396,752 1,396,752
Payments to refunding bond trustee - (1,396,752) (1,396,752)
Transfers in 550,465 518,989 (31,476)
Total other financing
sources 550,465 518,989 (31,476)

Net change in fund balances - - -
Fund balances, July 1, 2014 - - -
Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ - $ - $ -
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual — Wastewater Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Woastewater Fund

Variance-
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues

Sewer charges $ 991,200 $ 1,026,844 $ 35,644

Miscellaneous 425,000 2,267 (422,733)
Total operating revenues 1,416,200 1,029,111 (387,089)

Operating expenses

Personnel 463,430 497,690 (34,260)

Materials and supplies 96,620 77,209 19,411

Professional services 71,920 40,660 31,260

Utilities 98,150 107,989 (9,839)

Insurance 6,900 6,900 -

Other 61,840 39,531 22,309

Repairs and maintenance 1,567,350 135,755 1,431,595

Bad debt - 25,000 (25,000)

Depreciation 740,000 746,528 (6,528)
Total operating expenses 3,106,210 1,677,262 1,428,948
Operating income (loss) (1,690,010) (648,151) 1,041,859

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest income 1,200 909 (291)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,200 909 (291)
Increase (decrease) in net position (1,688,810) (647,242) 1,041,568

Total net position, beginning of year, restated 19,077,466 19,077,466 -
Total net position, end of year $ 17,388,656 $ 18,430,224 $ 1,041,568
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Employee Assistance Fund — accounts for monies received from employees for providing other
employees monetary assistance when in special need exists.

Camp Verde Sanitary District Fund- accounts for monies received from Sanitary District
property tax revenues for the purpose of meeting the Districts debt service requirements.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Employee Assistance Fund

Assets
Restricted cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposit held for employees payable

Total liabilities

Camp Verde Sanitary District Fund

Assets
Restricted cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposit held for debt service payments

Total liabilities

Agency Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$ 10,435 3,489 $ 1,500 12,424
$ 10,435 3,489 $ 1,500 12,424
$ 10,435 3,489 $ 1,500 12,424
$ 10,435 3,489 $ 1,500 12,424
$ 579,205 1,273,986 $ 1,124,118 729,073
$ 579,205 1,273,986 $ 1,124,118 729,073
$ 579,205 1,273,986 $ 1,124,118 729,073
$ 579,205 1,273,986 $ 1,124,118 729,073
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The statistical section presents financial statement trends as well as detailed financial and operational
information not available elsewhere in the report. The statistical section is intended to enhance the
reader’s understanding of the information presented in the financial statements, notes to the financial
statements, and other supplementary information presented in this report. The statistical section is
comprised of the five categories of statistical information presented below.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain information on financial trends to help the reader understand how the Town’s
financial position and financial activities have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the Town’s ability to
generate revenue.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader evaluate the Town’s current levels of outstanding
debt as well as assess the Town’s ability to make debt payments and/or issue additional debt in the
future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules present various demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment in which the Town’s financial activities take place and to help make comparisons with other
municipalities.

Operating Information

These schedules contain information about the Town’s operations and various resources to help the
reader draw conclusions as to how the Town’s financial information relates to the services provided by
the Town.
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Governmental activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business-type activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Source: The Town's financial records.

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
11,390,529 10,488,341 $ 10,132,430 $ 9,300,597 $ 8422141 $ 7,963,191 $ 7,953,980 $ 7,929,411 $ 4,720,012 $ 4,541,070
5,567,076 2,270,348 2,460,792 2,719,944 2,545,163 1,838,636 1,375,836 1,219,728 3,967,997 3,276,858
(5,937,276) 2,411,149 2,263,284 1,946,642 2,376,365 3,626,780 3,845,605 3,915,724 3,244,968 3,091,403
11,020,329 15,169,838 $ 14,856,506 $ 13,967,183 $ 13,343,669 $ 13428607 $ 13,175421 $ 13,064,863 $ 11,932,977 $ 10,909,331
18,069,267 18,613,499 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
360,957 834,434
18,430,224 19,447,933 $ - 38 - $ - $ - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
29,459,796 29,101,840 $ 10,132,430 $ 9,300,597 $ 8,422,141 $ 7,963,191 $ 7,953,980 $ 7,929,411 $ 4,720,012 $ 4,541,070
5,567,076 2,270,348 2,460,792 2,719,944 2,545,163 1,838,636 1,375,836 1,219,728 3,967,997 3,276,858
(5,576,319) 3,245,583 2,263,284 1,946,642 2,376,365 3,626,780 3,845,605 3,915,724 3,244,968 3,091,403
29,450,553 34,617,771 $ 14,856,506 $ 13,967,183 $ 13,343,669 $ 13428607 $ 13,175421 $ 13,064,863 $ 11,932,977 $ 10,909,331

Note: The Town took over the Camp Verde Sanitary District Operations July 1, 2013 and classifies them above as business-type activities.
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Expenses

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works and streets
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Economic and community development
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Wastewater
Total business-type activities
Total expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General government
Public safety
Public works and streets
Culture and recreation
Economic and community development
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Wastewater
Total business-type activities
Total program revenues

Net Expense

Source: The Town's financial records.

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Expenses, Program Revenues, and Net Expense
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$ 2,776,465 $ 2,383,176 $ 2,361,960 $ 2125678 $ 2,407,140 $ 2,242817 $ 2306812 $ 2,110,980 $ 2,239,261 2,612,232
3,050,800 2,601,915 2,317,487 2,200,435 2,233,318 2,250,649 2,439,899 2,463,833 2,310,866 1,916,994
1,156,551 1,006,300 820,957 816,853 669,205 765,392 1,197,351 1,185,801 1,692,038 1,466,531
123,700 131,233 136,266 131,300 131,331 107,603 145,237 77,523 10,000 -
724,730 684,280 735,840 561,166 630,502 695,151 995,711 1,334,525 1,265,748 1,080,657
507,702 411,023 456,020 348,532 460,601 551,747 845,225 552,087 460,395 35,178
224,557 107,141 125,025 112,867 100,851 83,429 86,544 88,421 89,413 111,259
8,564,505 7,325,068 6,953,555 6,305,831 6,632,048 6,696,788 8,016,779 7,814,070 8,067,721 7,222,851
1,677,262 1,667,612 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
1,677,262 1,667,612 - - - - - - - -
10,241,767 3,092,680 6,953,555 6,305,831 6,632,048 6,696,788 8,016,779 7,814,070 8,067,721 7,222,851
25,234 51,173 18,221 43,244 304,018 303,797 304,269 399,952 582,776 1,312,310
457,097 412,704 454,195 373,510 88,421 91,651 94,397 139,246 41,931 86,566
16,214 42,817 500 5,942 3,429 55,132 56,109 - 21,887 2,050
42,332 43,565 35,274 36,957 43,746 88,751 101,703 160,177 193,536 60,222
194,789 188,391 190,062 151,498 101,929 105,337 221,229 189,428 338,303 -
1,084,065 1,103,424 1,032,082 1,012,413 1,490,745 1,297,444 1,585,120 1,361,690 1,394,477 1,619,413
438,025 182,421 647,539 969,961 - 6,491 32,815 703,532 - -
2,257,756 2,024,495 2,377,873 2,593,525 2,033,188 1,048,603 2,395,642 2,954,025 2,572,910 3,080,561
1,029,111 1,036,287 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
1,029,111 1,036,287 B - - - - - - -
3,286,867 3,060,782 2,377,873 2,593,525 2,033,188 1,948,603 2,395,642 2,954,025 2,572,910 3,080,561
$ (6.954,900) $ (5931,898) $ (4,575682) $ (3.712,306) $ (4,599,760) $ (4748,185) $ (5621,137) $  (4,860,045) $ (5,494,811 (4,142,290)

Note: The Town took over the Camp Verde Sanitary District Operations July 1, 2013.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
General Revenues and Total Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Net Expense $ (6,954,900) $ (5,931,898) $ (4,575,682) $ (3,712,306) $ (4,599,760) $ (4,748,185) $ (5,621,137) $ (4,860,045) $ (5,494,811) $ (4,142,290)
General Revenues:
Governmental activities:
Taxes:
Sales taxes 2,863,839 2,597,901 2,544,473 1,738,752 1,763,488 1,961,610 2,163,948 2,314,337 2,586,474 2,832,105
Franchise taxes 266,973 267,059 250,327 245,501 243,353 239,946 238,072 237,227 219,502 187,130
State shared revenues 2,942,726 2,758,435 2,567,890 2,325,940 2,441,489 2,755,897 3,091,906 3,154,857 2,919,698 2,714,144
Investment earnings 15,456 27,714 33,251 13,787 12,985 19,964 3,614 220,900 313,860 209,644
Miscellaneous 7,086 13,090 69,009 11,840 53,507 23,954 239,099 64,610 8,242 -
Total governmental activities 6,096,080 5,664,199 5,464,950 4,335,820 4,514,822 5,001,371 5,736,639 5,991,931 6,047,776 5,943,023
Business-type activities:
Investment earnings 909 1,621 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Special item* - 20,077,637
Total business-type activities 909 20,079,258 - - - - - - - -
Changes in Net Position $ (857,911) $ 19,811,559 $ 889,268 $ 623,514 $ (84,938) $ 253,186 $ 115,502 $ 1,131,886 $ 552,965 $ 1,800,733

Source: The Town's financial records.

Note: * - The Town took over the Camp Verde Sanitary District (CVSD) Operations July 1, 2013. In doing so, just over $20 million in assets
were transferred to the Town. All debt, however, remains with CVSD and is not a part of the Town's liabilities.
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General Fund:
Reserved
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds:
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
HURF fund
Parks fund
Housing grant fund
Non-major Special revenue funds
Non-major Debt service funds
Non-major Capital projects funds
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total all other governmental funds

Source: The Town's financial records.

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 013 2012 2011 2010 009 2008 2007 2006
$ 996886 $ 632,000 832,000 - -
$ -3 - 0% - 0% - 0% 22,096
662,091 662,056 632,000 632,000 1,033,628
1,912,675 1,844,848 1,621,049 1,284,934 1,950,054 2,352,892 2,990,296 2,732,574 3,518,376 3,229,020
$ 2574766 $ 2506904 $ 2253049 $ 1916934 $ 3005778 $ 3349778 $ 3,622,296 3,564,574 3,518,376 3,229,020
$ 571,720 $ 431,852 348,869 186,537 -
924,322 606,419 463,892 (122,328) 100,704
(339,161) (326,933) (744,077) 1,660,258 1,346,233
77,166 57,800 - - 45,916
294,374 296,350 445 566 336,599 48,364
- - - - 177,535
602,214 589,141 1,212,018 1,719,178 1,384,235
$ -3 - $ 79345  $ 83,198
5,456,179 2,143,445 2,473,096 2,483,485 2,294,509
- 11,214 686,629 694,215 185,200
431,842 491,190 - - -
(669,290) (614,955) (587,984) (378,467) (559,961)
$ 5218731 _$ 203089 $ 257,741 _$ 2878578 _$ 2002946 _$ 2,130,635 _$ 1,654,629 1,726,268 3,780,244 3,102,987

Note: The Town implemented GASB 54 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
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Taxes

Intergovernmental

Fines and forfeits

Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Contributions and donations
Investment income

Rents and royalties

Other

Total revenues

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Governmental Funds Revenues
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$ 3,130,812 $ 2,864,959 $ 2,794,799 $ 1,984,253 $ 2,006,841 $ 2,201,557 $ 2,402,020 $ 2,551,564 $ 2,805,976 $ 3,019,235
4,547,353 4,208,755 4,282,074 4,038,813 3,899,960 4,158,619 4,729,287 5,270,363 4,306,962 4,278,710
234,142 275,700 372,122 335,496 278,736 297,058 257,625 342,149 535,170 549,294
174,518 160,321 159,532 123,738 102,725 106,006 184,016 150,852 242,345 438,119
86,718 92,682 86,994 86,787 82,052 110,892 248,940 227,056 292,339 259,712
70,544 17,389 16,478 361,292 106,964 26,009 45,397 75,038 70,100 75,171
15,456 27,714 33,251 13,787 12,984 19,964 3,614 220,900 313,860 209,644
- - - - 3,068 5,048 20,788 43,424 45,692 43,660
36,828 68,768 58,742 36,021 149,967 23,784 126,628 73,206 19,968 170,363
$ 8,296,371 $ 7,716,288 $ 7,803,992 $ 6,980,187 $ 6,643,297 $ 6,948,937 $ 8,018,315 $ 8,954,552 $ 8,632,412 $ 9,043,908

Source: The Town's financial records.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Governmental Funds Expenditures and Debt Service Ratio
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Expenditures:
Current -
General government $ 2,630,384 $ 2,316,759 $ 2,307,763 $ 2,064,569 $ 2,333,981 $ 2,081,749 $ 2,225,758 $ 2,075,036 $ 2,190,340 $ 2,602,842
Public safety 2,613,138 2,400,085 2,222,092 2,148,531 2,080,685 2,283,648 2,286,640 2,322,781 2,136,825 3,411,061
Public works and streets 815,101 741,300 655,285 688,127 528,172 625,582 682,696 1,072,780 1,583,979 1,374,738
Health and welfare 123,700 131,233 136,266 131,300 131,332 107,603 14,527 77,523 10,000 -
Culture and recreation 634,283 623,996 680,810 508,581 579,516 637,130 857,850 1,141,267 1,102,211 1,332,275
Economic and community development 465,074 391,601 455,170 352,412 345,807 469,503 816,146 531,984 434,940 35,375
Capital outlay 860,979 969,031 1,801,828 913,146 2,059,278 396,478 846,250 3,588,221 625,952 -
Debt service -
Principal retirement 326,949 319,327 164,828 302,011 141,408 117,470 92,985 90,452 41,424 2,577
Interest and fiscal charges 78,312 118,067 116,056 84,722 103,044 89,070 92,185 94,061 95,054 118,089
Bond issuance costs - - - - 25,000 - - - - -
Total expenditures $ 8,547,920 $ 8,011,399 $ 8,540,098 $ 7,193,399 $ 8,328,223 $ 6,808,233 $ 7,915,037 $ 10,994,105 $ 8,220,725 $ 8,876,957
Expenditures for capitalized assets $ 860,979 $ 969,031 $ 1,801,828 $ 913,146 $ 1,884,647  $ 280,572 $ 302,307 $ 3,415,762 $ 305,602 $ 1,908,945
Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures 5% 6% 4% 6% 4% 3% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Source: The Town's financial records.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Other Financing Sources and Uses and Net Change in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Excess (deficiency) of

revenues over expenditures $ (251,549) $ (295,111) $ (736,106) $ (213,212) $ (1,684,926) $ 140,704  $ 103,278 $ (2,039553) $ 411687  $ 166,951
Other financing sources (uses):

Capital lease agreements 8,838 764,664 208,237 62,784 18,459 - 42,123 -

Proceeds of long-term debt issuance 4,904,000 1,005,000 - - - - -

Payments to Refunding Bond Trustee (1,396,752)

Transfers in 894,208 641,103 266,480 1,729,132 411,442 499,244 1,219,431 1,974,620 71,915 -

Transfers out (894,208) (641,103) (266,480) (1,729,132) (411,442) (499,244) (1,219,431) (1,942,845) (71,915) -

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,507,248 8,838 764,664 - 1,213,237 62,784 18,459 31,775 42,123 -

Changes in fund balances $ 3,255,699 $ (286,273) % 28,558 $ (213212) % (471,689) $ 203,488 3% 121,737 $ (2,007,778) $ 453,810 % 166,951

Source: The Town's financial records.
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Retail Trade

Restaurants & Bars
Communications & Utilities
Construction

Real Estate, Rental & Leasing
Accommodation

Arts & Entertainment
Manufacturing

Services

Wholesale Trade

Other

Total

Total revenue % growth by year

Tax Revenues by Category
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
1,106,741 1,040,491 990,166 686,400 691,160 701,977 832,860 898,920 1,068,343 1,108,776
520,320 473,070 437,452 309,169 301,925 307,921 319,393 324,358 321,300 305,811
269,845 230,848 251,911 127,280 167,542 150,683 118,950 135,303 136,274 126,126
212,866 182,702 236,112 128,008 142,535 353,081 307,651 430,671 512,790 681,725
173,914 170,109 170,973 147,728 134,821 140,596 122,225 111,852 121,702 115,071
207,993 138,850 131,748 88,626 84,609 110,798 142,302 148,694 139,946 116,911
134,961 114,106 92,444 59,604 62,416 53,087 62,039 56,874 52,342 42,792
67,644 75,231 72,694 57,808 52,222 55,908 53,684 68,785 64,840 58,736
69,088 75,939 57,851 45,369 42,630 59,894 133,860 43,705 44,090 48,833
28,043 26,000 57,668 59,127 54,873 64,400 112,402 159,886 144,925 133,614
71,912 67,486 42,385 26,309 28,756 36,839 54,597 81,322 102,832 137,798
2,863,327 2,594,832 $ 2,541,404 $ 1,735,428 $ 1,763,489 $ 2,035,184 2,259,963 2,460,371 2,709,385 2,876,192
10.3% 2.1% 46.4% -1.6% -13.3% -9.9% -8.1% -9.2% -5.8% 56.6%

Source: The Town's financial records and the Arizona Dept. of Revenue.

Note: See tax rate changes on the following page.
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Fiscal Year

2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006

Source:

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Tax Revenues by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

City
Sales Tax

2,655,846
2,459,051
2,412,725
1,650,126
1,678,879
1,850,812
2,021,646
2,165,643
2,446,528
2,715,194

Franchise Accomodation/
Tax Bed Tax
266,973 207,993
267,059 138,850
250,327 131,748
245,501 88,626
243,353 84,609
239,946 110,798
238,072 142,302
237,227 148,694
219,502 139,946
187,130 116,911

The Town's financial records and the Arizona Dept. of Revenue.
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Total

3,130,812
2,864,960
2,794,800
1,984,253
2,006,841
2,201,556
2,402,020
2,551,564
2,805,976
3,019,235



TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Overlapping Rates

Fiscal
Year Town of Camp Verde

Ended Real Property Yavapai Arizona

June 30 Sales Tax Hospitality Rentals Construction County State
2015 3.65 6.65 2.00 3.65 0.75 5.60
2014 3.00 6.00 2.00 3.00 0.75 5.60
2013 3.00 6.00 2.00 3.00 0.75 5.60
2012 2.00 4.00 2.00 3.00 0.75 6.60
2011 2.00 4.00 2.00 3.00 0.75 6.60
2010 2.00 4.00 2.00 3.00 0.75 6.60
2009 2.00 4.00 2.00 3.00 0.75 5.60
2008 2.00 4.00 2.00 3.00 0.75 5.60
2007 2.00 4.00 2.00 3.00 0.75 5.60
2006 2.00 4.00 2.00 3.00 0.75 5.60

Source: Arizona Department of Revenue.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Governmental Activities

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business-type Activities

Total Outstanding Debt

Percentage

Fiscal Revenue Capital Loans Bonds Notes Total of Personal Per
Year Bonds Leases Payable Payable Payable Debt Income Capita
2015 $ 5,702,227 $ 471,967 $ - $ - - 6,174,194 N/A N/A
2014 2,281,084 625,670 - - - 2,906,754 0.04% 266
2013 2,446,200 770,465 - - - 3,216,665 0.05% 293
2012 2,600,000 11,463 5,276 - - 2,616,739 0.04% 240
2011 2,685,000 224,305 9,665 - - 2,918,970 0.04% 269
2010 1,765,000 68,502 13,638 - - 1,847,140 0.03% 170
2009 1,845,000 39,592 17,234 - - 1,901,826 0.03% 175
2008 1,925,000 30,862 20,490 - - 1,976,352 0.03% 181
2007 2,005,000 38,367 23,437 - - 2,066,804 0.03% 191
2006 2,040,000 - 25,168 - - 2,065,168 0.03% 195

Source: The Town's financial records.

Note: FY15 population information was not available at the time the audit was completed.

- 106 -



TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Revenue Total Per
Year Bonds Bonds Capita
2015 $ 5,702,227 $ 5,702,227 N/A
2014 2,281,084 2,281,084 209
2013 2,446,200 2,446,200 223
2012 2,600,000 2,600,000 239
2011 2,685,000 2,685,000 247
2010 1,765,000 1,765,000 162
2009 1,845,000 1,845,000 170
2008 1,925,000 1,925,000 177
2007 2,005,000 2,005,000 185
2006 2,040,000 2,040,000 193

Source: The Town's financial records.

Note: FY15 population information was not available at the time the audit
was completed.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
June 30, 2015

Estimated Estimated
Percentage Amount
Debt Applicable to Applicable to
Governmental Unit Outstanding Town Town
Overlapping:
Yavapai County Community College* $ 37,395,000 2.7% $ 993,757
Camp Verde Unified School District - 91.5% -
Camp Verde Fire District - 100.0% -
Camp Verde Sanitary District 11,144,079 100.0% 11,144,079
Total Overlapping Debt $ 12,137,836
Direct:
Town of Camp Verde 6,174,194 100.0% 6,174,194
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 18,312,030

Source: Arizona Department of Revenue (azdor.gov) Bonded Indebtedness report
Yavapai County Assessor's Office

Note: * - FY14 debt amount was used as the information for FY15 was not yet available.
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6% Debt Limit

Primary Assessded Value (HIDE)
Debt Limit

Total applicable to limit
Legal debt margin
Total net debt applicable to

the limit as a percentage
of the debt limit

20% Debt Limit

Debt Limit

Total applicable to limit
Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to

the limit as a percentage
of the debt limit

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
61,464,859 61,658,697 65,576,506 71,284,066 81,699,851 93,710,990 110,746,846 106,919,901 73,375,205 63,401,800
3,687,892 3,699,522 3,934,590 4,277,044 4,901,991 5,622,659 6,644,811 6,415,194 4,402,512 3,804,108
3,687,892 3,699,522 3,934,590 4,277,044 4,901,991 5,622,659 6,644,811 6,415,194 4,402,512 3,804,108
0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
12,292,972 12,331,739 13,115,301 14,256,813 16,339,970 18,742,198 22,149,369 21,383,980 14,675,041 12,680,360
12,292,972 12,331,739 13,115,301 14,256,813 16,339,970 18,742,198 22,149,369 21,383,980 14,675,041 12,680,360
0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Source: The Town's financial records and the Yavapai County Assessor's Office.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Pledged Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Excise Tax Debt Service
Year Revenue Principal Interest Coverage %
2015 6,073,538 $ 172,857 66,610 25
2014 5,623,395 $ 165,115 105,755 21
2013 5,362,690 $ 153,800 112,998 20
2012 4,310,193 $ 85,000 102,793 23
2011 4,448,330 $ 85,000 82,725 27
2010 4,957,453 $ 80,000 85,250 30
2009 5,493,926 $ 80,000 87,600 33
2008 5,706,421 $ 80,000 89,650 34
2007 5,725,674 $ 35,000 91,475 45
2006 5,733,379 $ - 86,706 66

Source: The Town's financial records.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Demographic and Economic Statistics — Yavapai County
Last Ten Calendar Years

Town of Yavapai County County County
Camp Verde County Personal Per Capita Unemployment

Year Population Population Income (1) Income Rate
2014 10,925 218,844 7,172,392 32,774 6.3 %
2013 10,960 215,389 6,811,155 31,623 8.0 %
2012 10,883 212,530 6,800,376 31,997 8.6 %
2011 10,849 210,867 6,498,204 30,817 9.8 %
2010 10,875 210,137 6,245,478 29,721 109 %
2009 10,871 211,172 6,272,906 29,705 10.3 %
2008 10,892 211,211 6,602,128 31,258 6.0 %
2007 10,829 208,773 6,602,162 31,624 3.6 %
2006 10,596 204,082 6,058,552 29,687 39 %
2005 10,148 195,424 5,471,859 28,000 44 %

Sources: Bureau of Economic Analysis (bea.gov)
Arizona Office of Employment & Population Statistics (azstats.gov)
Unemployment Rate information from US Bureau of Labor Statistics (bls.gov)

Note: (1) - In thousands of dollars
Information for FY15 was not available at the time of printing.
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TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Principal Employers — Yavapai County
Current, Prior, & Nine Years Ago Fiscal Years

2015 2014 2006
Percentage
of Total

Employer Employees Employment Employees Employees

Cliff Castle Casino & Hotel 327 136 % 490 N/A
Yavapai-Apache Nation 294 12.3 217 N/A
Camp Verde Unified School District 227 9.5 197 N/A
Town of Camp Verde 117 4.9 107 N/A
Bashas 102 4.3 110 N/A
Rainbow Acres 80 3.3 70 N/A
The Haven of Camp Verde 55 2.3 58 N/A
Out of Africa Wildlife Park 47 2.0 48 N/A
McDonald's 38 1.6 46 N/A
Denny's 34 1.4 36 N/A
Total 1,321 55.0 % 1,379 -
Total Employment* 2,400 2,500 N/A

Source(s): The Town's financial records.
United States Census Bureau (census.gov)
Local business' records

Note: Total employment information for FY2006 was not available.

Total employment for 2014 & 2015 is estimated from the Town's financial records and
other sources.
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General Government
Management Services
Finance
Economic Development
Municipal Court

Total General Government

Public Safety
Marshal's Department
Animal Control

Total Public Safety

Public Works
Admin
Streets
Maintenance

Total Public Works

Library

Parks & Recreation

Community Development

Sewer

Total

Source: The Town's financial records.

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
5.2 5.1 51 51 5.4 54 52 7.2 5.0 7.0
2.2 2.2 2.0 2.0 1.0 25 2.0 21 29 2.9
1.6 1.6 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
5.6 5.6 5.6 5.6 5.6 55 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0

14.6 14.5 13.7 13.7 6.6 8.0 8.0 8.1 8.9 8.9
32.2 30.2 26.7 28.0 26.0 28.0 29.6 32.6 31.0 30.0
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
33.2 31.2 27.7 29.0 27.0 30.0 31.6 34.6 33.0 32.0
2.8 2.4 17 1.0 10 25 15 10 1.0 0.0
5.2 6.2 5.8 54 5.0 35 6.5 7.0 6.0 6.0
7.4 7.2 6.2 6.4 7.0 6.0 6.0 7.0 8.0 7.0
15.4 15.8 13.7 12.8 13.0 12.0 14.0 15.0 15.0 13.0
6.2 5.8 53 54 4.2 5.0 54 5.4 4.6 4.9
4.6 4.3 3.5 3.6 3.6 2.8 2.7 3.7 3.0 4.0
6.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 7.0 6.0 8.0
7.2 7.1 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
87.1 83.7 68.9 69.4 58.4 61.8 66.7 73.8 70.5 70.8
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Function

Public Safety
Police stations
Police patrol vehicles
Streets
Streets (miles)
Streetlights
Traffic signals
Parks and Recreation
Parks developed
Parks acreage
Swimming pools
Tennis courts
Sewer
Pipeline (Miles)
Manholes

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA

Capital Assets Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015

Source: The Town's facilities records.

29
440

2014 2013 2012 2011
1 1 1 1
31 22 19 17
110 110 110 110
110 110 110 110
6 6 6 6

4 4 4 4
138 138 138 138
1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1
29 29 29 29
440 440 440 440
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2010

30

110

29
440

2009

29
440

2008

20
265

2007

29

106
102

20
265

2006

26

105

20
265



Eunction

General Government

Business Licenses
Public Safety

Total Incidents
Public Works

Street Resurfacing (miles)
Library

Circulation

Traffic
Community Development

Building Permits

Source: The Town's records.

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
Operating Indicators By Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2015

673

10,020

62,140
67,824

331

2014 2013 2012 2011
645 650 582 555
13,782 10,462 11,614 11,234
52,631 51,303 63,580 59,883
33,787 27,766 25,831 22,336
362 387 312 341
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2010

597
10,420
0.25

76,813
N/A

364

2009

576

8,348

80,139
N/A

128

2008

556

10,281

69,349
N/A

107

2007

544
9,741
8.30

62,855
N/A

151

2006

542
9,821
8.70

58,722
N/A

348



" ™3 Town of Camp Verde

[Ayendq Item Subﬁi}.;.;}bn Form - Section I

Meeting Date: January 20, 2015

[] Consent Agenda [ "1 Decision Agenda [ Executive Session Requested
D4 Presentation Only ~ [[] Action/Presentation  [_)Special Session ] Pre-Session
Requesting Department: Economic Development

Staff Resource/Contact Person: Steve Ayers

Agenda Title (be exact): Presentation followed by discussion of Buxton Company’s proposal to provide retail

recruitment and retention services to the Town of Camp Verde.
List Aftached Documents:

1) Proposed Scope of Work Draft

2) Benefits of Retail Strategy

3) Buxton Business Retention Program
4) Buxton Consumer Report

3) Buxton Camp Verde Leakage Report

Estimated Presentation Time: 20 minutes

Estimated Discussion Time: 15 minutes

Reviews Completed by:

X Department Head: [C] Town Attorney Comments:

Finance Review. [ ] Budgeted [} Unbudgeted N/A

Finance Director Comments/Fund:
Fiscal Impact:

Budget Code: Amount Remaining:

Comments:

Background Information:

The citizens of the Camp have repeatedly, through the Community General Plan and other documents,
sought the opportunity shop locally. In addition, because the Town of Camp Verde’s primary revenue source



comes from transaction privilege taxes, there is a clear and present need to grow the number and size of
retail sales transactions.

Now that we have begun extension of sanitary sewer setvice in the area of State Route 260 East and Finnie
Fiat and are on the verge of developing infrastructure to additional commercial properties along the soon-to-
be-widened State Route 260 West commercial corridor, it is time the Town began a proactive recruitment
strategy to bring potential retailers to Camp Verde.

Buxton is one of the largest retail recruitment services companies in the nation, serving over 2,500 national
retailers along with dozens of communities, of all size, across the country. Buxton is also one of the largest
retail analytics service companies in America, capable of providing accurate information from which to make
educated and realistic decisions when it comes to identifying potential retailers. in addition, Buxton’s
analytics also serve existing retailers looking to expand products and services.

Recommended Action (Motion): | am requesting direction from council to bring back a firm proposal from Buxton
for council's consideration

Instructions to the Clerk:



Buxton Rough Draft Scope of Services — Camp Verde, AZ

Below you will find our standard Scope of Work outline for our Multi-year partnership:

Retail Recruitment and Retention Solution: Your Community Profile

Our solution is a total marketing strategy that enables community leaders to understand the consumer
profile of their residents and to identify specific retailers and restaurants who seek a market with
household purchasing habits just like yours. This solution provides you with the ability to actively
pursue identified retailers, making a compelling case for their expansion to your community by utilizing
custom marketing packages that Buxton will create for you. You will have access to the same analytical
information and insights retailers depend on today to make site selection decisions providing you with
instant credibility and the ability to differentiate your community.

Step 1 - Research Your Community

Buxton uses over 250 consumer and business databases that are updated regularly and compare your
potential sites to the universe of all competing sites operating in the U.S. We define your current retail
situation and those in any neighboring communities that impact your retail environment.

Step 2 — Define and Evaluate Your Trade Area

Customers shop by convenience, measuring distance based on time, not mileage. We will conduct a
custom drive-time analysis to determine your trade area using our proprietary methodology and
knowledge of individual retail client’s actual trade areas. Your drive-time trade area will be provided to
you as a map that accurately depicts your consumer shopping patterns.

Step 3 — Profile Your Trade Area’s Residential Customers

Your community profile will analyze all the households in your drive-time trade area. Based on more
than 7,500 categories of lifestyles, purchase behaviors and media reading and viewing habits
{psychographics), the households in your trade area are assessed to gain an understanding of the types
of retailers that would be attracted to your site.

Step 4 — We Match Retailers and Restaurants to Market Potential

Buxton will match the consumer profile of your community’s trade area against the customer profiles of
5,000+ retailers in our proprietary database. We will identify the similarity between the two profiles
analyzed using Buxton’s proprietary retail matching algorithm to determine if your site presents an
attractive opportunity for each retailer. We then qualify the list of matched results to verify that a
retailer is currently operating or expanding , that they operate in similar sites and that your site affords
adequate buffer from competition and cannibalization to be realistically considered.

Step 5 — We Create Marketing Packages
Buxton will assemble individualized marketing packages for up to twenty (20) targeted retailers and will
notify each retailer’s key real estate decision maker, by letter that they have been qualified by Buxton as
a potential viable fit for your site and should expect to be contacted by a representative of the
city. Your marketing packages will be delivered to you in SCOUT and include:

1. Map of the retail site and trade area

2. Map of retailer's potential customers



3. Retailer match report that compares the site’s trade area characteristics and consumer profile
with the retailer’s sites in similar trade areas

Step 5 = Implementation

Buxton will assist in the implementation of the retail development roadmap as an extension of your
staff. Throughout the implementation phase, our team assists with breaking down the barriers of
engagement with the targeted retailers through being an unbiased third party market research firm.

Solution Deliverables:
e SCOUT Touch Access

=  Drive Time Trade Area Maps

*  Retail Site Assessment

*  Retail Match List (specific retailers that match your trade area’s consumer profile)
» Retailer Specific Marketing Packages (for up to twenty (20) retailers)

»  Mobile tablet device at completion pre-loaded with all findings

Multi Year Deliverables: Year 2 & 3 of this partnership will include a Retail Recruitment model refresh,
retail marketing packages, and full SCOUT and SCOUT Touch.

Partnership Investment Structure:

Initial 3-year term - $50,000 annually with provisions in place allowing evaluation of partnership each
year



Public Sector.

Buraon

THE THREE BENEFITS OF RETAIL
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

Retail Is The Nation's Largest

Non-Farm Employment Sector

Economic development initiatives often focus
on recruiting "big” companies and industries,
while overlooking what the U.S. Bureau of Labor
Statistics reports is the nation’s largest non-farm

employment sector: retail.

Retailers come in many shapes and sizes and tend
to be very sensitive to economic swings, making
it critical that communities develop strategies to
attract and retain the right retailers. If you aren’t
convinced that retail development is worth the
investment, here are three benefits that a thriving

retail sector provides.

RETAIL DEVELOPMENT

BENEFITS:

1. Increase Sales Tax Revenue

Z. Enhance Quzlity of Life

3. Support Locs! Busingsses

“Finding the right match is critical
for communities planning to
recruit retail, One retailer's
success in a community often
attracts others.”

Cody Howell

Vice President & Genural Manager, Buxton

Benefit #1:

Increase Sales Tax Revenue

Perhaps the primary driver of retail recruitment
efforts is sales tax collection, which has played an
important role in making up for shortfalls in other

revenue streams.

The share of sales tax revenue generated by
retailers is substantial. But if your residents

have to leave the community to shop at their
preferred retail outlets, those sales tax dollars

end up benefitting a neighboring community. By
identifying and recruiting the retailers that are

the best match for your community’s needs and
interests, you can keep sales tax dollars in your
city’s general fund and invest the money back into

local public projects and services.



Convenient shopping and dining options greatly
contribute to a community’s quality of life. Shorter
drive-times save time and fuel costs, while
increasing the frequency of visits. But to truly
enhance quality of life, community leaders should
focus on recruiting the retailers that are the best
match for the community’s needs and desires.
Otherwise, residents may continue to bypass
local retailers in favor of others that provide the

products, services, or experiences they seek.
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Use Buxton's SCOUT platform te recruit
the best retailers for your community.

uxron

Retail development efforts shouldn't focus
exclusively on recruitment. An equally important
part of any strategy is support for existing retailers.
Whether existing outlets are owned by local
entrepreneurs or larger chains, they can all benefit
from insights on local demographic and lifestyle
trends, competitors in neighboring communities,
and {ocal government decisions that could impact
their business. Smart communities use analytical
tools to help existing retailers optimize their
location, marketing, and merchandising strategies,

contributing to long-term success.

Since 1994, Buxton has provided big answers for
retailers and communities. Qur insights go beyond
broad regional demographics by drilling down

to the household-level in order to give you the
clearest picture of your community. \We've helped
650 communities recruit over 35 million square feet

of retail space. Contact us today to learn more.

GET TO KNOW US. 1-888-2BUXTON | buxton@buxtonco.com | wwiv.buxtorco com
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A thriving local business community is essential 3 ?
for economic success. But with all of the ) = ah
competing demands on your time, how can you B TATaTr e
efficiently and effectively provide the answers I o -n
entrepreneurs need in order to decide whether I' ! —
to expand their businesses...or even simply to TRe . iy

CLEAR SCEUT

stay in your community?

With Buxton’s consumer analytics, you can help

your local businesses spot opportunities for
growth.

¢ Understand the retail and restaurant categories that present the best new business opportunities
¢ Identify the products and services local businesses should offer based on consumer purchase propensities
¢ Enhance local business marketing programs with a detailed knowledge of local consumer attitudes and

preferences

To learn more about the consumer reports available through Buxton and how they can help your business

retention and expansion efforts, contact us today.

won
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BUXTON

Powering

Local Business
Growth

If you own a local business or are considering starting one, you face a lot of important and difficult questions.
* What retail or restaurant categories are most likely to be successful in my community?
¢ Is there enough demand in the trade area for me to add an additional location?
*  What merchandise mix or menu items should | offer?
¢ How can | create marketing materials that better resonate with my local audience?

Fortunately, your local government can help you find the answers to these questions and many more. Through
your community’s partnership with Buxton, the leader in consumer analytics, you can access local reports to

understand factors such as the following:
¢ The categories of retail and restaurants that have unmet demand...and the ones that are saturated

¢ The products and services that consumers in your area are most likely to purchase
* The lifestyles and attitudes of local consumers, including the psychographic segments that are most

dominant in your community

To learn more about Buxton's reports and how to access them, please contact your local economic

development representatives.

About Buxton
Buxton is the industry leader in customer analytics. We help businesses understand who their customers

are, where more potential customers are located and the value of each customer. More than 3,000 clients in
the retail, restaurant, healthcare, private equity, and public sectors have relied on our insights to guide their
growth strategies. Retail clients include Jamba Juice, GNC and Anthropologie.

Won
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis

The Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis examines the quantitative aspect of the community's retail
opportunities. It is a guide to understanding retail opportunities but it is not an analysis that indicates
unconditional opportunities. The analysis is sometimes called "a gap analysis” or "a supply and demand
analysis” and can did in the following:

- Indicating how well the retail needs of local residents are being met

- Uncovering unmet demand and possible opportunities

- Understanding the strengths and weaknesses of the local retail sector
- Measuring the difference between estimated and potential retail sales

Understanding Retail Leakage

Retail leakage means that residents are spending more for products than local businesses capture. Retail sales
leakage suggests that there is unmet demand in the trade area and that the community can support
additional store space for that type of business,

However, retail leakage does not necessarily translate into opportunity. For exampie, there could be a strong
competitor in a neighboring community that dominates the market for that type of product or store.

Understanding Retail Surplus

A retail surplus means that the community’s frade area is capturing the local market plus attracting non-local
shoppers. A retail surplus does not necessarily mean that the community cannot support additional business.
Many communities have developed strong clusters of stores that have broad geographic appeadl. Examples of
these types of retdilers include: sporting goods stores, home furnishing stores, restaurants, and other specialty
operations that become destination retailers and draw customers from outside the trade area.

Examining the quantitative aspects {Leakage/Surplus) is only part of the evaluation of community's retail
opportunities. Before any conclusions can be drawn about potential business expansion or recruitment
opportunities, qualitative considerations such as trade area psychographics and buying habits must be
analyzed in context of other market factors.

Interpreting Leakage Index

1.0 = equilibrium, meaning that demand and sales in the area being analyzed are in balance.

.80 = demand exceeds sales by 20%, meaning that consumers are leaving the area being analyzed.
1.2 = sales exceed demand by 20%, meaning that consumers are coming from outside the area being
analyzed.

Al edirmates, prjectiors or forecosts in this model are subject to en s, including statistic.al enmor, enur Jue o the subjective nature of sore deta, eror due fo changes in demoanraphics, etror kased on
lagging ¢« mpetitor information or gre-vih data, end enor due 12 fuztus thol are not included in the madel. The user ¢ sumes all fisk of reliance on this infarmation.

1-888-2BUXTON buxton@buxtonceo.com www.buxtonco,.com BU‘&[OH.



Retdil Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.5634836, -111.854318

Leakage/Surplus Index by Major Store Type

The guantitative comparison of retail leakage and surpius in the twelve maijor store types shown in the chart
and table below provides an initial measure of market opportunities. Combining this analysis with the
knowledge of the local retail situation will take the process of identifying retail possibilities one step further.

Figure 1 provides the leakage/surplus indices and following is-the sates potential and estimated sales for major
store types.

ure 1. Leakage/Surplus Index and Estimated and Potential Sales by Major Store Types

Fic

Heglth-&Pesondl o Sh

L5 Elathing At
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Motor Vehicle Parts & Dealers 38,411,702 29,802,18 0.8

Furniture & Home Furnishing Stcres 5,453,586 576,037 0.1
Electronics & Appliance Stores 5,164,691 1,129,706 0.2
Bullding t4Aaterial & Garden Equipment & Supply Dealers 14,557 107 9,139,959 0.6
Food & Beverage Stores 30,279,523 35,493,776 1.2
Health & Personal Care Stores 12,777,247 5,536,823 0.4
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 10,656,026 121,776 0.0
Sporting Geoods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores 4,844,878 235,561 00
General Merchandise Stores 30,576,956 29,028,099 0.9
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 6,984,203 2.436,070 0.3
Foodservice & Drinking Places 24,534,839 19,990,855 0.8

1Ba200.753

All estim ates, projectlan: cr ferecasts in this model ar 2 subject to emci+, including alirtical emar, emor due to the subjecti & natur: «f syme data, emrer due te changes in der.agrar hics, smror b ased on
lagging comp-etitar infermnation wr gro th data, and error dus to factor: that ore netincluded in the model. The user assumes all risk of reliance <n this informati-n.
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.563636, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Motor Vehicle Parts & Dedlers

Elirnctted. Sales ; g
Aufomotive Dealers 30,408, 45] 26,347,084 {19
Qther Motoi Yehicle Dealers 3531905 2604 726 o7
Automotive Parts, Accessories, & Tire Sives 4,473,345

All e fimotes, projections or forzcasts in this mc del ar:« snbject to emors, inzluding statistical emor, error due te the subjectie nature of reme data, emor due 12 ehanges in d=maographics, enor based on
lagging competitor informatic n wr growth data, and error due to foators that are i+ Tosluded in the model, The user agumes all risk ¢ f reliunce on this informatian.
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.563636, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Furniture & Home Furnishing Stores

L 3 = ! [ 5 oy
Furniture Stores 2700091 ] D
2.753.495 12

Al estimates, prejections or forecasts in this modef are subject ta en ars. including statistical emcr, error due to the :ubjectt.e naturz of some date, emrer due to chances in demegraphics, eror beed on
logging cempetitor information er gr. vth data, and en st due to tactorns that are not included in the m del. The user arsumes all fisk ~f reliznce on this infarmalion.
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Retoil Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.5634636, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Electronics & Appliance Stores

Household Appliances Stores 569,071

148,780 0.3

Radio, Television and Cther Electronics Siores 3150428 645,251 02
Computer and Software Stores 1,307,377 327,843 0.3

137,815

Camera & Photographic Eguipmsant Stores
: : ianceStores

All esfimates, prejections or fore sasts in this me 2l are subject fo enor:, including stafisticel enar, erer due t¢ the subjeclive nature of scme dula. eror due to change: in demegraphics, errer based cn
lagqing cumpetitor informaticn or gro th data. ond emor due te fest-ws that are not included in the model. The user assumes all risk of reliance wn this infermation,
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-fime around 34.563636, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Building Material & Garden Equipment & Supply Dealers

(e o

Home Centers 5,596,648 46,102 0.0

Paint and Wallpaper Stores 489,852 178,493 0.4
Haordware Stores 1,162,459 1,369,545 1.2
Other Building *Materials Dealers 4,067 957 6,611,689 1.6
Outdoor Power Equipment Stores 525,366 31,143 0.0

2,714,825 902,987 0.3
SEAnT

Nuisery and Garden centers

All estimates, projeclions ¢ f.recasts in this model are subject e en “rz, includinq statistical emor, errer due to the subjecti e nature ef some dala, emor due to changes in demogr aphics, erer bused on
legging compstiter information ¢ r growvth data, and err=r due 1. fuct-rs that are net included in the modcl. The user assumes all rick of relianze on this infarmation,
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.563636, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Food & Beverage Stores

Supermarkets and Other Grocery {except Convenience) Stores

25,652,225 30,482,980 1.2

Convenience Stores 1,458,986 3,345,979 2.3

Specialty Food Stores 1,117,524 747,312 0.7

Beer, Wine, & Liquor Stores 2,050,788 #17,505 0.4
= Cemel & Bevempe Stares 30.279.523 35 AT

All estim_tes, projections or foreza: 15 Tn this m. el arz subfect 1, e, including statistical emor. emor due o the subjective nature of 2ame data, error dus o changes in demograr hice. emor ba-=d on
lagigiing competitor information or gro th data, and error due te factars that cre not included in the madel, The user assumes all risk of refiance on this Infermertion.
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Retall Leakage and Surplus Analysis

15-minute drive-time around 34.563436, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Health & Personal Care Stores

Jptlioel Gaodd

indiFarsanal Sale 5t

Heghth & Heronal i Care 5

Pharmacies and Drug Stores

Cosmetics, Beauty Supplies and Perfume Stores
Optical Goods Stores

Other Health aind Personal Care Stores

7

fmity BoTH R & Farianal Cate Stores

5,248,81C

10,734,57 0.5
653,481 274,086 0.4
484,959 0 0.0
904,225 13927 0.0

All estimates, projections ur fur2cc s in this model -wre subject by emcr, Tneludina stotistical enor, en.r due to the subjective nature f some data, efror due t5 changes In demographics, emor b 3sed on
lagging competiter infurmation or grevih data, and errcr due te fazter: th at are not included in the medel. The user assumes all rizk of reliance =~ n this infci.nation.
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.563436, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores

322,015 55,094 0.2

Mens Clothing Stores

Womens Clothing Stores 1.659,032 c 0o
Childrens and Infants Clething Stores 615,243 0 0.0
Family Clothing Stores 4,297,113 0 0.0
Clothing Accessories Stores 295,859 0 0.0
Other Clothing Stores 549,794 40,498 0.0
Shoe Stores 1.908.815 0 00
Jewelrs Stores 751,992 26,182 00
L 256,163 0 0.0

uggage & Leather Goods Stores

1), 655 024 121,224

Miaies Lk

All estimates, projections ar fc razasts in this model are sublect to emis, including sialitical emcr, eror due to the subjective nature of same data, encr due 1o chan:jes in demograrhics, emror k ased on
lagging cumpetiter infermation er gre. th data, and enwr due 1o Faztars thot are net included in the model, The user assumes all fisk of refance on this infermatian.
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.563436, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores

Sporting Goods Stores 2,299,859 59,559 0.0

Hebby, Toys and Games Stores 1199272 176,002 0.1
Sew/Neddlework/Piece Goods Stores 384,756 0 c.o
Musical Instrument and Supplies Stores 147,931 0 Q.0
Book Stcres 518,478 0 0.0
News Dealers and Nevssstands 112,355 0 00
Prerecorded Tape, Compact Disc, and Record Stores 182,227 0 0.0

It Spatling Sono, Hotiny. Beat L bsinis 5

All estimates, projeti-ns or foracasts in this model are subject to en sr, insluding stalistic Jl error, erer Jue k. the subject e nature of some dala, =7 due to ~hanges in demcgraphics. ercr kased on
lagging competiter informati_n ¢r gr. ~th data, and ercr due to factors that are nut included in the moadel. The user assumes all risk of refiance on this information.
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.5636346, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of General Merchandise Stores

e Chabs & Supe

nEral Rerchon

nardt] Merct

5 : Palential 6 .

Department Stores excluding lease<! degais 8.1 4% 581 84,621 0.0
Warehouse Clubs & Supercenters 19:315.28) 25,044 564 1.3
All Other General Merchandise Stores 3.111.9%4 3,898,914 1.3

All estimates, pt _jections or I 2casts in this mu. el are subject 15 er v including stulitlical enar, error due to the subjectize nture 4 some data, =mor due to changes in dem.graphics, eror ba:ed on
lagging ~ompetiter infarmafion or growth data, and error due te facters that arz not included in the me Jal, The user assumes all risk of refiance on this informatian.
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.563436, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Miscellaneous Store Retailers

MscallanzeusSie

Florists 458,180 96,248 0.2
Office Supplies and Stationery Storss 1,661,732 0 0.0
Gift, Novelty, and Seuwenir Stores 1.270.711 64,620 0.0
Used Merchandise Stores 733,056 294,854 04
Other Miscellanecus Store Retallers 3,460,544 1,980,348 0.6

olol Miscelansous Sfare Retale

Al estimates, projection: or furesasts in 1his model ar 2 rubject 1o emers, including statistice! enor, eror due te the rukje :fi-e nalure of zame data, emor due jo changes in demagraphics, eor kc.ed on
lazging corap 2fitor informatin :r gre-vh dota, ond emor due 1o facters that aix not insluded in the me del. The user assumes all risk of refance cn this infammation.
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Retall Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.563636, -111.854318

Sub-Categories of Foodservice & Drinking Places

Cymkna Blaiie: - Alzakinli

8,510,241 0.8

Full-service Restaurants 10,603,498

Limited-service Eating Places 10,535,535 8,170,274 0.8

Special Foodservices 2,287,779 2,266,526 1.0
1108,027 1,043,814 0.9

Drinking Place - Alcoholic Beverages
) ey e 1) 24,534 939 12520855

errar due to the subjective natur of some data, eror due to chanaes in demcgraphics, eror bared on
lag:sing competitor informe:tion or gi- wvth data, and efror due te factors that are net included In the model. The user assumes all risk ¢/ refiance on this infarmation,

Al esfimates, pr_jeclions or ferecosts in this m~del are subject &, erors, including statisticsl enci,
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Retail Leakage and Surplus Analysis  15-minute drive-time around 34.563636, -111.854318

Sources and Methodology

The primary data sources used in the consfruction of the database include:

- Current Year CAPE (Census Area Projections & Estimates) Consumer Expenditure Estimates
- Census of Retail Trade, Merchandise Line Sales
- Census Bureau Monthly Retail Trade

The Census of Retail Trade presents a table known as the Merchandise Line summary, which relates
approximately 120 merchandise lines {e.g. hardware) to each of the store types. For each merchandise iine,
the distribution of sales by store type can be computed, yielding a conversion table which apportions
merchandise line sales by store type.

The CAPE (Census Area Projections & Estimates} Consumer Expenditure database was re-computed fo these
merchandise lines by aggregating both whole and partial categories, yielding, at the block group level, a
series of merchandise line estimates which are consistent with the CAPE Consumer Expenditure database.

These two components were then combined in order to derive estimated potential by store type. The results
were then compared to current retail frade statistics to ensure consistency and completeness.

All estimates, projections or forecasts in thi: model are Jubject ta emars, including stati-fical error, emor due to the subjective nature of some data, erer due to changes in demcaraphics, emor b ased on
laggin 1 competitor informetian or gre-th data, 3nd emor due to taclors that ore net included in the mndel. The user assumes all risk of reliance on this information.
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QUARTERLY REPORT
Board of Adjustments & Appeals
October — December 2015

REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETINGS: 3

Tuesday, October 13, 2015 - Regular Session

Present: Chairman Binick, Vice Chairman Hough, Board Members Blue, Lichty, Stevens and Buchanan
Absent: Board Member McHenry

Tuesday, November 10, 2015 - Reqular Session

Cancelled, no business before the Board

Tuesday, December 8, 2015 - Regular Session
Cancelled, no business before the Board

SPECIAL SESSION MEETINGS: 0
WORK SESSIONS: 0

THE FOLLOWING APPLICATIONS WERE APPROVED:

October 13, 2015: Approval of a variance request by owner Laura and Michael Spaan to seek a reduction from the
required side yard setback of 25' to a reduced side setback of 7’ on the west side of the parcel to construct a single family
home. The buildable area of the parcei is potentially limited due to fiood zone and topography constraints. The property is
located adjacent to 2610 North Thomas Paine Circle, parcel 403-20-009A.

THE FOLLOWING APPLICATIONS WERE DENIED:
There were no applications denied.

THE FOLLOWING APPEALS WERE DENIED:
There were no appeals denied,

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE DISCUSSED BY BOARD:
October 13, 2015 - Spaan Variance, Parcel 403-20-009A

THE FdLLOWING ITEMS WERE DISCUSSED IN WORK SESSIONS:
There were no items discussed in work sessions.

THE FOLLOWING PRESENTATIONS WERE HEARD BY THE BOARD:
There were no presentations heard by the Board.

Chairman Jim Binick



QUARTERLY REPORT
Planning and Zoning Commission
October — December 2015

REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETINGS: 1
WORK SESSIONS: 4
JOINT WORK SESSIONS: 2

SPECIAL SESSIONS: 2

THURSDAY OCTOBER 1, 2015 — SPECIAL SESSION
Present: Chairman Davis, Vice Chairman Freeman, Commissioners Blue, Burnside, Norton and Parrish,
Absent: Commissioner Hisrich.

THURSDAY OCTOBER 8, 2015 - GENERAL PLAN WORK SESSION
Present: Chairman Davis, Vice Chairman Freeman, Commissioners Blue, Burnside, and Hisrich.
Absent; Commissioner Norton, and Commissioner Parrish.

THURSDAY OCTOBER 22, 2015 — GENERAL PLAN WORK SESSION
CANCELLED

THURSDAY NOVEMBER 5, 2015 — REGULAR SESSION
CANCELLED

THURSDAY NOVEMBER 12, 2015 —- GENERAL PLAN WORK SESSION
Present: Chairman Davis, Vice Chairman Freeman, Commissioners Blue, Burnside, and Hisrich.
Absent. Commissioner Norton, and Commissicner Parrish

THURSDAY DECEMBER 3, 2015 — SPECIAL SESSION
Present: Chairman Davis, Vice Chairman Freeman, Commissioners Blue, Hisrich, Burnside and Norton
Absent: Commissioner Parrish

THURSDAY DECEMBER 10, 2015 - GENERAL PLAN WORK SESSION
Present. Chairman Davis, Vice Chairman Freeman, Commissioners Blue, Burnside, and Norton
Absent: Commissioner Parrish, and Commissioner Histich

THE FOLLOWING WAS A JOINT WORK SESSION WITH COUNCIL:
Friday, October 16, 2015 — Update by Planning & Zoning Chairman B.J Davis, and other members of
the P&Z Commission regarding the General Plan process, various elements of the General Plan and
Character Areas that are included in the General Plan.
Present: Chairman Davis, Vice Chairman Freeman
Absent. Commissioners Blue, Burnside, Norton, Parrish and Hisrich

Friday, November 20, 2015 - Update by Planning & Zoning Chairman B.J Davis, and other members of
the P&Z Commission regarding the General Plan process, various elements of the General Plan and
Character Areas that are included in the General Plan.

Present: Chairman Davis, Vice Chairman Freeman

Absent: Commissioners Blue, Burnside, Norton, Parrish and Hisrich

THE FOLLOWING REGULAR SESSION ITEMS WERE DISCUSSED:
There were no Regular Session meetings heid this quarter.



THE FOLLOWING SPECIAL SESSION ITEMS WERE DISCUSSED:

October 1, 2015:

Public Hearing, Discussion and possible Recommendation for approval (or denial) to Council
on Use Permit 20150245, an application submitted by Mrs. Sue Mesa, agent for Mr. Ignacio M
Mesa, owner of parcel 404-13-013D, which is 10.09 acres. The property owner is requesting a
Use Permit to allow for Agri-Tourism in a residential neighborhood zoned R-R {Residential-
Rural) for the purpose of selling and operating a wine tasting room as authorized by Arizona
Domestic Farm Winery License #13133013. Agri-Tourism is an allowed use under the R-R
(Residential-Rural) District in the current Planning & Zoning Ordinance with a Use Permit. The
property is located at 4053 E State Route 260, in Camp Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona.

On a motion by Norton, seconded by Freeman, the Commission recommends for approval to Council
on Use Permit 20150245, an application submitted by Mrs. Sue Mesa, agent for Mr. Ignacio M Mesa,
owner of parcel 404-13-013D, which is 10.09 acres. The property owner is requesting a Use Permit
to allow for Agri-Tourism in a residential neighborhood zoned R-R (Residential-Rural} for the purpose
of selling and operating a wine tasting room as authorized by Arizona Domestic Farm Winery License
#13133013 with the following stipulations:

@ Per Arizona Department of Transportation (ADQT), should the use increase additional
improvements at the entrance be required.

® Perthe Camp Verde Fired District, should the entry gate be locked after closing then a
knox box will be required.

®  Provide suction water pipe at the pond for fired water supply per the Camp Verde Fired
Department specifications with adequate water supply to be available at any time.

® Per the Building Official, as a condition of the Use Permit approval for Clear Creek
Vineyard & Winery LLC a Commercial Tenant Improvement Building Permit Application
along with As-Built Plans will be required by the Building Division in order to change
the use and occupancy of the existing Residential Bam {Group U Occupancy) into a
Commercial Wine Tasting Room (Group A-2) Occupancy) and Wine Processing Facility
(Group F-2 Occupancy). The applicant should note that the Certificate of Occupancy
from the Building Division will not be issued unitil this item has been completed.

® This Use Permit shall be in perpetuity.
Agri-Tourism is an allowed us under the R-R (Residential-Rural} District in the current Planning &
Zoning Ordinance with a Use Permit. The property is located at 4053 E State Route 260, in Camp
Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona.

December 3, 2015:

Public Hearing, Discussion and possible Recommendation for approval (or denial) to
Council on Use Permit 20150310, an application submitted by Mr. Philip Moreau,
managing member of the Verde River RV Resort - Sedona LLC, owner of parcels 403-19-
205 which is 11.46 acres, 403-19-013H which is 3.7 acres, 403-19-013J which is 9.29
acres, 403-19-207 which is 1.81 acres, 403-19-013Q which is 2.46 acres, for a total of
28.72 acres located at 1472 W Horseshoe Bend Drive in Camp Verde, Yavapai County,
Arizona. The property owner is requesting an amended Use Permit, in perpetuity, for all
parcels, for the Verde River RV Resort, formerly known as the Camp Verde RV Resort,
which will consist of one hundred fifty (150) RV sites, three (3) bath houses, one (1)
operations/reception center, one (1) recreation building, one (1) maintenance building,
one (1} propane fill station, one (1) pump station, one {1) wastewater treatment plant,
one (1) elevated spa, cne (1) miniature golf area, two {2) dog parks, two (2) pickle ball
courts, one (1) playground with basketball court, one {1) horseshoe pits, and one (1)
additional well. A Recreational Vehicle Park is an allowed use under the R-R
{Residential-Rural) District in the current Planning & Zoning Ordinance with a Use
Permit.

On a motion by Commissioner Burnside, seconded by Commissioner Blue, the Commission
voted unanimously to approve Use Permit 201150310, an application submitted by Mr. Philip
Moreau, managing member of the Verde River RV Resort - Sedona LLC, owner of parcels
403-19-205 which is 11.46 acres, 403-19-013H which is 3.7 acres, 403-19-013J which is 9.29
acres, 403-19-207 which is 1.81 acres, 403-19-013Q which is 2.46 acres, for a total of 28.72
acres located at 1472 W Horseshoe Bend Drive in Camp Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona.
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The property owner is requesting an amended Use Permit, in perpetuity, for all parcels, for the
Verde River RV Resort, formerly known as the Camp Verde RV Resort, which will consist of
one hundred fifty (150) RV sites, three (3) bath houses, one (1) operations/reception center,
one (1) recreation building, one (1) maintenance building, one (1) propane fill station, one (1)
pump station, one (1) wastewater treatment plant or other approved sanitary system as
approved by the Yavapai County Environmental Services Unit, one (1) elevated spa, one
(1) miniature golf area, two (2) dog parks, two {2) pickle ball courts, one {1) playground with
basketball court, one (1) horseshoe pits, and one (1) additional well. A Recreational Vehicle
Park is an allowed use under the R-R (Residential-Rural} District in the current Planning &
Zoning Ordinance with a Use Permit.

7. Public Hearing, Riscussion and possible Recommendation to Council for a Text Amendment
to the Town of Camp Verde Planning & Zoning Ordinance amending the requirements of
Part Two — Zoning Classifications, Section 203 — Use District, Subsection D. R-R District
(Residential-Rural), (Formerly RCU}), Item 3f. “Agri-Tourism”, and Part Two — Zoning
Classifications, Section 203 — Use Districts, Subsection N. AG District, Item 3a. “Agri-
Tourism”.

On a motion by Commissioner Burnside, seconded by Commissioner Freeman, the
Commission voted unanimously to recommend for approval to Council a Text Amendment to
the Town of Camp Verde Planning & Zoning Ordinance amending the requirements of Part
Two — Zoning Classifications, Section 203 — Use District, Subsection D. R-R District
(Residential-Rural), (Formerly RCU), ltem 3f. “Agri-Tourism”, and Part Two — Zoning
Classifications, Section 203 — Use Districts, Subsection N. AG District, ltem 3a. “Agri-Tourism”

THE FOLLOWING GENERAL PLAN WORK SESSION ITEMS WERE DISCUSSED:
e N U NERAL FLAN WURRK SESSIUN ITEMS WERE DISCUSSED:

October 8, 2015:

5. Discussion, Public Input, and Commission Consensus on Chapter 7 —Housing. Continued
from the September 10, 2015 General Plan Work Session.
6. Discussion, and Direction to Staff regarding a possible Text Amendment to the current

Planning and Zoning Ordinance under Part Two — Zoning Classifications, Section 203 —
Use Districts, Item D — R-R District {Residential-Rural), ltem 3. — Uses and Structures
Subject to Use Permit, ltem F. Agri-Tourism. Resource: Chairman Davis.

7. Discussion, Public Input, and Commission Consensus on Chapter 4 - Economic
Development. Resource: Community Development Director Michael Jenkins.

November 12, 2015:

5. Discussion, Public Input, and Commission Consensus on Chapter 4 — Economic
Development. Continued from the October 8, 2015 General Plan Work Session.
6. Discussion, Public Input, and Commission Consensus on Chapter 7 - Housing. Continued

from the October 8, 2015 General Plan Work Session.

December 10, 2015:

5. Discussion, Public Input, and Commission Consensus on Acknowledgement Page.
Staff Resource: Community Development Director, Michael Jenkins

6. Discussion, Public Input, and Commission Consensus on Table of Contents Page.
Staff Resource: Community Development Director, Michael Jenkins

7. Discussion, Public Input, and Commission Consensus on Chapter 1 - Introduction.
Staff Resource: Community Development Director, Michael Jenkins

8. Discussion, Public Input, and Commission Consensus on Status of Remaining General

Plan fems including Preface, Trails Map, etc.
Staff Resource: Community Development Director, Michael Jenkins

THE FOLLOWING PRESENTATIONS WERE HEARD BY THE COMMISSION:
There were no presentations heard by the Commission.

B.J. Davis, Chairman of the Planning and Zoning Commission



Town of Camp Verde

Efié;ﬂda Item Submission Form - Section | . i — -_]

Meeting Date: January, 20, 2016

[J Consent Agenda EDecfsion Agenda [ Executive Session Reguested
[] Presentation Onty [ Action/Presentation "] Pre-Session Agenda
Requesting Department: Town Clerk

Staff Resource/Contact Person:

Agenda Title (be exact): Discussion, consideration and possible approval of amendment to the Town’s
Salary Plan with the addition of the Visitor Center Ambassador job description.

List Attached Documents: Copy of job description and copy of salary plan

Estimated Presentation Time:

Estimated Discussion Time:
Reviews Completed by:

E@epartment Head:____ Steve Ayers ] Town Attorney Comments: N/A

] Finance Department N/A
Fiscal Impact: None
Budget Code: _ N/A Amount Remaining:

Comments:

Background Information: On February 4" of 2013 the Chamber of Commerce closed and the tourist information
portion was tumed over to the Economic Development Department. In May of 2013 the Visitor Center was relocated
in with the historical society and help needed to be hired to run it. No official job description has been created as it
was believed that it may be a temporary situation. It's been 2 years and we need to get a job description and range
for it on our salary plan.

Recommended Action (Motion): We would recommend approval of a job description for the Visitor Center
Ambassador in range 29 on the salary plan with the pay scale being a Minimum $10.23, Midpoint $12.62 and
Maximum $15.26. This range includes the Library Clerk position for comparison.

Instructions to the Clerk: None



Job Description

Visitor Center Ambassador

Department: [ Economic Development Revised Date: January 2016 —|

GENERAL PURPOSE: Under general supervision, process and maintain tourist information and perform
a wide variety of general duties as required by the Camp Verde Economic Development Department.

PRIMARY DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

The following duties ARE NOT intended to serve as a comprehensive list of all duties performed by all
employees in this classification, only a representative summary of the primary duties and responsibilities.
Incumbent(s) may not be required to perform all duties listed and may be required to perform additional,
position-specific duties.

* The Camp Verde Visitors Center Ambassador welcomes guests to the Visitors Center

* This role interacts with the public in a friendly manner

¢ When dealing with the public face-to-face it is essential to make quick, appropriate decisions.

* Ambassadors will be required to help make sure there is a good supply of brochures, trail maps

* Must help keep the center clean and safe for visitors to walk through and report any maintenance
issues that may need repairs.

» Performs other related duties as assigned or required.

MANAGERIAL RESPONSIBILITIES:
None

JOB REQUIREMENTS:

Good customer service is a must, outgoing, friendly personality and ability to make quick appropriate
decisions when needed. Working knowledge to include but not limited to Camp Verde and the Verde
Valley, particularly the tourist attractions, hiking trails, biking trails, parks, restaurants and hotel/motel
options. Ability to work flexible days, hours, week-ends and special events.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Education and Experience:

Visitor Center Ambassador January 7, 2016



Job Description

High school or GED equivalent; AND one year in the Camp Verde area, and customer service
experience; OR any combination of education, training, and experience to provide the desired knowledge,
skills, and other characteristics.

Required Knowledge of:

¢ Town and department policies and procedures.

= Modern office filing procedures.

* Streets, buildings, and geography of the Town of Camp Verde.

* Functions, operations, and services the Visitor Center and the Town of Camp Verde.

Physical Demands / Work Environment:
* Work is performed in normal office setting.
* Some lifting may be required up to 10 Ibs.

Visitor Center Ambassador January 7, 2016



Town of Camp Verde Effective 0715
Salary Plan
Position Range Minimum Midpoint Maximum
Deputy Tovn Clerk; Children's Librarian £ 49 Annual $35,044.00 $44,184.00 $53,324.00
Recreation Supervisor; Building Inspector Bi-weekly $1.,347.85 $1,699.38 $2,050.92
Hourly $16.85 $21.24 $25.64
Admin Asst to Town Manager; 43 Annual $34,189.00 $43,106.00 $52,023.00
Dispatch Supervisor; Maintenance Foreman Bi-weekly $1,314.96 $1,657.92 $2,000.88
Civilian Investigator; Public Works Analyst; Hourly $16.44 $20.72 $25.01
Senior Wastewater Operator
Assistant Planner; Plans Examiner 46 Annual $32,542.00 $41,029.00 $49,517.00
Accountant Bi-weekly $1,251.62 $1,578.04 $1,904.50
Hourly $15.65 $19.73 $23.81
HR Specialist; Special Events Coordinator; 45 Annual $31,748.00 $40,029.00 $48,309.00
Code Enforcement Officer; Bi-weekly $1,221.08 $1,539.58 $1,858.04
Economic Development Specialist Hourly $i5.26 $19.24 $23.23
Lead Maintenance Worker 44 Annual $30,974.00 $39,052.00 $47,131.00
Wastewater Operator Bi-weekly $1'191.31 $1,502.00 $1812.73
Hourly $14.89 $18.78 $22.66
Dispatcher; Records Specialist; 43 Annual $30,219.00 $38,100.00 $45,981.00
Senior Equipment Operator; Bi-weekly $1,162.27 $1,465.38 $1,768.50
Property and Evidence Custodian Hourly $14.53 $18.32 $22.11
Administrative Assistant 42 Annual $29.,481.00 $37,170.00 $44,860.00
Permit Technician Bi-weekly $1,133.88 $1,429.62 $1,725.38
Hourly $14.17 $17.87 $21.57
Court Clerk 40 Annual $28,061.00 $35,379.00 $42,698.00
Finance Clerk Bi-weekly $1,079.27 $1,360.73 $1,642.23
Hourly $13.49 $17.01 $20.53
Library Specialist 39 Annual $27.376.00 $34,517.00 $41,657.00
Equipment Operator Bi-weekly $1,052.92 $1,327.58 $1,602.19
Hourly $13.16 $16.59 $20.03
Animal! Control Officer 38 Annual $26,709.00 $33,675.00 $40,64.1.00
Bi-weekly $1,027.27 $1,295.19 $1,563.12
Hourly $12.84 $16.19 $19.54
Records Clerk 37 Annual $26,057.00 $32,853.00 $39,649.00
Bi-weekly $1,002.19 $1,263.58 $1,524.96
Hourly $12.53 $15.79 $19.06
Animal Shelter Operator 36 Annual $25,422.00 $32,052.00 $38,682.00
Bi-weekly $977.77 $1,232.77 $1,487.77
Hourly $12.22 $15.41 $18.60
Maintenance Worker 34 Annual $24,197.00 $30,508.00 $36,218.00
Bi-weekly $930.65 $1,173.38 $1,416.08
Hourly $11.63 $14.67 $17.70
Senior Library Clerk 33 Annual $23,607.00 $29,763.00 $35,920.00
Laborer Bi-weekly $907.96 $1'144.73 51,381.54
Hourly $11.35 $14.31 $17.27
Receptionist 32 Annual $23,031.00 $29,038.00 $35,044.00
Bi-weekly $885.81 $1,116.85 $1,347.85
Hourly $11.07 $13.96 $16.85
Librarv Clerk 29 Annual $21,386.00 $26,964.00 $32,542.00
Visitor Center Ambassador Bi-weekly $822.54 $1.,037.08 $1,251.62
Hourly $10.28 $12.96 $15.65
Janitor 28 Annual $20,865.00 $26,307.00 $31,748.00
Bi-weekly $802.50 $1,011.81 $1,221.08
Hourly $10.03 $12.65 $15.26




Town of Camp Verde Effective 07/15
Salary Plan
Position Range Minimum Midpoint Maximum
Town Manager k£ 93 Annual $103,864.00 $130,953.00 $158,042.00
Bi-weekly $3,994.77 $5,036.65 $6,078.54
Hourly $49.93 $62.96 $75.98
Town Marshal’ HR Director E 82 Annual $79,160.00 $99.805.00 $120,451.00)
Bi-weekly $3,044.62 $3,838.65 $4.632.73
Hourly $38.06 $47.98 $57.91
Public Works Director’ Town Engineer £ 78 Annual $71,715.00 $90,419.00 $109,122.00
Bi-weekiy $2,758.27 $3,477.65 $4,197.00
Hourly $34.48 $43.47 $52.45
Community Development Director £ 77 Annual $69,966.00 $88,213.00 $106,461.00
Bi-weekly $2,691.00 $3,392.81 $4,094.65
Hourly $33.64 $42.41 $51.18
FinanceDirector £ 73 Annual $63,385.00 $79,917.60 $96,448.00
Economic Development Director E Bi-weekly $2,437.88 $3.073.73 $3,709.54
Hourly $30.47 $38.42 $46.37
arks & Recreation Director E 72 Annual $61,835.00 $77,968.00 $94,096.00
F;ommander; Bi-weekly $2,378.42 $2,998.77 $3,619.08
Hourly $29.73 $37.48 $45.24
Library Director £ 69 Annual $57,424.00 $72,401.00 $87,377.00
Risk Manager E Bi-weekly $2,208.62 $2.784.65 $3,360.65
Hourly $27.61 $34.81 $42.01
Special Projects Administrator E 68 Annual $56,023.00 $70,635.00 $85,246.00
Bi-weekly $2,154.73 $2.716.73 $3,278.69
Hourly $26.93 $33.96 $40.98
Town Clerk E 67 Annual $54,657.00 $68,912.00 $83,167.00
Bi-weekly $2,102.19 $2,650.46 $3,198.73
Hourly $26.28 $33.13 $39.98
ChiefBuilding Official £ Wastew ater Manager 64 Annual $50,754.00 $63,992.00 $77,229.00
Bi-weekly $1,952.08 $2,461.23 $2,970.35
Hourly $24.40 $30.77 $37.13
Sergeant (Police) 62 Annual $438,309.00 $60,908.00 $73,508.00
Bi-weekly $1,858.04 $2.342.62 $2,827.23
Hourly $23.23 $29.28 $35.34
Senior Planner E 59 Annual $44,860.00 $56,559.00 $68,259.00
Bi-weekly $1,725.38 $2.175.35 $2,625.35
Hourly $21.57 $27.19 $32.82
Streets Supervisor, Inspector 56 Annual $41,657.00 $52,521.00 $63,385.00
CAD Draftsman Bi-weekly $1,602.19 $2,020.04 $2,437.88
Hourly $20.03 $25.25 $30.47
Senior Accountant 55 Annual $40,641.00 $51,240.00 $61,839.00
Bi-weekly $1,563.12 $1,970.77 $2,378.42
Hourly $19.54 $24.63 $29.73
Deputy (police officer) 53 Annual $38.682.00 $48,771.00 $58.860.00
Bi-weekly $1,487.77 $1,875.81 $2,263.85
Hourly $18.60 $23 45 $28.30|
Streets Maintenance Foreman 52 Annual $37,739.00 $47,581.00 $57,424.00
Bi-weekly $1,451.50 $1,830.04 $2.208.62
Hourly $18.14 $22.88 $27.61
Court Supervisor 50 Annual $35,920.00 $45,289.00 $£54,657.00
Bi-weekly $1,381.54 $1,741.88 $2,102.19
Hourly $17.27 $21.77 $26.28
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Town of Camp Verds

|Agenda Item Submission Form - Section [

Town Council - Regular Session
Meeting Date: January 20, 2016

] Consent Agenda Decision Agenda ] Executive Session Requested
[ Presentation Only  [X) Action/Presentation

Requesting Department: Community Development

Staff Resource/Contact Person: Michael Jenkins — Community Development Director

Agenda Title (be exact): Discussion and Possible Approval of Resolution 2016-957, a Resolution of the Mayor and
Common Council of the Town of Camp Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona, on a request by Mr. G. Scott Simonton,
Manager of Simonton Ranch 18, LLC, owner of the un-platted ELK CREEK SUBDIVISION located in the Simonton
Ranch Master Planned Community, to provide for an extension of time for the Preliminary Plat approval of the said
ELK CREEK SUBDIVISION. This time extension is based on the original “DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT” between
the Town of Camp Verde and Harvard Investments, (See attached, Exhibit “A”, Development Agreement) as
recorded in Book 3663, Page 213 of the Yavapai County, Arizona, Recorder, under Section 8:11 as follows:

¢ “Ifthe PAD Plan is not approved by the Town Council, or is approved subject to conditions or
stipulations not accepted by Developer, Developer shall have no obligation to construct any of the
improvements provided for in this Agreement or the PAD. If market conditions and/or development

financing materially change the feasibility of the PAD Plan, Developer may interrupt development

until market conditions and/or development financing are again favorable, at which time continued
development of the Property will be in accordance with the PAD Plan.”

Aside from the above referenced Development Agreement, the Developer has submitted a letter dated December 8,
2015, {See attached, Exhibit "B") agreeing to the following:

Update the Drainage Report.

»  Submit a copy of the recently prepared Traffic Study on Finnie Flat Road.

»  Make corrections to water and sewer plans caused by the construction of a sewer line through Elk Creek to
serve the Verde Valley Medical Center.

»  Upon approval of the Final Plat and prior to recordation, an assurance of completion will be provided.



List Attached Documents:

= Exhibit ‘A", Development Agreement between the Town and Harvard Investments.

o  Exhibit “B", Letter from Developer dated December 8, 2015.

* Resolution 2016-957 (Requesting an extension of the approval for the Preliminary Plat for Elk Creek).

* Resolution 2006-690 (Town Council approval of the Elk Creek @ Simonton Ranch Preliminary Plat in 2006).

Estimated Presentation Time: 10 minutes
Estimated Discussion Time: 20 minutes
Reviews Completed by:

[X] Department Head: [X] Town Attorney Comments:

Background Information: The Preliminary Plat for the ELK CREEK SUBDIVISION was reviewed by the Planning &
Zoning Commission on July 6, 2006 and approved by the Town Council on July 26, 2006 per Resolution 2006-690
(See attached Resolution 2006-690). Per Part 5, Section 505 (PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT), ltem E.3.b of
the current Town of Camp Verde Planning & Zoning Ordinance, one of the following terms for approval is provided:

 “Approval is valid for a period of twenty-four (24) months from date of Council action, unless an extended
period is requested and approved by Council.”

Per Exhibit “B”, letter from Developer dated December 8, 2015, a request for an extension of time for the Elk Creek
Preliminary Plat approval was made. This request is based on the Development Agreement between the Town and
Harvard Investments (Original Developer). It appears in the public record that several recordings were subsequently
filed with the County Recorder assigning the development rights in the subject Development Agreement from
HARVARD INVESTMENTS to HOMESTEAD AT CAMP VERDE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP and then to CAMP
VERDE HOMESTEAD LLC (G Scott Simonton, Manager).

Per a specific portion of Section 8:11 of the Development Agreement, (Exhibit “A") page 13, the following was agreed
to by the Town and the Developer:

» “if market conditions and/or development financing materially change the feasibility of the PAD Plan,
Developer may interrupt development until market conditions and/or development financing are again
favorable, at which time continued development of the Property will be in accordance with the PAD Plan.*

2.



Staff and the Town Attorney both support the time extension request of the Preliminary Plat for the proposed Elk
Creek @ Simonton Ranch Subdivision based on the additional items the Developer has agreed to in his letter dated
December 8, 2015 (Exhibit “B") as follows:

L]

L]

Update the Drainage Report.
Submit a copy of the recently prepared Traffic Study on Finnie Flat Road.

Make corrections to water and sewer plans caused by the construction of a sewer line through Elk Creek to
serve the Verde Valley Medical Center.

Upon approval of the Final Plat and prior to recordation, an assurance of completion will be provided.

Recommended Action (Motion):

A Motion to Approve (OR Deny) Resolution 2016-957, a Resolution of the Mayor and Common Council of the Town
of Camp Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona, on a request by Mr. G. Scott Simonton, Manager of Simonton Ranch 18,
LLC, owner of the un-platted ELK CREEK SUBDIVISION located in the Simonton Ranch Master Planned
Community, to provide for an extension of time for the Preliminary Plat_ approval of the said ELK CREEK
SUBDIVISION. This time extension is based on the original “DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT” between the Town of
Gamp Verde and Harvard Investments as recorded in Book 3663, Page 213 of the Yavapai County , Arizona,
Recorder, under Section 8:11 of said agreement as follows:

If the PAD Plan is not approved by the Town Council, or is approved subject to conditions or stipulations
not accepted by Developer, Developer shall have no obligation to construct any of the improvements
provided for in this Agreement or the PAD. If market conditions and/or development financing materially
change the feasibility of the PAD Plan, Developer may interrupt development until market conditions and/or

development financing are again favorable, at which time continued development of the Property will be in
accordance with the PAD Plan.

Aside from the above referenced Development Agreement, the Developer has submitted a letter dated
December 8, 2015 agreeing to the following:

Update the Drainage Report.
Submit a copy of the recently prepared Traffic Study on Finnie Flat Road.

Make corrections to water and sewer plans caused by the construction of a sewer line through Elk Creek to
serve the Verde Valley Medical Center.

Upon approval of the Final Plat and prior to recordation, an assurance of completion will be provided.

Instructions to the Clerk: NA



RESOLUTION 2016-957

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CAMP VERDE (“TOW N,
ARIZONA, YAVAPAI COUNTY, ON A REQUEST BY MR. G. SCOTT SIMONTON, MANAGER
OR SIMONTON RANCH 18, LLC, OWNER OF THE UN-PLATTED ELK CREEK SUBDIVISON
LOCATED IN THE SIMONTON RANCH MASTED PLANNED COMMUNITY, TO PROVIDE FOR
AN EXTENSION OF TIME FOR THE PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL OF THE SAID ELK
CREEK SUBDIVISION. THIS TIME EXTENSION IS BASED ON THE ORIGINAL
“DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT” BETWEEN THE TOWN OF CAMP VERDE AND HARVARD
INVESTMENTS AS RECORDED IN BOOK 3663, PAGE 213 OF THE YAVAPAI COUNTY,
ARIZONA, RECORDER, UNDER SECTION 8:11 OF SAID AGREEMENT AS FOLLOWS:

» “IF THE PAD PLAN IS NOT APPROVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL, OR IS
APPROVED SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS OR STIPULATIONS NOT ACCEPTED BY
DEVELOPER, DEVELOPER SHALL HAVE NO OBLIGATION TO CONSTRUCT ANY
OF THE IMPROVEMENTS PROVIDED FOR IN THE AGREEMENT OR THE PAD. IF
MARKET CONDITIONS AND/OR DEVELOPMENT FINANCING MATERIALLY
CHANGE THE FEASIBILITY OF THE PAD | PLANI DEVELOPER MAY INTERRUPT
DEVELOPMENT _UNTIL _MARKET CONDITIONS AND/OR _DEVELOPMENT
FINANCING ARE AGAIN FAVORABLE, AT WHICH TIME _CONTINUED
DEVELOPMENT Ol ENT OF THE PROPERTY WILL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PAD
PLAN r

ASIDE FROM THE ABOVE REFERENCED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, THE DEVELOPER
HAS SUBMITTED A LETTER DATED DECEMBER 8, 2015 AGREEING TO THE FOLLOWING:
¢ UPDATE THE DRAINAGE REPORT.

« SUBMIT A COPY OF THE RECENTLY PREPARED TRAFFIC STUDY ON FINNIE
FLAT ROAD.

* MAKE CORRECTIONS TO WATER AND SEWER PLANS CAUSED BY THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A SEWER LINE THROUGH ELK CREEK TO SERVE THE
VERDE VALLEY MEDICAL CENTER.

e UPON APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT AND PRIOR TO RECORDATION, AN
ASSURANCE OF COMPLETION WILL BE PROVIDED.

The Common Council and the Town of Camp Verde hereby resolves as follows:
1. The Common Council hereby finds as follows:

A A written request for a time extension to the Preliminary Plat of the ELK CREEK
at SIMONTON RANCH SUBDIVISION was filed by Mr. G. Scott Simonton,
Manager of Simonton Ranch 18, LLC, Developer of the proposed ELK CREEK
SUBDIVISION. This written request for a time extension and additional items
agreed to by the Developer is attached as Exhibit “A”.

B. Per Part Five, Section 505 (PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT), ltem E.3.b of
the current Town of Camp Verde Planning & Zoning Ordinance one of the

following terms for approval is provided:
1.



“Approval Is valid for a period of twenty-four (24) months from the date of

Council action, unless an extended period is requested and approved by

Council.”

The Mayor and Common Council of the Town of Camp Verde, Yavapai County, Arizona do
hereby approve a time extension to the Preliminary Plat of the EIk Creek at Simonton Ranch
Subdivision for an additional twenty-four {24) months from the date of the approval of this
Resolution 2016-957 as permitted under Part Five, Section 505, Item E.3.b of the currently
adopted Planning & Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Camp Verde with the following findings:

1. Per the written request and additional items agreed to by the Developer, dated
December 8, 2015 (Exhibit “A"), the Assurance of Com pletion shall include
Financial Assurances for all approved improvements such as but not limited to roads,
utilities and drainage structures in a form as allowed in the Planning & Zoning
Ordinance under Part five, Section 507 (Construction Assurances) ltem B (Financial
Assurances required) or other methods as recommended by the Planning & Zoning
Commission and approved by the Town Council.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY MAJORITY VOTE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CAMP
VERDE, ARIZONA ON JANUARY 20, 2016, WHICH DATE WILL BE KNOWN AS THE RESOLUTION

APPROVAL DATE.

Charles German — Mayor Dzate
APPROYVED AS TO FORM: Attest:
, Virginia Jones, Town Clerk

Bill Sims — Town Attginey



/ Q EXHIBITA

Companies
December 8, 2015

Town of Camp Verde

Mr. Mike Jenkins, Community Development Director
473 S. Main Street, Suite 102

Camp Verde, Arizona 86322

Re: Elk Creek at Simonton Ranch
Parcel 404-23-103P

Mr. Jenkins:

Elk Creek at Simonton Ranch (“Elk Creek™) is an approximately 22.97 acre parcel within
Simonton Ranch, a Planned Area Development (“PAD™), A preliminary plat for was approved by
the Town Council for Elk Creek on July 26, 2006. Shortly thereafter a final plat was submitted
together with improvement plans. After Town review and requested changes, in early 2007 the
final plat was ready to be forwarded to the Town Council for approval.

The final plat was never forwarded to the Town Council for approval for two reasons: (1) The
availability of sewer that had been promised had not been extended to this area and the existing
Camp Verde Sanitary District facility did not have the capacity to accept the discharge. In fact, the
new sewer facility did not become operational until 2010. (2) In late 2006 and early 2007, the
entire country, including the town of Camp Verde, experienced a severe economic downturn and
real estate crisis. That continued until the first signs of emerging for the downturn started in mid
to late 2012. Then in 2013, the real estate market retreated somewhat and was somewhat level
through 2014. 2015 has seen the emergence form the downturn.

The history of what was happening in Camp Verde and the nation is important in that those factors
and issues were address in a Development Agreement (Ordinance No. 99-A142) between the
Town and the owner of the Simonton Ranch property (formerly Homestead at Camp Verde) and
recorded in Book 3663 Page 213 of Yavapai County on May 14, 1999 (“Development
Agreement”). Section 8.11 of the Development Agreement states “If market conditions and/or
development financing materially change the feasibility of the PAD Plan, Developer may interrupt
development until market conditions and/or development financing are again favorable, at which
time continued development of the Property will be in accordance with the PAD Plan.”

There is no question but what the lack of available sewer and the national real estate downturn
caused development and the processing of the final plat to be suspended as accounted for in the
Development Agreement. It has not been until 2015 that economic conditions warranted the
renewal of that process,



As provided for in the Development Agreement, Simonton Ranch 18, LLC {“Simonton”), the
current owner of the Elk Creek property, hereby respectfully requests that the approval for the
Elk Creek at Simonton Ranch preliminary plat be extended and/or recognized as only having
been suspended as per the Development Agreement terms and that the application for final plat
be resumed at the point it was suspended due to the conditions mentioned above.

In recognition of the passage of time from suspension until the present, Simonton agrees to
update the Drainage Report, submit a copy of the recently prepared Traffic Study on Finnie flat
Road, make corrections to water and sewer plans caused by the construction of a sewer line
through Elk Creek to serve the Verde Valley Medical Center, and such other minor revisions as
may be requested by Town staff. Simonton also acknowledges that upon approval of the final
plat and prior to recordation, an assurance of completion will be provided.

If you have any questions about this request, do not hesitate to contact me at either (480) 218-

7575 or Scott@SimontonCompanies.com.,

Sincerely,

/ cott Simonton, Manager

Simonton Ranch 18, LLC
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TOUN OF CANP UERDE

RECORDING FEE 1,
SURCHARBE 0. @
FOSTASE ,

SONCORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AN ON COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
E, ADOPTING A DEVELOPMENT-AGREEMENT WITH HARVARD 1 sy
NC., FOR A PLANNED AREA EGBMENT (PAD) OF APPROXIMA CRES AT
@ THE INTERSECTION OF SR 26§ ‘) I-17 IN THE CORPORATE LIM E TOWN.

@ VYHEREZS, pursuant to A 0.05.A, a municipality may, by récolistion of

ordinance, enter into a di ent agreement relating to propéfy-pithin the

municipality, provided evelopment agreement is consfatend the general

plan appiicable to the property on the date the development ag is executed;

and

visions for reservation of
""'“\ nvironmentally sensitive
preservation and restoration of ic’structures, phasing or time @
lopment of the property, re AUTemE @

» It would be in the best i
once the ordinance is passed, record it with the Yavapai Cou

s

Réorder within 10 days as required ereupon the burdens of the ¢

evaldpment agreement are aRd the benefits inure to, the parﬁe@
reement and to all their : erest and assigns.

Camp Verde, that the develo,
fortfy in Exhibit A, shall be exested
found to have included the nfebnmts,andmnm:t

&
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&, . Osborn Road, #200 O%
enix, A7 85014 Q%

a,

corded, return to &,

N
& CRACCHIOLO (MD) @ . @

DE PMENT AGREEMENT @

omestead at Camp Verde) z @

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and

between the Town of Camp Verde, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “Town™), and

a5
kbpbximately 393 net acros, looated g@y east of the northeast comer of@te 260

q%:d I-17, which property is legall ed on Exhibit A attached hereto perty™).

0@9. Develcper is the owner of 8@@ property in the Town cogs

B. The Town and the@loper each desire that the developed in

accordance with the Pl Development Plan for The Iﬁ at Camp Verde
(“PAD Plan™), to be submiitted to the Town Council con eously with this
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Agreement, @PAD Plan provides for single- and multi-family residences, a

commercidl 5
\®)

wal ogging!equestrian trails, an elcmcn%school site, and a church site. \

0% The Town and the Develop ledge and agree that develop the

Q%@w

, a neighborhood medical center, ‘ ighborhood parks, green belt open sp@

\55 Property; and (ii) creating

o
deveypment plan applicable to the Property
o E o7

% The Town confirms that pnor

0
Q:%Qggen all required public notice and HagheX

discuss and otherwise consider 48

@ F. The Town and the
@ provisions of AR.S. § 9@

wizms u% 2-
R
ey i
N N
N
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t] THEREFORE, in consideration of iHe grémises and mutual promises set
in %eem-t, the Town and the Develd%tate confirm and agree as foll

O@ Inc fion of Recitals, Th s stated above are true and cm@ are

provide all municipal services, perty, to

@ the same extent and upon the rms and conditions as those s provided to

@ ‘E' other real properties in
3. Assured Water Supply. The Town and Developer acknowledge and agree that the

Property is within the water service area certificated to the Camp Verde Water System. A

“will serve” le: the Camp Verde Water Systemis‘i%;ed to the Pad Plan as Exhibit %

, €xcept as otherwise provided




zo@md by Shepard-Wesnitzer, In
@ within the Property. The on-sj

@ plans approved by the T@

§@

.

© >
@mﬁmeﬂ districts to finance y portion of the on-site mﬂ%@g water
@ improvements required to prov; service to the Property. @

PRGE & OF 3t

S; S; B 3663 P6 213 FEE¥314220 S;
construct an water improvements required to s@hc Property with water supplied@)@

by the Cénd -.' érde Water System (the “On-Site‘ ‘mprovements”) The On-Site W]

Impravements shall consist of (a) on-site wat%nsmission lines and those ﬁmhydr%}nd

1&@@&1 to serve the Property as @n the Conceptual Water Distri lan
)

No. 99022, and submitted to the,

eparate cover; and (b) on-site

the Property.
43 The Town shall not pay any portion of the cost of the On-Site Water

Improvements. %weloper and Camp Verde may cl%t shall not be required by the ‘%
e 2

Town to ovessi e On-Site Water Improvemen @; ond what is needed to serve the @

rooerl) © ©

\ 4.4 Developer, or the Camp Water District, at its election, maycc;%in

@ CVOIQI

sharipg~pgreements with builders an styh

Q

&

5. W

5.1 The T@d the Developer acknowledge m@ that the Property is

within the wastewater treatment service area certificated to the Camp Verde Sanitary District.

[(7 L /(j ) /fj
N N N
O > O



©
@l@ Sanitary District may ele®

qgemoe to the Property (“Off-Site ter lmprovements™). The Town shall s

PAGE 7 oF 31
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A “will serve’@ from the Camp Verde Sanitary [ﬁ@l is attached to the PAD Plap as @
""‘@© © @©

14 H'_

shall not be required by the Town
Water Improvements beyond what is needed to serve the Property.
6.2 Developer or the Camp Verde Sanitary District (but not the Town) shall

construct the on-ﬁ%wur improvements required to serv&‘%ropeﬂy (the “On-Site Sewer %

ImprovementsJ~The On-Site Sewer Improvements shafi Sansist of a) the sewer mains and Q
S ) et ©

pump s@eqm’mﬂ to serve the Property as sl@n the Conceptual Sanitary Sewer @
; RN

the improvement plans approz% e Town
dividual parcels within the Pltr@

2. shall not pay any portion of t@st of the On-Site
Sewer Improvements. '@veloper or the Camp Verde Sm@siﬁct may elect but

shall not be required by the Town to oversize the On-Site Sewer Improvements beyond what

- N S
S S S
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3 Developer or the Camp Verde Sanitary District, at its election, may ob@

fed funding and/or enter cost-shaﬁng%mnts with builders and/or e%ish

ion of the on-site and/or off@@mr

& 0%
%’ p Verde
@ treatment of

§@

of's ‘.‘l,,,. astructure Assurance, the City sd certificates of occupancy or eq \1;‘ t

, . G,
@g approval for the Property or ion thereof to be improved it such
&,

Q, &, \
% astructure improvements are d as provided in the Todivisnon
ordinances.

7.2 The Develo@d its agents shall have the right to main upon and

@ cross over any Town eas@ctﬂghts—of-way tothe mtma@necessarytodesigl

and/or construct the water and sewer improvements and other improvements for the Property,

Y PN
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provided that th eveloper’s use of such right does @-atﬂiaﬂy impede or materially

[
the Town’s use and enjoyment :@ bjcct property and provided also

the E%loper shall restore such easemen% right-of-way to substantially thé@e
c@@ as existed prior to Develop . Any improvements constru the

O%@aximum of 300 apartment umts
S N

8.1 The Town, in recognition of the valuable considerations being provided

by Developer pursuant to this Agreement and the financial investment of the Developer in

N

sy

prel phasing schedule is attached to the'R
oI5 ’b

3 8.2 The PAD Plan shall pro

C-1a of the PAD Plan.

of roadway cross sections for ion. Construction

8.3 The Devel@;knowledges and agrees that Tow@rova] ofthe PAD
Plan does not include a@ l@h

plans for all roadways shall be reviewed and approved by the City’s engineering department

T N
P8
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tation (“ADOT™) has represen
the E%oper and the City that any traffic Q@s (“Traffic Signals”) required alon%mt
f Finnie Flat Road and/or Highw@ adjacent to the Property shall led

O@DOT at ADOT"s expense. @shall reasonably cooperate witlPievel

ve the Traffic Sipnals install

@ discretion, elects to realign In
@é traffic signal, the Town s@

8.5 Common areas within each phase of the Property shall be developed as

the full cost of such traffic signal:

that phase is developed and dedicated to the homeowner’s association for the Property (the

“Asspciation™), ﬁ%&hﬁ the common areas will be mﬁ%jwd by the Association at the %
expense of ciation, except as otherwise pro in or in a separate agreement @@
betwee@ssociaﬁon and a joint user. @ @

8.6 Developer shall maintain%g;l 15 of the Property as open space%yp

Q,

0) years after the PAD Plan is app2ved by the Town Council. At any

() n'-ij*

.SJ

uid 10-year period, the local schoo

t (the “School District”) may el
@ arcel 15 for use as an elemen] | site (including school buildj
@ buildings, play fields, recreat areas and related support faci]iti&@swritten notice to

Developer. Upon rcceip@h notice within said 10-year peri ¢loper shall convey

Parcel 15 to the School District, free of charge, for use as an elementary school site, subject




&,

@g

&

%lan is approved by the Town
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a@rcloper may reasonably require

to confi | : Al the School District has suffici ;-" ds to build and open an elem

schoﬂ%Parcel 15 within two (2) years a%e date of conveyance. Notwnthst%g

a@ herein to the contrary, the requ: that the School District build

to the Schoel @t providing such documentation

hall be designed,
constructed, operated and maintained by the School District at no expense to the Developer,
but in conformance with the CC&Rs and Design Guidelines of The Homestead at Camp

oD N

gite, and also shall include a reve, rc.:») ve that provides fortitle to Parcel (@@

15t0 m@)evelopcr ifthe School District d@ build and open the elementary sc@

OB igintain the Recreational Facilities o (2) years after the date of conveya

tigi- School District ceases to up he elementary school and/or R

1htnes within five (5) years after of conveyance. If, within 10 y

@ { the School District does not itten notice
to Developer that the School elects to take title to Parcel 15 fi as an elernentary
school site, then the Dev@shau maintain Parcel 15 as open r an additional two

(2) years and anytime within said 2-year period, the Town may elect to take title to Parcel

& Q
o N/aR i
NS/ N7 N/
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15 for use as a public park by written notice to Develop pon receipt of such notice from @

free of charge, foruse asap

par ject to the Town agreeing to devel d open Parcel 15 as a public park withjn one

¢ after the date of conveyance, wi o%oml amenities equal to or be@c
O@aﬁom] amenities in the parks de ,,S eyance
Q%ﬂall include a restriction limiti include a
@ reverter ctause that provides for itk own does not

§@ develop and open Parcel Q aﬂn@ e of conveyance.
The public park will be maintained by the Association at the Town’s expense, with the
maintenance responsibilities of the Association and the financial responsibilitics ofthe Town
, the City does not provide %
Q, e to Parcel 15 foruse as a public @
| ©

park, tit¢ to Parcel 15 reverts to Dcvcloper@vided herein, Developer may dev@

in accordance with the zoning des*xn of PAD 7-9, and any lots so dev%bggd

@ 8.6.1 For of Section 8.6 and the remairy Apreement,
@ the “date of conveyance” efined as the date the subject recorded in the
@ official records of Yava@my. @

8.6.2 For purposes of Section 8.6 and the remainder of this Agreement,

3 "T]'-ui (]
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the “cost of m, ce,” “cost of maintaining,” “ ce costs” and similar phrases
P

shall in iEI € cost of appropriate insurance, a5 &3S0 bly determined by Developer. /All

insum%policies shall name the Town or tb%evebpcr or the Association as add@nj
iﬁ@ as the case may be. O@

0% 8.7 Developer shall d is M and N as parks with 4 active
Q&mﬁmmmdshﬂ]main i M and N as parks for up to (3) years after

@ the PAD Plan is approved by Council. At any time during sajy period, the
5@ Town may elect to take tit Is M and N for use as publi written notice to

Developer. Upon receipt of such written notice, Developer shall convey Parcels M and N
tothe Town, free of charge, for use as public parks, and the Developer shall maintain Parcels
Mand N as pub. until 50 percent of the single-fnm%esidences at The Homestead
Q @
at Camp Ve been built out, provided that the-Tawiyagrees that afier such build-out
o " © ©
Parcels @d N will be maintained by ﬂn@dnﬁon at Town expense, with@

mainjeRigce responsibilties o the Associatign e the financial responsibilites of théTown

in a separate agreement, If, wi '-"T.;-;n 3-year period, the Town does 'i%. ide
q@ym notice to the Developer tha elects to take title to Parcels for use
@ as a public park, Developer te Parcels M and N to the As and Parcels

M and N will be maintm‘nc@) e Association as parks for use sidents of The

@ Homestead at Camp Ve@ shall not be available for publi@

8.8 Town residents have expressed an interest in havin g public access to Parce]

& & &
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ing autic restrooms located at or near P: . Developer will permit public ©>@

access to Pageel K and will develop public restroorhs &t or near Parcel K, if the Town ag@

by M@ notice to Developer within three cars afier the PAD Plan is approv the

T@mcil,wbercsponsibleforﬂm @zinmjningl’melKasamml iand

O
D@

@

set forth in a separate agreement. Ifthe Town does not deliver such notice within the 3-year

period, the Developer shall not be under any obligation to develop public restrooms at or near

=

veloper shall develop a walkj .Q gi i i i @

Parcel K, or to m%amel K available for public use.

Exhibit@f the PAD Plan for use by resid

Town delivers such nnti@n said 5-year period, the trail sys@ll be maintained by

the Association at the Town’s expense, with the maintenance responsibilities of the

TS S
o
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Q)

Association nﬁ@ financial responsibilities of the T@et forth in a separate agreement.
Ifthe T: n goes not deliver such notice withi ‘ -h <year period, the trail system s
mah@‘d by the Association for use by re%ts of The Homestead at Camp Ve%ut

xb@ be available for public use, and @loper may elect to eliminate equ@mse

o@c trail system. 0% @

@g that homebuilders construl :replaces in compliance with the Plan. Developer

will encourage local builders and tradesmen to bid for work at The Homestead at Camp

Verde,

8. ﬂ%@tbe PAD Plan is not approved byd:l%awu Council, or is approved %

subject to ooul‘n Qms or stipulations not accepted -0* eleloper, Developer shall have no
O ©
ed

(D
obligation t struct any of the improvementy firo

for in this Agreement or the P@

If market conditions and/or development fisiasing materially change the feasibility the

“dovelopment until market condiﬁd/or

&

Q% elopment financing are again fyGtak t of the
Prop ; .

8.12 The Town agrégs that issuance of the construction p SIm(Ts, sewer permits,

occupancy permits, and @nmts and approvals required &u@‘m to develop the

Property pursuant to this Agreement and the PAD Plan shall not be unreasorably delayed or

Y o

& & @
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lcpermitrcquirements and pays @

v-part of the PAD Plan shall vesk@
O@ 8.13 The Town and Develop, owledge and agree that amen: the

Y Plan may be necessary from ti e to reflect changes in market @ns and

Q%welopmcm financing and/or to

@ users or builders of any part of
@é changes or adjustments a@

adjustments through administrative amendments approved by the Town Planning and Zoning

new requirements of one or m e potential
erty. If and when the Town and oper find that

ary or apptopriate, they shall e minor changes or

Director, which, after execution, shall be attached to the PAD Plan as an addendum and

become a part ﬂ% and may be further changed mﬂ%endcd from time to time as %
O ) Q

NECessary wi pproval of the Town and the I@ aper. No such minor amendment 3

shall m@ﬁm notice or hearing. All majm@:s or amendments shall be revieied

by tl%k@nning and Zoning Commission an%@roved by the Town Council. Thepa xties

woperate in good faith to agree upuse reasonable best efforts to p

I.;q. OCEES; any

ol S
@nor or major amendments to the . The Developer and the To at such
@ amendments shall be incorpor is reference into this Agreement xwi same force
and effect as if set forth he shall not require correspondin, dment to this

S S S

8.13.1 For purposes of this A greement, amajor amendment to the PAD

© & ©
N N N
® © &
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Q% 8.14 The Town :a(":.- at no Town moratorium (ex

O

5@

¢
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Plan shall inv: ) an increase in the approved num dwelling units or leaseabie arca

within tHe’PAE; (b) a significant change in zonifig fart e PAD; (c) any change in the

that%ldhave a significant impact on area%ining the PAD; and (d) any changé%he

b@l could have a significant tmﬂ'@@ﬁ on roadways adjacent or ext@@nhe

. All other proposed changes }C deemed minor amendments, &,
N N

A.RS. § 9-463.06) and no Town ufdi ance, resolution or other land

in accordance with the PAD Plan shall apply to or govern the development of the Property,
or any portion thereof, for & petiod of twenty (20) years from the date this Agreement is
recorded in the %ﬂl recerds of Yavapai County

Moratorium,Peridy, the development of the Proper®
© N )

m‘dimn@ﬁng and in force for the Town at@:c this Agreement is recorded,

as m%@d herein, and Town shall not 1mp%\s§9r enact any additional conditions, sh ng

v}., Period™). Within the

Ong/elopment of the Property. No mg the foregoing, the Town reSoRRe the right
©Q§) impose new development o increase administrative fees mpose new
@ acdministrative fees durmg oratorium Period, so long as e are done in
@ accordance with all ap laws and such new or addmon@ are generally and

uniformly applied to all developers and new construction in the City. If the Town adopts a

&H

1. all be governed by the PAD@@

g g BK 3663 PG 213 FEE#3143200 g

X

& Q&
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development l@abling ordinance for future applto specific “benefitted areas™ as (QE@
gefitted areas include the Property@
plm% include a provision for repaymem%l)eveloper for public facilities mv&%)y

ﬁ@- that were constructed at Develé@xpense. Notwithstanding the fuﬁg@ the
(C9

g, also reserves the right to enact: t,\(m? e land use rules, repulations, d
qgm official policies which are >

-‘-‘iﬁf t with and not contrary to
@ regulations applicableto and g g the development ofthe Property, pfcantrary land use

permi =-’-' ef AR.S. 11-1101 et seq., and sugh

@g regulations of which ap to the Property has been conserited\i in writing by the
Developer, (ii) future land use rules, regulations and official policies of Town enacted as

necessary to comply with future state and federal laws and regulations, provided that in the

event any such sﬁt%d federal laws or regulations preve

S

> shall be modified as may be 2»

L., bitrarily imposed; and (iv) fituds fapreiti
@ axes or filing or review fees, cations thereto, so long as s or fees are
imposed or charged by Town persons and entities.

9.1 To further the cooperation of the parties in implementing this Agreement,
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oper each shall designate and app. presentative to act as a lizison @

em and its various departments eveloper. The initial represen
for ﬂ%}wn (the "Town R:presentative"%ﬂl be the Town Manager and the%al

r&@nﬁw for the Developer shall be

O, time to time (the "Developer R

<z(%ﬁall reasonable times to discuss gndlsev

@ and the development of the P ._
@g 0.2 TheT: rn owledges and agrees that it is for the Developer

1o proceed rapidly with the implementation of this Agreement and the development of the

Property and that, accordingly, an expedited review and construction inspection process is

\$ the Developer believes an %
Q ' Q
impasse peached with the Town staff on any~sue affecting the Property, the Q
© ©

Develq@.ll have the right to immediately a@o the Town Manager for an Expe@
decsuant to this Section. Nom'ithstal%igganyﬂﬁng contained herein to the oé%r,

%& ent the Town does not have agt number of personne] to unpi> renf the
&)

O%gpcdited development review proc Y e expedited construction insp cess, the
@ eveloper may elect to pay incurred by the Town for dependent
@ consuitants and advisors whl@ny be retained by the Town, as n , to assist the

Town in the review and!u@cﬁon process; provided, howev ch consultants shall

take instruction from, be controlled by, and be responsible to the Town and not the

= @%
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.3 If the issue on which an in

ot

, s reached is an issue where a @

deci%an be reached by the Town staff,%own Manager shall give the Dev% a

ﬁ@ﬁsm within 15 days afier the Dé@t‘s request for an expedited deciﬁ@the
O@ . A i . . .
Q&Wm by the Board of Adikstmg

@ Adjustment within 30 days afl :
@é issue on which an impasse, :"-'

the Town Council, the Town Manager shall schedule a Town Council hearing on the issue

within 30 days after Developer's request for an expedited decision; provided, however, that

if the issue is appity ate for review by the Town’s leﬂ%&nd Zoning Commission, the

“@@“
to the Town Council. Both the@@

I~

R Pe

ez

% 0. Default. Failure or unreasonghl elay by either party to perform oy ise

Qggﬁin accc;rdanoe with any term O.tzim:n hereof shall constitute of this

@ Agreement and, if the breach is within 30 days after written nofi of from the

&

other party (the "Cure Period; | constitute a default under this ment; provided,

@ however, that if the faih@ch that more than 30 days would@\ably be required to

perform such action or comply with any term or provision hereof, then the party shall have

s -18-




0@. if possible. In the event a bt (’i’ not cured within the Cure P
Q%efaulﬁng party shall have all remedies which may be avail
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Q

such addition I'Q a3 may be necessary to perfo(@ comply so long as the party

es petformance or compliance within f" 0"day period and diligently

to cofiplete such performance or fulfill such %ﬁm. Any notice of a breach shall s&ify

vﬁ@ of the alleged breach and the @m which said breach may be sa@ﬂy

0 institute an action for damages.
11. Mediation; Arbitration. Notwithstanding other dispute processing mechanisms

evailable under the Town Code, any dispute, claim or cause of action arising out of or

arbitration, but instead shall ved through a civil action filed i irt of competent
jurisdiction. @ @
12. Notices and Filings. All notices, filings, consents, approvals and other
g‘mmm” N ég -19- g §
ey (N : o
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3 <) <)

communicaﬁo@vided for herein or given in conn erewith shal! be validly given, 4@
filed, magde, delivered or served if in writing a -ia! véred personally or sent by certi :

Unitég-States Mail, postage pre-paid, remrn%pt requested if to: \

g, @ The Town: i Caphp Verde G, @

& : &
0% fimp-Verde, AZ 86322 0%

:E ,! 'own Manager Q%’
@ With copy to: @wn of Camp Verde @
/0. Box 710

amp Verde, AZ 86322

5@ Q@ﬁmx Town Attorney ,@@

The Developer: Harvard Investments, Inc.
2425 E. Camelback Road, Suite 900
Phoenix, AZ 85016
Attn: Craig Krumwi

@bﬂp}] to:  Burch & Cracchiolg
702 E. Osborn, Ste26
@ Phoenix, AZ 4

@ Attn; Marvig Oa

upon the earliest of the followi 3

ipt by that party; (b) deliv. address of the party, addressed sor{c)if

@ given by certified or regis . Mail, return receipt requested, s after deposit

with the United States P@M{m, addressed to the party. @
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rity. @;the parties represents and war®©

toth%er(a)thatitisdulyfomedandvalidz@dsﬁng;(b)thatitisanelawmco ion

m@ to do business in Arizona with l@ the Developer, or amunicipal cﬁ@on,

o) @mpecttomeTown; and (c) thatthe
N

eir respective parties are avthorj 9 A
@ such individual is signing. @
@s 13.2 ? This Agreement shall be m@m entirety in the

Official Recards of Yavapai County, Arizona, not later than 10 days after its full execution.
13.3 Future Effect. The provisions of this Agreement are binding upon and
shal] inure to ﬁlﬂ%ﬁt of the parties, and all of theirﬁ%vsors in interest and assigns;
provided, h ety that the Developer's rights and @-ﬁ pns hereunder may be assigned, @)@%

in who@ part, only to a person or mﬁty@as acquired title to the Property (gt a
portioR thereof and only by a written instrumgntrecorded in the Official Records of Yatasai
’“,g‘\' Arizona, expressly assigning sts and obligations. Notwithstafs
O@going, Developer may assign @Qpart of its rights and obli i6% der this
Q%Agrecment to a homeowner's ion to be established by the or to any
@ financial lender from which oper has borrowed funds for lr@ developing the

@ Property. Additionally, @elopermay assign its rights and@de:ﬂﬁmgremm

to a wholly-owned subsidiary of, or to an affiliated entity controlled by the Developer. In
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the event of a @ae assignment by Developer, alclopcf’s obligations hereunder @

shall terfaihate&ffective upon the assumption .'b I etoper's assignee of such obligati@
13.4 Term. This Agreement sh% effective on the date of execution byboth

p@mm and shall automatically twenty (20) years after ﬂaﬁ?@ﬂs
& ement is recorded in the official roedr ) @hﬂ.ﬂhe

§ N RS

‘own’s obligation to provide my ;

frmmE
@ 135 Te ic Lots . Exc@@erwisepmvided

herein, the Town and Developer hereby acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is not

intended to and shall not create conditions or exceptions to title or covenants running with

the Property whé% to the end purchaser or user. 12&5:& in order to alleviate any
concern as ‘ect of this A greement on the statyso 'm,- to any ofthe Pro ,no deed @
© i SN ©

mﬁcﬁ@uiﬂng conformance with the PA@ shall be placed on any parcel a@

r-the Property as a condition to issuin pjlding permits, and this Agreeme: il
g Frop i,

‘~‘.~n: fe without the execution or recorditioy’of any further document or inst .-‘e‘r‘-,f_-b 4s to

ot (a “Public Lot”) which h @Qnally subdivided and individug
@ "bulk™) leased (for a period of, one year) of sold to the end
thereof, and thereupon such @ ot shall be released from and no ANEEr be subject to or

@ burdened by the pmvisi@his Agreement. @

13.6 ership; Thi ies. It is not intended by this Agreement to,

/-f]{\ F ﬁ/\
NS/ N, N/
N X N
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and nothing co@d in this Agreement shall, create m@mmhip, Jjoint venture or other @

agreemesitbetwéen the Developer and the Tov n‘t- k€rm or provision of this Agre

is intended to, or shall, be for the benefit of %erson or entity not a party hereto, &m

sm@r person or entity shall have anm@r cause of action hereunder. 0@
o) @ 13,7 Waiver. No delay i ising any right or remedy sh@l@%@}imte a

Q‘%niver thereof, and no waiver by or the Developer of the b covenant
@ or condition of this Agreement s@ construed as a waiver of any prec or succeeding
§ breach of the same or any venant or condition of this A . No waiver shall

be effective unless it is in writing and is signed by the party asserted to have granted such
waiver.

13 %y_eﬂbm If any provision of thi ent is declared void or %

unenforceab @ fyourt of competent jurisdiction, syeBprgyision shall be severed from this

Ayeen@hich shall otherwise remain in fu@e and effect. If any applicable u@

cour%mpetent jurisdiction prohibits or %es the Town or Developer, as appﬁ% 3

f?w.- dertaking any contractual commi fe‘r-ge‘ 6 perform any act hereunder, this ent

O@ remain in full force and effect, visions requiring such action gt
permit the Town or Devel licable, to take such action at -e-- ion, if such

@: a construction is permitted by daiy; @
@ 13.9 ﬂ@m@gm Each party agrees iq@mth to execute such

further or additional instruments and documents and to take such further acts as may be
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to the fair m&@ of its langnage. The rule of c@cﬁm that ambiguities shall be @)@

st the party who drafted a provisiga/shall not be employed in mm@

i @ %
RO _ o . .
C% 13.11 Headings: Coun The headings of this Agreem% for

Q@VS of reference only and shall t or define the meaning of any pea ‘-\(u’. of this
Q%greemt. This Agreement ma uted in any number of co ¥h of which
@ shall be an original but all of v@mﬂ constitute one and the same

§ 13.12 Com ime. In computing any .‘9;; iof time under this
Agreement, the date of the act ar event from which the designated period of time begins to

run shall not be included. The last day of the period so completed shall be included unless

itis a Saturday, &%}r or legal holiday, in which event ﬂ%ﬁod shall run until the end of l%
S (o) 8
the next day s not a Saturday, Sunday or ley. The time for performance nfC@Q

any obl@ or taking any action under this A@ent shall be deemed to expire at @

p.m.%tlgenix time) on the last day of the .‘m ble time petiod provided herein. %

Qo7

mge or addition is t0 made to this

%S 13.13 Amendment. No thx

g"é@m by a written amendment ex v the parties hereto. Within 1

@ endment to this Agreement, dment shall be recorded in the
Yavapai County.

§ 13.14 aw. This Agrecment shall b@raﬁd and governed

according to laws of the State of Arizona. The venue for any dispute hereunder shall be
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Yavapai Cauﬂ@rizona, and the parties hereby irr@ly waive any right to object to ©>@
g <

% 13.15 Entire Agreement. m%ement, together with all Exhibits %ed

h@hich are incorporated herein b@@ference), constitutes the enti ent
i i 0 Ja.:-,_g"p Al

‘een the parties pertaining to the

&,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date(s)

mbd‘z@@ TOWN: @/§ @%
@ rowopcame vesos, ()




PABE 28 OF 31

B 3663 PGB 213 FEC4314870







(Tl

Py
=

2

SPxhibita < S

Legal Description

PRGE 30 OF 31
~ g:l BK 3663 FG 213 FEERZ148200 §;
The Homeste@t Camp Verde: Legal De@pﬁon @
Page 1 of 2 @ @ @
The bb@of the Northeast quarter of Section 36{(ToWnship 14 North, Range 4 East of the.G %
and S r Base and Meridian, Yavapai County{Asis

zbna; AND %
2: , @ Ia) @

utheast quarter of Section 25, Tom%orth, Range 4 East of the Gila and%er
and Meridian, Yavapai County, A@ @

CEL 3: @
Lots 3 and 4 of Section 30, Lot orth half of the Northeast quarter o! rthwest quarter
of Section 31, Township 14 No e § East of the Gila and Salt River Meridian,
Yavapat County, Arizona; AND
PARCEL 4:
That portion of the Soutiene-half of the Northeast quarter and the one-half of the Northwest
quarter of Section 36, ip 14 North, Range 4 East of the Gil alt River Base and
Meridian, Yavapai ,{Arizona, described as follows: @
BEGINNING at east corner of said South one-half

east quarter, said point lies @

the Northeast comner of said @
THENC 89 degrees, 54 minutes, West, a di f1373.15 feet along the 1/16 line o a (\
point o 50 degree curve 10 the left, and the INT OF BEGINNING of this

South 1 de A inutes, West, a distance of 1322.60 £¢¢t Jre
Section 36:

desc ving a delta of 23 degrees, 00 min conds, R = 1482.40 feet, . = 595,
T= feet (Total curve data: Delta = 82 de 4 minutes, 40 seconds, R = 1482.40 f¢
& ‘ & . &, @
along said curve for 595.18 foet tRRBB; T. of said curve, station 50+46.55 (V33
CE South 89 degrees, 11 minutes, W¥ita distance of 1662.97 feet to Station , the P,
of a 7.4778 degree curve to the righ g a Delta of 90 degrees, R = 766.20 1203.54
ect, and T = 766.20 feet;

" The Homestea%t Camp Verde

CENTER
?Eaédmwm C@ 600 Phoenix, AZ 85016 @ @
© ©

AS) 2
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The Homestead@t Comp Verde: Legal Des¢siption; Cont.
Page 2 of 2 % %] @

ast along said Section line, 100.0 feet't b B
Aj¢ Fats Road Right of Way, Easement, and/F2gl'P
nibier 5, 1984, recorded November 5, ﬂs o

amended by Stipulation and Ag ifu* :

ient and Real Property Exchange Ag
1733 of Official Records, Page 49

ENCE South 00 degrees, 49 minute along the East right of way, 710.00 feei
2 8.60 degrees curve to the left. Stagi 15.74, and along a portion of said :

@é aP. 0.C. having a Delta =73 de 9 minutes, 32 minutes, 32 seconds, R

urve data: Delta 90 degrees, R = 666:20.5
d East one-half of the Northwest quarter;

also being a point on the East line of sai

THENCE North 10.0 feet to the Northwest corner of said South one-haif of the Northeast quarter;

THENCE North 89 degréas, 54 minutes, East along the North right ofway line, 1273.86 feet to the
TRUE POINT OF BE ‘G and the end of this description,

EXCEPT all gas, oj

- Book 602 of Official Records, Pag

|s and mineral rights as reserved in Pat ‘ om the State of Arizona
recorded May 28, @
EXCEPTING; froithe above described parcels: @ @
The E Q feet of the Northeast quarter of the Ni quarter of the Northwest quarter of
Section the Easterly 50 feet of the G.L. O., L Section 30, Township 14 North, Ran%
East a and Salt River Base and Meridiar)) i County, Arizona. O%

A&S@CEPT ING all that portion lying N@h@f the Southerly Meander line of the(y@
EXCEPTING therefrom al! that ports G.L.0O, Lots I and 2 Section 31, Tewtiskip
ge § East as conveyed in Warranty corded January 27, 1997 in Book 314
ecords, Page 921,
wSh*éxhlblt A @ @
Legal Description THE
g P 5 PLANNING

[he Homestea@g Camp Verde CENTER @

Harvard [nvestments
2425 E. Camelback Rd., 00* Phoenix, AZ 85016

N (A

N,

oS

©©
N
T
& g
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P.0. Box 110 ot o lon, Secord
o Ned—10 10 Orae,
Camp Veane Az é’b@ 05/14/1993 12:41F PASE 1 @i
TOUN OF CAIP VERDE

RECORDING FEE 16,
SURCHARGE 0. @
POSTAGE i,

&,
CAN-ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR A YG.COMMON COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 63
E, ADOPTING A DEVELOPMENT-AGREEMENT WITH HARVARD INVE
NC., FOR A PLANNED AREA DEVELORMENT (PAD) OF APPROXIMA
THE INTERSECTION OF SR 26

@ WHEREAS, pursuant to A .05.A, 2 munidipality may, by régoluti
ordinance, enter intc a ent agreement relating to propérty-within the
@ municipality, provided evelopment agreement 1s consiétent with the general
plan applicable to the property on the date the development agreémient is executed;
and

WHEREAS, the agreement may by law include the duraon, permitted uses of the

isions for reservation of

ublic purposes, provisions to p :"?‘\ nvironmentally sensitive

preservation and restoration of hisfic structures, phasing or time @
lopment of the property, erints for public Infrastructure, @

s relating to the development @

EREAS, It would be in the best in the public to publish the developrit
once the ordinance is passed, record It with the Yavapai Cou

otder within 10 days as required byJa ereupon the burdens of the &,
aldpment agreement are bin afd the benefits inure to, the parti@
greement and to all thelr successoi® erest and asslgns. 0%
W THEREFORE, be it ordai he Mayor and Common Town of
Camp Verde, that the develg, reement with Harvard In , as set
forth In Exhibit A, shall be exeslited/by the Mayor on behalf of the that it Is

found fo have indluded the nfcessary elements, and consistent general plan of
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@@

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and

DE PMENT AGREEMENT
omestead at Camp Verde)

between the Town of Camp Verde, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “Town™), and

Harvard Inve@nc., a Nevada corporation {the &y oper™). The Town and the %
S 3 Q
Developer B@ d to herein collectively as the Farties.” @

“‘&‘@ \@ %@2

@ Developer is the owner of 5e@real property in the Town cogg' of

g,
N
o g@)ximately 393 net acres, Iocated y@y east of the northeast corner of' %&@e 260
Q&m I-17, which property is ]egally@%bcd on Exhibit A attached heretoi& erty”).

B. The Town and the@mper each desire that the developed in

accordance with the Pl@ Development Plan for The I@ at Camp Verde
{“PAD Plan™), to be subriitted to the Town Council con raneously with this
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REFORE, in consideration o ‘: -.: €mnises and mutual promises set

in %eement, the Town and the Devel state, confirm and agree as followsé\
are

O@ Incorporation of Recitals. Th s stated above are true and con%@
© o)

% ices. provide all municipal services erty, to

§ ? except as otherwise provided @\

3. Assured Water Supply. The Town and Developer acknowledge and agree that the

and conditions as those s provided to

Property is within the water service area certificated to the Camp Verde Water System. A

“will serve” k@ the Camp Verde Water System is@%ned to the Pad Plan as Exhibit %
Q Q Q)
" ©

§@ ©
ter Distribution System. @ @

\? 4.1 Developer or Camp Vegife-Water System (but not the Tol
> -: and other improvements requi A I: ring

ct any off-site water transmissioj
r Improvements™). The Town % pay any

&
@er service to the Property (“Off-

@ portion of the cost of the Off-Sj Improvements. The Develo amp Verde

Water System may elect, but not be required by the Town to ize the Off-Site

§ Water Improvements bq@hat is needed 1o serve the Propet@

4.2 Developer or Camp Verde Water System {but not the Town) shall
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A “will serve’(@- from the Camp Verde SanitaryU@@ is attached to the PAD Plan as@)@

Exhibit Xf @
© © @
Q& Sunitary Sewer Systemn. N

o@ 6.1 Developer or Camp anitary District (but not the Ta@aﬂ

ct any off-site sewer mains

mprovements™). The Town required
er Improvements, The Devel Camp Verde
Sanitary District may ele all not be required by the Town ize the Off-Site
Water Improvements beyond what is needed to serve the Property.

6.2 Developer or the Camp Verde Sanitary District (but not the Town) shall

construct the on-é%wu improvements required to s«v“é%‘mpeﬂy (the “On-Site Sewer %
O O Q

Itmprovem ¢ On-Site Sewer Improvemen nsist of (a) the sewer mains and @

pump stakjor} bequired to serve the Property as sl@n the Conceptual Sanitary Sewer @

n the improvement plans appro e Town

<@%ﬁm to recording of the final p ifidividual parcels within the Pra@

6.2.1 shall not pay any portion of gt of the On-Site
Sewer Improvetments. eloper or the Camp Verde Sm@sﬁct may elect but
shall not be required by the Town to oversize the On-Site Sewer Improvements beyond what

SRR «5-

A S oy
A (alPN DN _
& & &
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eveloper’s use of such right does ‘Q aterially impede or materially @
the Town’s use and enjoyment ect property and provided also

the E@/oper shall restore such easemenﬁgi right-of-way to substantially th%e

cﬁ@ as existed prior to Develop . Any improvements constru the

2, loper within Town easements or@ig inliattce
%l applicable codes, regulations aadpolicies of the Town and, upon_chmipléti

provided that

@ improvements shall be dedicate #nd accepted by the Town for
@ 8. PAD Plan;

8.1 The Town, in recognition of the valuable considerations being provided

by Developer pursuant to this Agreement and the financial investment of the Developer in

be developed in phases. The

S

Town will e Developer to make the de vc.)- of the phases in which the @@
Propeﬂ@ be developed and the order in@ the phases will be completed (A
prel phasing schedule is attached to .?i, D Plan as Exhibit P. %
XS’ 82ThePAD Plan shall providefor a maximum of 800 single-milJGh

Q%%l@aximum of 300 apartment units with the other land uses iden Exhibit
@ C-1a of the PAD Plan. @
@ 8.3 The Devel@cknowledges and agrees that Tow@aval ofthe PAD

Plar does not include a@ :@u

@ val of roadway cross sections for on. Construction

plans for all roadways shall be reviewed and approved by the City’s engineering department

niys and
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to the School @ct providing such documentation @v

@ eloper may reasonably require @7

{1ds to build and open an elem

to confi the School District has sufficie

schod%Parcel 15 within two (2} yeats a%e date of conveyance., Notwithstdnding

nﬁ@ herein to the contrary, the requ that the School District build aﬂ@x an
g0%@@!“:13( school an Parcel 15 withi ars i

y building and opening play fie .t%

@ as adjunct facilities to an elemelMary school located elsewhere in the

constructed, operated and maintained by the School District at no expense to the Developer,

but in conformance with the CC&Rs and Design Guidelines of The Homestead at Camp

Verde. The deed 3T donveyance shall include a restrictﬁ%?]iﬁng Parcel 15 to use as an %

elementary schpdlsite, and also shall include a reve Eoluiise that provides for title to Parcel

15to m@)eveloper ifthe School District d@ build and open the elementary sc@

and/ :.\'i;, tain the Recreational Facilities o (2) years after the date of conveya

"'\i ¢ School District ceases to ".)pO the elementary school and/or
)

O’\\Eyiliﬁm within five (5) years after {35 of conveyance. If, within 10 ye
©Q:>%Ian is approved by the Town 7 the School District does not p itten notice
@ te Developer that the School ¢t elects to take title to Parcel 15 f as an elementary
@ school site, then the Dev. ﬁall maintain Parcel 15 as open @or an additional two

(2) years and anytime within said 2-year period, the Town may elect to take title to Parcel

- S S
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ance cosis” and simifar phrases

insu%po]jcics shall name the Town or th%velopcr or the Association as additional

im@ as the case may be, o@

Q%@ 8.7 Developer shall els M and N as parks with tot frts :ug active

S

ion areas and shall maintaj M and N as parks for up to

@ the PAD Plan is approved by
E@ Town may elect to take tit
\ Developer. Upon receipt of such written notice, Developer shall convey Parcels M and N
to the Town, free of charge, for use as public parks, and the Developer shall maintain Parcels
Mand N as pub!iE%ys until 50 percent of the single-fnﬁ%csidences at The Homestead %
at Camp V ¥ been built out, provided that th @ Ayagrees that after such build-out @@

Pmls@d N will be maintained by thd (As§dciation at Town expense, with((he

feRance responsibilities of the Associationand the financial responsibilities ofthéTown

in a separate agreement, If wi .ﬁwn d 3-year pericd, the Town does Y L ptovide

?ég%tten notice to the Developer that k& Gwn elects to take title to Parcels for use

@ as a public park, Developer shalj-dédicate Parcels M and N to the and Parcels

@ M and N will be maintaine@ e Association as parks for use idents of The
@ Homestead at Camp VE@ shall not be available for publie@

8.8 Town residents have expressed an interest in having public access to Parcel

-
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Association aﬁ@ financial responsibilities of the T@et forth in a separate agreement.

Ifthe o"-“‘a ttoés not deliver such notice withi ‘ -h =year period, the trail system e
mai%d by the Association for use by re%ts of The Homestead at Camp Ve%\gut

be available for public use, and @l@ﬂ may elect to eliminate wﬁ@ use

(?%@Qe trail system. o@ 0%@9

8.10 The CC&Rs ign Guidclines for The Homest
shell require that homebuilder fixtures with low water usage;
§ that homebuilders constru replaces in compliance with the

will encourage local builders and tradesmen to bid for work at The Homestead at Camp

s.n%me PAD Plan is not approved by %\m Council, or is approved

subject to '@-'l ms or stipulations not accepted -@
obligati nstruct any of the improvemen ed for in this Agreement or the P@
If m&&%conditions and/or development ﬁngn‘q'gg materially change the feasibili e
IP%O lan, Developer may intenupto ‘development until market conditior
Oxgyelopment financing are again fl
@%mpeﬂy will be in accordance 6 PAD Plan
8.12 The Town ggregs that issuance of the construction p @sewarpemﬁts,

@ occupancy permits, and @muts and approvals required ﬁt@'ﬂwn to develop the

Property pursuant to this Agreement and the PAD P)an shall not be unreasonably delayed or

Verde.

€, at which time continued dev t of the

&2 -13-

@@

reloper, Developer shall have no©

e

75
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Plan shall inv ) an increase in the approved num@ dwelling units or leaseable area @

<)

within thfe’PAD; (b} a significant change in zonjfig {arthe PAD; (c) any change in the I®GD>

that could have a significant impact on area.%‘oining the PAD; and (d) any chang&in the

m@ could have z significant mﬁ@@t on roadways adjacent or c)&t@@ the
N

g, . All other proposed changes skl c-’- eemed minor amendments, 0%@9
:1% g L
8.14 The Town J“% at no Town moratorium (exc itted by
@ AR.S, § 9-463.06) and no Town ufdinance, resolution or other land or regulation
{

3@) enacted in the fusture that fatex :u ly impairs the Developer’s abil&@?velop the Property

in accordance with the PAD Plan shall apply to or govern the development of the Property,

or any portion thereof, for a period of twenty (20) years from the date this Agreement is

recorded in theﬁ%i&‘ records of Yavapai County
Moratoriu g, the development of the Prope
©) N

ordinm@ﬁng and in force for the Town at@:e this Agreement is recorded, e

Ocdgyelopment of the Property. No%pding the foregoing, the Town redd i
©q>§) impose new development o increase administrative fees mpose new

@ administrative fees during oratorium Period, so long as t@me are done in
@ accordance with all app@ laws and such new or additicm@ are generally and

uniformly applied to all developers and new construction in the City. If the Town adopts a

ll%.mium Period”). Within the %
< 2

S S
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oper each shall designate and appd#@epresemative 1o act as a liaison

n and its various departments Developer. The initial repres

0@&113 to time (the "Developer Regprese

all reasonable times to discuss and s

(@) and the development of the Prope
@% 9.2 The Twledges and agrees that it is de for the Developer
to proceed rapidly with the implementation of this Agreement and the development of the
Property and that, accordingly, an expedited review and construction inspection process is
necessary. Acc%ly, the parties agree that if at anf

impasse peached with the Town staff on-z

g; _S_\S BKX 3863 P& 213 FEE#3148200 §g

S

q@.ﬂ have the right to immediately a the Town Manager for an exped@

decsuant tothis Section. Notwnthstan%nganythmg contained herein to the 0&@5

Q@?

consultants and advisors Whl i , to assist the

Town in the review and/a@cuon process; provided, howev:n@ch consultants shall

take instruction from, be controlled by, and be responsible to the Town and not the

@@©

snm =17~

A

o0 O @
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% )

ihlifie as may be necessary to perfo g comply so long as the party ‘@
©) ©

$0"day period and diligently proc

to cofiiplete such performance or fulfill such %ﬂm Any notice of a breach shall sl'%ify

ﬂ@ of the alleged breach and the n@ in which said breach may be se@@‘ly

(g@, if possible. In the event a not cured within the Cure P
N

Q%’efalﬂﬁng party shall have all rj remedies which may be avail er law or

@ equity, including without limi

§ this Agreement and/or th@

11. Mediation: Arbitration. Notwithstanding other dispute processing mechanisms

institute an action for damages,

avajlable under the Town Code, any dispute, claim or cause of action atising out of or

relating to this AfFEtment may be seitled by either party @%tﬁng the matter to mediation

arfy ‘- itting the matter to binding arbitr; Q.ry paccordance with the rules of the ©:%
Ameri itration Association and the Aﬁz@nifmm Arbitration Act, A.R.S. @
N

@ arbitration, but instead shall b@ ved through a civil action filed i urt of competent
@ jurisdiction. @ @

12. Notices ilings. All notices, filings, consents, approvals and other
lunmmwmig -19. g g

((7 D F e ©__

& N/
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.1 Good Standing; Authority. @ the parties represents andwnr®©

to er (a) that it is duly formed and vahdl%dsting; (b) that it is a Delaware co:

on
rﬁ@ the Developer, or a municipal cﬁ@m,

@@ to do business in Arizona with
: a ’ ividuals executing this A half of

Q@]wrespecuveparmsareaum iZeda empoweredtobmd the party on chalfeach

@ such individual is signing.

§ M@T{ns Agreement shall be its entirety in the

Official Records of Yavapai County, Arizona, not later than 10 days after its full execution.

13.

13.3 Future Effect. The provisions of this Agreement are binding upon and
shall imure to thﬁ%ﬂt of the parties, and all of theirﬁ%ssors in interest and assigns; %
rovided, howevet; that the Developer’s rights and pbtiafions hereunder may be assi ed, @
LN T S

in who@ part, only to a person or entity! as acquired title to the Property @
pom%;reof and only by a written msmm:%oorded in the Official Records of Yavagai

& duply, Arizona, expressly assigning s ‘31‘, ts and obligations. Notwithsts
Oigjgomg, Developer may assign part of its rights and obli i er this
éAgreemcnt to a homeowner's @ to be established by the @r to any
financial lender from which €loper has borrowed funds for u developing the

@ Property. Additionally, e]oper may assign its rights and der this Agreement

to a wholly-owned subsidiary of, or to an affiliated entity controlled by the Developer. In
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in this Agreement shall, create &@rmership, joint venture or other @

stween the Developer and the Tov »d- érm or provision of this Agre

is in d to, or shall, be for the benefit of any person or entity not a party hereto, &o

sc@ person or entity shall have anp@ cause of action hereunder. Q@
0, @ 13.7 Waiver. No delg@cising any right or remedy nhaﬂe%@glm a

iver thereof, and no waiver by or the Developer of the covenant
or condition of this Agreement s construed as a waiver of any p or succeeding

§ breach of the same or any venant or condition of this A, . No waiver shall

be effective unless it is in writing and is signed by the party ass to have granted such

3;&%};@@ If any provision of dﬂ&&)ﬁmment is declared void or %

unenforceab ourt of competent jurisdiction, sision shall be severed from this (C:))Q

Agrecn@hich shall otherwise remain in and effect. If any applicable la@

courfﬁ‘\c?mpetent jurisdiction prohibits or %&s the Town or Developer, as app%%e,

i? erl;aking any contractual commi -':’f-q;,. n perform any act hereunder, this ent

waiver.

O@ remain in full fotce and effect, rovisions requiring such action $k3

permit the Town or Develop licable, to take such action at its-d

@: & construction is permitted by tady: @
@ 13.9 @m‘_@ Each party agrees h@ﬁﬂl to execute such

further or additional instruments and documents and 1o take such further acts as may be
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Yavapai Couﬂ@ﬁm and the parties hereby in@ly waive any right to object to @@,
*“°‘”"@© @© S

% 13.15 Entire Agreement. Thinggcment, together with all Exhibits nﬁ{cged

h@hich are incorporated herein b?@zference), constitutes the mﬁm@mﬂ
0{?@@ the palﬁes pcﬁa.ining to th oriten DOTAN
S dgreements, representations and dings of the parties, oral or writels are Su

by and merged in this Agreem

D
$ 1316

i of this Agreemen@ ith respect to the
performance required by each party hereunder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date(s)

s S S
& el

¢ e )

municipal corporation
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The Homestead@t Comp Verde: Legal Deséri tion; Cont.

Page 2 of 2 @ @
tly along said 7.4778 degree curve 7dls of 1203.54 feet to the P. C. of

+19.74 and an angle point;

Neorth line of said Section 36; \

right of way line of Route “A” (?%t

st along said Section line, 100.0 feet’
& Plais Road Right of Way, Easement, an roperty Exchange Agreement,” date

itfer 5, 1984, recorded November 5, 1 ok 1674 of Official Records, Page

frer amended by Stipulation and A Amend Finnie Flats Road Right o

zsient and Real Property Exchange A, dated June 17, 1985 recorded June 5 in
1733 of Official Records, Page 4

along the East right of way, 710.00

ENCE South 00 degrees, 49 minut
i 12,74, and along a portion of said cyri
minutes, 32 minutes, 32 seconds, R 0 feet, L =

@ a B.60 degrees curve to the left. 5
S aP. 0. C. having a Delta=73 de
\) urve data: Delta 90 degrees, R = 66 -feet), this P. 0. C.
also being 2 point on the East line of Said East one-haif of the Northwest quarter:

ettothe P. C. of
pr'856.50 feet to

THENCE North 10.0 feet to the Northwest corner of said South one-half of the Northeast quarter;

THENCE North 89 degréss, 54 minutes, East along the North right of way line, 1273.86 feet to the

TRUE POINT QF BE G and the end of this description.

EXCEPT all gas, oj |5 and mineral rights as reserved in Py @- the State of Arizona @
recorded May 28,(197) i Book 602 of Official Records, Page(703) @

he

above described parcels: @

EXCEPTIN

The E Q feet of the Northeast quarter of the N quarter of the Northwest quarter of %
Section ‘the Easterly 50 feet of the G. L. O,, L, Section 30, Township 14 North, Ran,

East 2 and Salt River Base and Meridian, i County, Arizona.

N
%S@CEPTING all that portion lying N@h@f the Southerly Meander line of the ¥} @
N S
0 '%l..f [ 14.

EXCEPTING therefrom all that portiér-8F G. L. Q., Lots 1 and 2 Section 31,
ge 5 East as conveyed in Warranty q,, ecorded January 27, 1997 in Baok 334
ecords, Page 921.

$xhibit A ©@ ®@

Legal Description % gll:lENNlN G
[he Homestea@S Camp Verde % CENTER ,%

Harvard Investments
2425 E. Camelback Rd. 00 Phoenix, AZ 85016

oM © ,@A@




Exhibit “B”
Companies

December 8, 2015

Town of Camp Verde

Mr. Mike Jenkins, Community Development Director
473 S. Main Street, Suite 102

Camp Verde, Arizona 86322

Re:  Elk Creek at Simonton Ranch
Parcel 404-23-103P

Mr, Jenkins:

Elk Creek at Simonton Ranch (“Elk Creek”) is an approximately 22.97 acre parcel within
Simonton Ranch, a Planned Area Development (“PAD”). A preliminary plat for was approved by
the Town Council for Elk Creek on July 26, 2006. Shortly thereafter a final plat was submitted
together with improvement plans. After Town review and requested changes, in early 2007 the
final plat was ready to be forwarded to the Town Council for approval.

The final plat was never forwarded to the Town Council for approval for two reasons: (1) The
availability of sewer that had been promised had not been extended to this area and the existing
Camp Verde Sanitary District facility did not have the capacity to accept the discharge. In fact, the
new sewer facility did not become operational until 2010. (2) In late 2006 and early 2007, the
entire country, including the town of Camp Verde, experienced a severe economic downturn and
real estate crisis. That continued until the first signs of emerging for the downturn started in mid
to late 2012. Then in 2013, the real estate market retreated somewhat and was somewhat level
through 2014. 2015 has seen the emergence form the downturn.

The history of what was happening in Camp Verde and the nation is important in that those factors
and issues were address in a Development Agreement (Ordinance No. 99-A142) between the
Town and the owner of the Simonton Ranch property (formerly Homestead at Camp Verde) and
recorded in Book 3663 Page 213 of Yavapai County on May 14, 1999 (“Development
Agreement”). Section 8.11 of the Development Agreement states “If market conditions and/or
development financing materially change the feasibility of the PAD Pian, Developer may interrupt
development until market conditions and/or development financing are again favorable, at which
time continued development of the Property will be in accordance with the PAD Plan.”

There is no question but what the lack of available sewer and the national real estate downturn
caused development and the processing of the final plat to be suspended as accounted for in the
Development Agreement. It has not been until 2015 that economic conditions warranted the

renewal of that process.



As provided for in the Development Agreement, Simonton Ranch 18, LL.C (“Simonton™), the
current owner of the Elk Creek property, hereby respectfully requests that the approval for the
Elk Creek at Simonton Ranch preliminary plat be extended and/or recognized as only having
been suspended as per the Development Agreement terms and that the application for final plat
be resumed at the point it was suspended due to the conditions mentioned above.

In recognition of the passage of time from suspension until the present, Simonton agrees to
update the Drainage Report, submit a copy of the recently prepared Traffic Study on Finnie flat
Road, make corrections to water and sewer plans caused by the construction of a sewer line
through Elk Creek to serve the Verde Valley Medical Center, and such other minor revisions as
may be requested by Town staff. Simonton also acknowledges that upon approval of the final
plat and prior to recordation, an assurance of completion will be provided.

If you have any questions about this request, do not hesitate to contact me at cither (480) 218-

7575 or Scott@SimontonCompanies.com.
Sincerely,

L

/ cott Simonton, Manager

Simonton Ranch 18, LLC



RESOLUTION 2006-880

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMKEON COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CAMF VERDE,
ARIZONA APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT 2006-02 FOR THE PURPOSE OF
DEVELOPING ELK CREEK @ SIMONTON RANCH SUBDIVISION WITHIN
SIMONTON RANCH MASETER PLANNED COMMUHNITY ON A PORTION OF PARCEL
403-23-103C CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 24 ACRES AND 87 LOTS WITH
THE MININUM LOT SIZE BE'NG 5,000 SQUARE FEET.

SITE LOCATIC: OFF OF FINNIE FLAT ROAD ACCESSED BY SINONTON
PARKVAY AND ELK CREEK ROAD, £ NEW RCADWAY,

The Common Cour:cil of the Town of Camp Verde hareby resolves as follows:
I The Common Council hereby finds as foliows:

A A request for approval of Preliminary Plat 2006-02 was filed by Scott
Simonton, agent for Camp Verde Homestead, LLC, owner for a portion of
parce! 403-23-103C.

B. The request was reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission on
July 8, 2005 and by the Common Council on July 26, 2008 in public
hearings that were advertised and posted according to state law.

C. The purpose of the preliminary plat is to develop Elk Creek @ Simonton
Ranch residential subdivision with 87 lots.

D. The proposed use will not constitute a threat to the health, safety, welfare
or convenience to the general public and shouid be approved.

The Common Council of the Town of Camp Verde hereby approves PP 2006-02
for the purpose of developing Elk Creek @ Simonton Ranch Subdivision with 87
lots on a portion of parcel 403-23-103C with the following exceptions:

1. The local road ROW will be 50’ in width with two 17" travel lanes and one
4’ sidewalk on one side of the roadway with 8' PUE on either side of the
roadway and parking will be allowed on both sides of the roadway.



RESOLUTION 2002-890
7-2808

NOTE:

Pursuant to approved PAD for Simonton Ranch, the setbacks are to be

18’ in front, 20’ in the rear and 5' on the sides. The lot coverage shall be a
maximum of 50%.

PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR SESSION OF THE COMION COUMCIL
OF THE TOWN OF CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA ON JULY 26, 2006.

Date: /- 272.06

Attest: e
Deborah Beroer, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Tovm Att
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